
Pension Fund Committee
Date: Wednesday, 27 November 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Offices of Insight Investment, 160 Queen Victoria 

Street, London, EC4V 4LA
Membership: (Quorum 3) 
John Beesley, David Brown, Ray Bryan, Andy Canning (Chairman), Howard Legg, 
Felicity Rice, Mark Roberts, Peter Wharf (Vice-Chairman) and Adrian Felgate

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, South Walks House, South Walks Road, 
Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1UZ (Sat Nav DT1 1EE)

For more information about this agenda please telephone Liz Eaton, Democratic 
Services Officer on 01305 225113 - liz.eaton@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free 
public app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council.

 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting with the exception of any items 
listed in the exempt part of this agenda. Please note that if you attend a committee 
meeting and are invited to make oral representations your name, together with a summary 
of your comments will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.  Please refer to the 
guide to public participation at committee meetings for more information about speaking at 
meetings. 

There is a Hearing Loop Induction System available for public use on request.  Please 
speak to a Democratic Services Officer for assistance in using this facility.

Recording, photographing and using social media at meetings

Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its 
business whenever possible.  Anyone can film, audio-record, take photographs, and use 
social media such as tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it is open to the 
public, so long as they conform to the Protocol for filming and audio recording of public 
council meetings.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

Page No.

1  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  MINUTES 5 - 12

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 
2019.

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest. 

4  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee 
from town and parish councils and members of the public. 

5  URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall 
be recorded in the minutes.

6  PRESENTATION FROM INVESTEC ASSET MANAGEMENT

To receive a presentation from Investec Asset Management, one of 
the pension fund’s global equities managers.

7  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT 13 - 20

To receive the annual report from Peter Scales, the Pension Fund’s 
Independent Governance Adviser.

8  PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION 21 - 58

To consider the quarterly report of the Fund Administrator on pension 
fund administration.



9  INDEPENDENT ADVISER'S REPORT 59 - 64

To receive the quarterly report of the Independent Adviser on the 
investment outlook.

10  FUND ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 65 - 118

To consider the quarterly report of the Fund Administrator.  This 
includes an update on the funding position, the value and performance 
of investments, the cash position and other topical issues.

11  INVESTMENT POOLING PROGRESS REPORT 119 - 164

To consider a report by the Fund Administrator on progress to date on 
the investment pooling project.

12  DATE OF FUTURE MEETING

To confirm the date of the next meeting of the Committee:

12 March 2020 County Hall

13  EXEMPT BUSINESS

To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following 
item in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 
meaning of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).

The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 
item of business is considered.

14  REQUEST FROM EMPLOYER TO CHANGE THEIR GUARANTEE 
PROVISION

To consider an exempt report by the Pension Fund Administrator – to 
follow.



This page is intentionally left blank



DORSET COUNCIL - PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present: Cllrs Andy Canning (Chairman), John Beesley (BCP), David Brown 
(BCP) Ray Bryan, Howard Legg, Felicity Rice (BCP), Mark Roberts, Peter Wharf 
(Vice-Chairman) and Adrian Felgate (Scheme Member Representative)

Apologies: no apologies for absence were received at the meeting.

Also present: Alan Saunders, Independent Adviser, Catherine Dix, Mark Mansley 
and Matthew Trebilcock, Brunel Pension Partnership

Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):
Aidan Dunn (Executive Director - Corporate Development S151), Jim McManus 
(Corporate Director - Finance and Commercial) and David Wilkes (Service 
Manager - Treasury and  Investments)

13.  Introduction by the Acting Chairman

Councillor Wharf, as acting Chairman, welcomed Adrian Felgate to the 
Committee as the replacement for Andrew Turner as Scheme Member 
Representative.  The acting Chairman asked that a letter of thanks be written 
on behalf of the Committee to Andrew Turner.

Resolved
That a letter of thanks be written to Andrew Turner.

14.  Election of Chairman

That Andy Canning be elected as Chairman for the remainder of the year 
2019-2020.

15.  Statement by the Chairman

The Chairman thanked members for his election.  He also thanked Councillor 
Beesley for chairing the Committee for the last five years, and for serving as 
Vice-Chairman for the four years preceding that.  He asked Councillor 
Beesley if he would wish to continue as the Dorset representative on the 
Brunel Pension Partnership Oversight Board.

Councillor Beesley confirmed he would be pleased to continue as Dorset’s 
representative on the Brunel Oversight Board.  It had been a privilege to be 
Chairman of the Committee for the last five years.  During his Chairmanship 
Brunel had been set-up, and it was widely regarded as one of the best of the 
Local government Pension Scheme (LGPS) investment pools.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2

Resolved
That Councillor Beesley continue in his role as the Dorset representative on 
the Brunel Oversight Board. 

16.  Appointment of Vice-Chairman

That Peter Wharf be appointed as Vice-Chairman for the remainder of the 
year 2019-2020.

17.  Declarations of Interest

Adrian Felgate declared that he had close relatives employed by one of the 
pension fund’s external investment managers, and that he would need to 
excuse himself from voting on any proposed resolutions relating to that 
investment manager. He also disclosed that he had a relative who worked for 
a fossil fuel company.

18.  Terms of Reference

The revised terms of reference were reviewed and agreed.

Resolved
That the terms of reference be approved.

19.  Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2019 were confirmed and signed.

20.  Public Participation

That no statements and questions were received from Town and Parish 
Councils nor public statements or questions.

Dr Ruth Arnold and Dr Rebecca Smith addressed the meeting on behalf of 
Medact (Dorset Group), a representative body of doctors, nurses and other 
members of the healthcare community in Dorset. 

Dr Arnold and Dr Smith said the fossil fuel industry posed a serious threat to 
human health due to climate change.  Dorset Council and BCP Council had 
both declared a climate emergency.  Also, there was evidence to suggest that 
fossil free investments produced better financial returns. They believed the 
pension fund had investments of £141 million in fossil fuel companies and 
asked the Committee to commit to divestment from those investments by 
2021.

The Independent Adviser felt a blanket disinvestment from the whole sector 
would not distinguish between those companies who were engaging on this 
issue and looking to make changes, and those who were not.  The evidence 
on the impact of disinvestment on performance was not conclusive and he 
wondered if the pension fund was being pushed to make changes too quickly. 

Page 6



3

He added that the pension fund had investments in renewable sources of 
energy, such as wind and solar power.

Dr Smith considered engagement with companies had not worked and 
disinvestment sent a very powerful message.  Dr Arnold felt there was no time 
to delay from disinvestment.

The Chairman confirmed the pension fund’s Investment Strategy Statement 
would be reviewed shortly and how to address the concerns raised about 
fossil fuel investment would form part of that review.  The Independent 
Adviser added the main purpose of the review was to agree allocations to 
different asset classes, but this could be a ‘second order’ consideration.

Mark Mansley, Brunel Pension Partnership, reported that Brunel already 
offered a passive low carbon equity fund based on a standard ‘parent’ index, 
although it was more costly and more volatile than its parent index.  Brunel 
were also developing a sustainable active equities portfolio, and took a 
sustainable approach to private markets too, with a strong bias to renewables, 
such as wind and solar power.  The Independent Adviser added that the 
pension fund also had exposure to renewables through its investments in 
infrastructure funds outside of Brunel.

The Vice-Chairman questioned the basis of the £141 million investment in 
fossil fuels.  He asked officers to check this figure, as it was necessary to 
have an agreed baseline to inform future discussions. 

A member asked if the pension fund had any investments locally.  The 
Independent Adviser replied that the Committee had followed a policy not to 
invest directly in Dorset.  This was to avoid any potential for conflict between 
the interests of the pension fund and the other interests of Dorset’s local 
authorities.  The Committee could choose to revisit this policy.

The Chairman thanked Dr Arnold and Dr Smith for taking the time to address 
the Committee.  

Resolved
1. That the planned review of the fund’s Investment Strategy 
Statement takes into consideration the pension fund’s exposure to fossil fuels. 
2. That officers confirm the value of the pension fund’s exposure to 
fossil fuel investments.

21.  Presentation from Brunel Pension Partnership

The Committee received a presentation from Catherine Dix, Mark Mansley 
and Matthew Trebilcock, Brunel Pension Partnership, the pension fund’s 
investment pooling manager.  The presentation summarised Brunel’s 
approach to responsible investment, with particular focus on the mitigation of 
risks associated with climate change.

Responsible Investment (RI) encompassed an overall approach to the 
consideration of environmental, social and governance factors on long term 

Page 7



4

risks and returns.  RI was distinct from ethical investment where decisions 
were made to invest or disinvest in sectors investors liked or disliked for non-
financial reasons.   Climate change had been identified as a long-term risk to 
investment returns.

Brunel sought to work with other investors or on its own to engage with 
companies and investment managers.  Engagement needed to be structured 
with clear objectives.  There had been a growth in awareness and attention in 
the investment industry but there were concerns that some responses to the 
issue owed more to marketing and not substance.

Brunel explained the quarterly performance RI reporting, and members asked 
a number of questions.  Brunel described their reporting as very much a work-
in-progress and they welcomed feedback.  Brunel were also developing a 
climate change policy.

Low-carbon investing in UK equities was challenging as the oil and gas sector 
accounted for 20% of the all share index, due to the high degree of multi-
national companies listed in this country.  The Independent Adviser noted that 
previous decisions to reduce UK equities exposure had, therefore, 
unintentionally reduced the pension fund’s exposure to this sector. 

The Chair thanked Brunel for their presentation and members agreed it had 
been very comprehensive, but necessary and timely.  

Noted

22.  Independent Adviser's Report

The Committee considered a report by the Independent Adviser that gave his 
views on the economic background to the Fund’s investments, and the 
outlook for different asset classes.  He highlighted the key risks for markets 
and concluded that a cautious approach to investment decisions continued to 
be advisable.

There was a risk of deflation in the global economy, for example, there was 
near full employment in the US and UK, but inflation was not high.  Concerns 
about the US/China trade dispute and the outcome of Brexit negotiations 
continued, as did other geo-political risks.  Germany, the traditional economic 
powerhouse of Europe, had been in recession.

Markets had rallied since April, with a set-back in August, and were now 
trading ‘sideways’.  Equity valuations were high, although it was highlighted 
that the pension fund’s allocation to equities was lower than for most LGPS 
funds.

There had been a collapse in government bond yields which usually reflected 
extreme concerns in markets.  Property was likely to see some falls in capital 
values and on balance, there was more reason to be pessimistic than to be 
optimistic.

Page 8



5

The Chairman asked if Germany was weak because of slowing demand for its 
products from China.  The Independent Adviser agreed that was the case.

One member noted the pension fund’s high exposure to overseas equities 
and, therefore, susceptibility to currency movements.  The Chairman 
explained there were currency hedges in place to mitigate this risk but asked 
if consideration should be given to now expand those hedges.  The 
Independent Adviser believed this was worth reviewing.

A member asked if the Independent Adviser thought the UK would fall into 
recession.  The Independent Adviser believed that if the UK did fall into 
recession it was likely to be mild.  Uncertainty was a greater concern.

The Fund Administrator asked if the end of compensation for Payment 
Protection Insurance (PPI) mis-selling was likely to have a material impact on 
UK growth.  The Independent Adviser didn’t know but it was noted that only 
the deadline for submitting claims had passed, and therefore compensation 
payments would continue for a period of time.

A member asked about the pension fund’s response to the climate change 
crisis.  The Independent Adviser replied that there was now an increased 
focus on sustainability considerations and the risks posed to long term 
investment performance, although the evidence that carbon disinvestment 
improved performance was mixed.  He noted that Brunel would shortly be 
developing a sustainable global equities portfolio that could be considered for 
investment.

Resolved
That officers and the Independent Adviser review the currency hedging 
arrangements for the pension fund.

23.  Fund Administrator's Report

The Committee considered a report by the Fund Administrator on the funding 
position, the valuation, performance and asset allocation as at 30 June 2019 
for the pension fund.

The funding level was estimated to have improved from 83% at the last 
triennial valuation, as at 31 March 2016, to just over 90% at the last indicative 
update, as at 31 December 2018.  The estimated improvement was primarily 
the result of the large increase in asset values in 2016-17.

This was an indicative position and the pension fund’s actuary was working on 
a full assessment of liabilities and expected future returns on assets.  Initial 
results of the full valuation were expected for the pension fund as a whole, by 
the end of September 2019, with initial results for all employers due in 
November 2019.  The actuary would be invited to give an update to the 
Committee in November 2019.

The value of the fund’s investments at 30 June 2019 was just under £3.1 
billion.  The return on investments for the financial year to 30 June 2019 was 

Page 9



6

3.2%, compared to the combined benchmark return of 2.9%.  The return on 
investments for the last 12 months was 5.7%, which was above the discount 
rate of 5.4% used by the actuary in the last valuation, but below the combined 
benchmark return of 6.3%. 

Officers and the Independent Adviser would review whether all benchmarks 
used as comparators for manager performance were the most appropriate.

Resolved
1. That the actuary be invited to give an update to the Committee at its 
meeting on 27 November 2019.
2. That officers and the Independent Adviser review all benchmarks 
used to assess that individual manager performance were the most 
appropriate.

24.  Investment Pooling Progress Report

The Committee considered a report by the Fund Administrator on the 
progress to date in the implementation of the Full Business Case (FBC) for 
the Brunel Pension Partnership, as approved by the Committee on 9 January 
2017.

As at 30 June 2019, investments valued at approximately £840m had 
transferred to portfolios under Brunel’s management.  This represented nearly 
30% of the pension fund’ total assets valued at £3.0bn.  Further transitions 
expected in 2019 were Emerging Markets Equities and Global High Alpha 
Equities which would take assets under Brunel’s management to over £1.0bn.

The Committee discussed the outcome of the Liability Driven Investment (LDI) 
manager search.  Transition of assets from Dorset’s incumbent manager to 
Brunel’s preferred provider would only be considered as and when significant 
benefits to do so were clear.

Dawn Turner, Brunel’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), had resigned from her 
position and would be leaving the company at the end of September 2019.  
Laura Chappell, Brunel’s Chief Compliance and Risk Officer, would be Acting 
CEO until a new CEO was appointed.

Noted

25.  Pensions Administration

The Committee considered a report from officers on all operation and 
administration matters relating to the Pension Fund.

26.  Pension Fund Accounts 2018-19

Dorset County Council’s annual financial statements, including the pension 
fund accounts, were approved for publication by Dorset Council’s Audit and 
Governance Committee on 26 July 2019.

Page 10



7

Deloitte replaced KPMG as the administering authority’s auditors in 2018-19, 
and gave an unqualified opinion on the pension fund accounts.  The auditors 
were complimentary about the quality of the working papers provided to them, 
and the co-operation they received from officers during the audit.  Two minor 
recommendations were made to improve internal controls.

Noted

27.  Pension Fund Annual Report 2018-19

The Committee considered the pension fund annual report for 2018-19.

Under LGPS regulations, all LGPS funds had to produce and publish an 
annual report.  The report had to be published by 1 December of each year.

The report had to comply with statutory guidance, which was why it was so 
lengthy.  Updated guidance was issued by CIPFA for 2018-19 reports, which 
included new requirements for reporting on asset pooling.

Resolved
That the Pension Fund Annual Report 2018-19 be published on the pension 
fund’s website.

28.  Dates of Future Meetings

Resolved
That meetings be held on the following dates:

27 November 2019 London (venue to be confirmed)
12 March 2020 County Hall, Dorchester.

29.  Urgent items

There were no urgent items.

Duration of meeting: 10.00 am - 1.00 pm

Chairman

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

DORSET PENSION FUND
Governance Compliance Update
Pension Fund Committee on 27th November 2019

4 t h  November 2019

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



2

Table of Contents 
1.0 Summary observations 3

2.0 Introduction 3

3.0 Core business activity 3

4.0 Review of the Annual Report 3

5.0 Implementation of pooling arrangements 3

6.0 Dorset Local Pension Board 4

7.0 Scheme Advisory Board 4

8.0 Regulations and guidance 5

9.0 Governance reviews and surveys 5

10.0 Conclusions 6

Contact

Peter Scales
Senior Adviser
+44 20 7079 1000
peter.scales@mjhudson.com

This document is directed only at the person(s) identified on the front cover of this document on the basis of our investment advisory agreement. No liability is admitted to any other user of this report 
and if you are not the named recipient you should not seek to rely upon it.

This document is issued by MJ Hudson Allenbridge. MJ Hudson Allenbridge is a trading name of MJ Hudson Allenbridge Holdings Limited (No. 10232597), MJ Hudson Investment Advisers Limited 
(04533331), MJ Hudson Investment Consulting Limited (07435167) and MJ Hudson Investment Solutions Limited (10796384). All are registered in England and Wales. MJ Hudson Investment 
Advisers Limited (FRN 539747) and MJ Hudson Investment Consulting Limited (FRN 541971) are Appointed Representatives of MJ Hudson Advisers Limited (FRN 692447) which is Authorised 
and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. The Registered Office of MJ Hudson Allenbridge Holdings Limited is 8 Old Jewry, London EC2R 8DN.

Page 14

mailto:peter.scales@mjhudson.com


3

1.0 Summary Observations

 I have reviewed the business and minutes of Committee and Board meetings and I am satisfied that 
good governance standards are being maintained and improved.

 The Pension Board has been operating effectively and in line with its responsibilities, which have been 
reviewed.  Operational governance has also improved.

 I have reviewed the Annual Report for 2018-19 as reported to the Committee in September and I am 
satisfied that it is compliant with the regulatory requirements and reflects good practice.

 The new pooling arrangements (BPP) are continuing to evolve and assets are in a well-planned 
transition process through to 2021.  

 Other issues developing nationally by MHCLG, the Scheme Advisory Board, and the Pensions 
Regulator should be monitored and responded to as and when appropriate.

2.0 Introduction

2.1 I last reported on the governance arrangements for the Dorset Pension Fund to the Committee on 22nd 
November 2018 and I have monitored the governance activities of both the Committee and the Board 
during the past year. 

2.2 As I indicated to the Committee last year, the regulatory framework continues to develop and pressure 
continues on the administration arrangements.  I have included some indicators of current 
developments of which the Committee should be aware.

3.0 Core business activity

3.1 Part of my governance review involves monitoring the reports and minutes of Committee meetings 
and of Board meetings.  While this may give only a limited perspective on the activity and 
effectiveness of meetings, it does enable me to form the view that governance standards are being 
maintained and improved.  From my limited experience, I believe these standards are at a high level 
and consistent with the other funds with which I am involved.

4.0 Review of the Annual Report

4.1 I have reviewed the content of the Annual Report and each of the policy documents contained within 
the Report, although I have not studied each policy document in detail as this is a function more for 
the Board.  However, I found the documents overall to be clear and well written, and most importantly, 
compliant with the appropriate regulations.

4.2 The regulations require the Committee to have regard to CIPFA Guidance which was revised and 
reissued earlier in the year. In my view the Annual Report is compliant with the principal requirements 
of that guidance.  I should add that the Dorset report is one of the best that I have reviewed this year.  

5.0 Implementation of pooling arrangements

5.1 As I have indicated previously, the introduction of pooling arrangements represents a major change in 
the way LGPS funds are invested and I don’t need to remind the Committee of the difficult and 
complex process they have gone or are still going through.  I note that the Committee has been advised 
that BPP are making good progress and better progress than some other pools, and the Committee has 
received presentations on key issues.

Page 15



4

5.2 At this stage, the Dorset Fund is in a process of transition, both in the transfer of assets to suitable 
pooled and in the on-going governance arrangements for investment strategy implementation and 
management.  While there will be guidance and advice on generic processes, the Committee and Board 
will need to develop governance arrangements that work best for them in practice.

5.3 I list below some areas of concern that are affecting future governance relating to the pooling of 
investments, not all of which are necessarily a concern for Dorset but may be useful to note:

Regulatory guidance - MHCLG issued draft guidance for informal consultation earlier in the year 
that was not well received and raised a number of governance issues.  A revised version of the guidance 
is awaited and I refer to this further below.

Asset structures - There are issues in a number of funds about whether the structures offered by the 
pools are the ‘best fit’ for their investment strategies.  There is no simple solution to this in terms of 
implementation but there is a governance issue in terms of compliance and monitoring.

Transparency - Many funds are finding it difficult to obtain information in a ‘public’ format about 
how the development of the pools is progressing.  To some extent this is understandable in the early 
stages of commercial sensitivity and during major asset transitions.  However, it will be important for 
all pools and their oversight committees to develop open reporting arrangements, particularly 
regarding performance, investment costs and savings.

Relationships with asset managers - As assets transfer to the pool, it is the pool company that 
becomes the ‘client’ of the asset manager.  Some funds still wish to meet managers to maintain 
knowledge and understanding but the pools require prior approval for such meetings.

Monitoring implementation and management - Pension fund committees (and in association, LPBs) 
are losing the ability to monitor how their investment strategy is being implemented and how 
performance targets are being met at the fund/local level.

Role of LPBs - As indicated earlier, the role in regard to investment is confused and becoming more 
so with poorly drafted guidance purporting to impose greater compliance responsibilities.  Proposed 
guidance in relation to responsible investing may further complicate matters.

Responsible investing and the exercise of rights - current policies which delegate action to asset 
managers and voting agencies may no longer be effective or may be difficult to implement if the pool 
company becomes the ‘beneficial owner’.

6.0 Dorset Local Pension Board

6.1 I have commented in previous years that the Board’s arrangements appeared out of kilter with the 
arrangements in other funds and that they might be open to criticism from the Pensions Regulator. 

6.2 I am pleased to note therefore that the Board has reviewed and revised its terms of reference during 
the past year, increasing both the number of members, and the number of meetings.  The Board is 
maintaining a comprehensive programme of business, monitoring Scheme consultations and 
regulatory changes, and is reviewing policy documents.

7.0 Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)

7.1 There are several key governance issues currently being considered by the Board, which next meets 
on 6th November.  These issues are referred to further below.

Page 16



5

8.0 Regulations and guidance

8.1 Knowledge of the LGPS regulations and guidance is a fundamental requirement for Pension Board 
members and important for Committee members also.  I have suggested to other Funds that they make 
use of the LGPS website [www.lgpsregs.org/] (maintained by the Local Government Pensions 
Committee) as a reference point for the regulations and as a source of information on developing 
changes and advice in the LGPC bulletins.

8.2 As indicated above, MHCLG has yet to respond to the 93 responses to the informal consultation on 
draft guidance on pooling.  Subject to how this guidance is finalised, there will be significant 
implications for the pooling process and for governance arrangements, including those of local pension 
boards.

8.3 The SAB has advised recently that Remedy 7 of the Investment Consultancy and Fiduciary 
Management Investigation Order 2019 applies to the LGPS and comes into force on 10th December.   
This will require LGPS funds to set objectives for their investment consultants and draft guidance has 
been issued by the Pensions Regulator.

8.4 The SAB is considering draft guidance on responsible investment which aims to explain the parameters 
of the regulations, statutory guidance, fiduciary duty and general public law.  A second phase of 
guidance is intended to propose amendments to the guidance on the investment regulations to reflect 
the Government’s policy on climate change and wider responsible investment considerations.  

8.5 The guidance is intended as a resource for members of pensions committees and local pension boards 
with the aim of helping decision-makers to better understand what their legal obligations are and what 
type of investment practices they can adopt with regard to ESG considerations, while continuing to 
meet these duties. 

8.6 The Government’s proposals regarding changes to the local valuation cycle and the management of 
employer risk were subject to consultation in the summer but it is not yet clear what conclusions the 
Government has drawn or how these will be implemented in the form of Scheme regulation 
amendments.

8.7 Inevitably all these issues and potential changes will impact upon the governance framework and 
further complicate the requirements for compliance, knowledge and understanding on both the 
Committee and the Board.

9.0 Governance reviews and surveys

Hymans Robertsons’ report on good governance

9.1 The SAB is considering the outcome of this report with proposals for a revised Governance and 
Compliance Statement, an update to the MHCLG guidance issued in 2008, setting minimum standards 
of knowledge and understanding to apply to elected members on pensions committees, biennial 
governance reviews, and an “LGPS Peer Challenge” process. CIPFA and Aon Consulting are 
preparing revised guidance on requirements for knowledge and understanding.  

9.2 These proposals will require changes to the regulations on which there will need to be consultation but 
it is possible that changes will be introduced from April next year.  This will mean a major ‘shake up’ 
in the statutory governance framework.

Page 17

http://www.lgpsregs.org/


6

The Pensions Regulator’s Survey 2018 and 2019

9.3 The 2018 survey was undertaken at the end of last year and the results were only published during the 
summer.  The policy response sets out tPR’s view in relation to key issues such as pension board 
meetings; knowledge and understanding; board membership; risk registers; data collections; cyber 
security, data quality, annual benefits statements; and administration.  Many of these areas have 
already been covered by the Dorset Fund.

9.4 Some of the assumptions made by tPR (which cover all public sector schemes) may be considered 
simplistic based on a broad survey that is nearly one year old.  However their views on these issues 
will influence their approach to LGPS funds which they have indicated will become more intense in 
the near future.  It is important therefore that responses to these surveys are considered carefully.  The 
2019 survey is due shortly.

Local Pension Board Survey 2019

9.5 The SAB was due to issue a survey in August on similar lines to previous surveys as a basis for 
monitoring local pension board activity.  The survey has not been issued in final form but is expected 
shortly.  The nature of the questions in the current draft provides a good indication of how activity and 
performance is being measured and monitored.

9.7 As with the tPR survey, the Pension Board should work with the officers to complete the 2019 survey 
to give an accurate picture of the Dorset position and as a form of improving knowledge and 
understanding in terms of LGPS oversight.

10.0 Conclusions

 The Dorset Pension Fund continues to be administered in line with good governance principles.

 The governance framework is complex and looks set to become more onerous in the not too distant 
future.

 Regulatory governance oversight appears to operate on the presumption of poor compliance unless 
proven otherwise.

 There is no formal requirement on those who regulate and advise the LGPS nationally to maintain a 
suitable level of knowledge and understanding.

Page 18



8 Old Jewry, London EC2R 8DN, United Kingdom | +44 20 7079 1000 | info@allenbridge.com | mjhudson.com | mjhudson-allenbridge.com

This document is directed only at the person(s) identified on the front cover of this document on the basis of our investment advisory agreement. 
No liability is admitted to any other user of this report and if you are not the named recipient you should not seek to rely upon it.

This document is issued by MJ Hudson Allenbridge. MJ Hudson Allenbridge is a trading name of MJ Hudson Allenbridge Holdings Limited (No. 10232597), 
MJ Hudson Investment Advisers Limited (04533331), MJ Hudson Investment Consulting Limited (07435167) and MJ Hudson Investment Solutions Limited (10796384). 

All are registered in England and Wales. MJ Hudson Investment Advisers Limited (FRN 539747) and MJ Hudson Investment Consulting Limited (FRN 541971) are 
Appointed Representatives of MJ Hudson Advisers Limited (FRN 692447) which is Authorised and Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

The Registered Office of MJ Hudson Allenbridge Holdings Limited is 8 Old Jewry, London EC2R 8DN.

Page 19

mailto:info@allenbridge.com


This page is intentionally left blank



Date of Meeting: 27 November 2019

Director:  Aidan Dunn, Executive Director for Corporate Development

Executive Summary:

This report is the quarterly update for the Pension Fund Committee on all operational and 
administration matters relating to the Fund.  It contains updates on the following:

 CIPFA Benchmarking Results
 GMP Rectification - Approval
 Pensions Administration Strategy
 Valuation Results 2019
 Regulatory Update
 Equitable Life Changes
 Key Performance Indicators 

Equalities Impact Assessment:

N/A

Budget: 

N/A

Risk Assessment: 

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has been 
identified as:
Current Risk: N/A
Residual Risk N/A

Climate implications: 

None

Other Implications:

N/A

Pension Fund Committee
Pensions Administration

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee note and comment on the 
contents of the report.

Reason for Recommendation: 
To update the Committee on aspects of Pensions Administration

Appendices:
 Appendix 1 -  Draft Pensions Administration Strategy
 Appendix 2 -  2019 Valuation Results View from Actuary
 Appendix 3 -  Equitable Life Transfer - Further Information
 Appendix 4 – KPIs (August 2019 - October 2019)

Background Papers:

 LGPS Regulations 2013

Officer Contact:

Name:Karen Gibson
Tel: 01305 228524
Email: karen.gibson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

1. Background

1.1. This report is the quarterly update for the Pension Fund Committee on all 
operational and administration matters relating to the Fund.

2. CIPFA Benchmarking Results - 2019

2.1. Each year, the Dorset County Pension Fund (DCPF) participates in the pension 
administration benchmarking club, a service provided by the organisation, Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA). The report compares the 
performance of each participating fund, enabling comparisons with the same service 
provision, and provides detailed feedback comparing each fund with all participating 
funds, and with their own selected 'comparator' group.

2.2. The final report for 2019 shows the net cost per member as slightly above average 
for the whole group, and slightly below average for the comparator group. Overall 
the report is extremely positive and illustrates both good performance and cost 
efficiency for the administration service. 

2.3. The report covers cost, staff related and workload measures, industry standard 
performance Indicators, communications and IT and Data Quality. These excellent 

Page 22

http://www.lgpsregs.org/schemeregs/lgpsregs2013/timeline.php


Page 3 

results reflect the high standard of service provided to members and employers and 
the quality of data held in the fund.  

3. GMP Rectification

3.1. The Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) and Contracting Out Reconciliation 
exercise is now drawing to an end, with HMRC due to close its side of the operation 
by the end of December. Once this has been confirmed, and it is clear no further 
changes to GMP data will be issued, the Dorset County Pension Fund will need to 
commence the process of rectification.

3.2. The GMP amounts will apply to certain members of Contracted Out Pensions 
Schemes with membership between 6 April 1978 and 5 April 1997. This is 
effectively a minimum sum that must be paid by the relevant contracted out pension 
scheme. It is not an additional amount to be paid, but where a GMP applies it must 
be shown, and coded separately on the members pension record, recording both 
pre and post 1988 amounts separately. This is because indexation (pensions 
increases) is applied differently to this portion of the pension, with no indexation 
being applied to GMP amounts accrued prior to 1988, and a maximum of 3% 
indexation applied to post 1988 GMP amounts. Any 'missing' amounts of pensions 
increases due on the GMP amounts would be paid in with the state pension 
received by the member. 

3.3. Incorrect recording of the GMP on pension records has a clear impact on the 
amount of pension paid. The project has identified cases where GMP figures have 
not been correctly recorded on the pensions in payment, resulting in either over, or 
underpayments of pensions. The DCPF administrators need to agree the approach 
by which these pension adjustments are made.

3.4. The government has not determined the approach to be taken by public sector 
schemes, each scheme will instead formalize their own approach. For the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, no single directive has been given by MHCLG or the 
Scheme Advisory Board, and individual funds must formalize their own policy and 
approach. The DCPF has been in discussion with funds in the South West (South 
West Area Pensions Officer Group - SWAPOG) to establish a single approach. 

3.5. The SWAPOG group feel strongly that it is not keen to reduce pensions, and its 
preference would be to find an alternative approach, as has been achieved by the 
LGPS in Scotland, bearing in mind that these errors are the fault of the pension 
scheme administrators, not scheme members. However, MHCLG have made it clear 
that rectification must take place for the LGPS in England & Wales. 

3.6. A summary of the key aspects of our intended approach, which is in line with other 
public sector schemes, is as follows;

o Where a pension has been identifiedas being overpaid, the correct level of 
pension should be paid going forward, but that no recovery of historic 
overpayments would be made.

Page 23



Page 4 

o  For members whose pension has been underpaid, the pension should be 
corrected, and appropriate arrears, with interest, paid to the member.

o The above approach is to be applied equally to both member and dependent 
pensions

o No adjustments to pensions will be made in respect of deceased members 
where there is no surviving dependent.

o A tolerance level of £2 per week variance has already been applied to GMP 
prior to identifying incorrect payments, ensuring that the scale and cost of the 
exercise is managed.     

3.7. It is likely that this process in the new year will prompt complaints from pensioners, 
some of whom may be quite elderly, as their pensions will be reduced. We are 
looking closely at the communications we plan to use and will have a dedicated 
team to answer queries and deal with any issues that arise. Whilst it is important to 
be conscious of the fact that overpayments have a negative impact on the fund, it is 
equally important for us to be sensitive to the inevitable distress this may cause to 
affected members. 

The initial plan is to write to members affected ahead of the planned month for 
change, detailing the background and informing the member of the changes to their 
pension. A second letter will then be sent just before the adjusted pension is paid. 

3.8. The DCPF seeks approval for this approach to be taken.

4. Pensions Administration Strategy

4.1. The Pensions Administration Strategy (PAS) has been reviewed and updated and is 
attached as Appendix 2 for approval.  Regulation 59 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 
allows for an administering authority to prepare a written statement of the authorities' 
policies in relation to matters including communication, performance for both the 
administering authority and for the scheme employers, the setting of performance 
targets and procedures that aim to secure compliance with statutory requirements 
and the circumstances in which financial penalties may be imposed.

4.2. Discussion have been held with employers at our recent Pension Liaison Officers 
Group (PLOG) and discussions have been held with the various teams in the 
administration section to address any issues that have arisen and given rise to a 
need for change.

4.3. The DCPF seeks approval for the revised PAS which is attached as Appendix 
1 in draft form.

5. Valuation Results 2019

Page 24



Page 5 

5.1. The results of the 2019 valuation have been released by our actuaries, Barnett 
Waddingham, and employers are being notified of their indicative contribution rates 
for the next three years.

5.2. The results seen so far show an increase in funding levels and strong investment 
performance. However, despite these positives many employers are seeing an 
increase in their employer contribution rate, which will inevitably put pressure on 
some employers.

5.3. The annual Employers meeting was held on 14th November 2019 at Kingston 
Mauward College in Dorchester. Most employers received their results before the 
meeting and there was the opportunity to meet with the actuaries to discuss their 
individual results.

5.4. A summary of the Valuation outcome for 2019, provided by our scheme actuary, is 
attached at Appendix 2.

6. Regulatory Update

6.1. MHCLG received around 280 responses to their consultation on Local valuation 
cycle and the management of employer risk which closed on 31 July 2019. They 
expect to publish their response in the autumn of 2019.

6.2. The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) published their Good Governance Report on 
31 July 2019. Hymans Robertson are assisting the SAB in taking forward the 
project, with two working groups looking at;

 defining what is meant by good governance outcomes and providing the 
accompanying guidance

 options of the independent assessment of outcomes and the mechanisms to 
improve the delivery of those outcomes

The aim is to provide an options report for the SAB in November 2019. Any 
proposals agreed by the SAB will be subject to a full stakeholder consultation. 

6.3. The consultation for the Exit Payments Cap closed on 3 July 2019 with around 600 
responses being received by HMT. The Exit Cap will be introduced at some stage 
after March 2020, with further delays and some changes to the original proposals 
possible.

6.4. MHCLG have asked all LGPS funds for data to enable them to look at possible 
solutions to the McCloud judgement. At the time of writing this report no further 
news or developments are known.

6.5. Following the Government's consultation on NHS pension flexibility in response to 
the issues arising within the health service due to the annual and tapered 
allowance tax charges, HMT has announced that it will review how the tapered 
annual allowance supports the delivery of public services.

Page 25

http://www.lgpsboard.org/images/PDF/GGreport.pdf


Page 6 

7. Equitable Life Changes

7.1.  LGPS administering authorities are legally obliged to provide access to an in-house 
Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) arrangement for their members. The current 
provider for the DCPF is the Prudential, prior to this the provider was Equitable Life. 
At the time of change from one provider to the other, members were given the 
option to transfer from Equitable Life to the Prudential. Most members chose to do 
this, but not all. There are currently approximately 30 members with residual 
benefits in Equitable Life, totalling £129,121.99 in funds.

7.2. On the 15th June 2018, Equitable Life announced that they had entered into an 
agreement to transfer its business to Utmost Life and Pensions (previously Reliance 
Mutual). Equitable Life have made a proposal in two main parts:

The Scheme:
- increasing with-profits investments with an immediate one-off ‘Uplift’
- removing any investment guarantees, and
- converting with-profits policies to unit-linked investments

The Transfer:
- To transfer to Utmost all the business of Equitable Life except for certain 

excluded policies. 

In August 2019, Equitable Life wrote to all LGPS Administering Authorities 
affected by the transfer to advise them that as both ‘Scheme Policy Holders’ and 
‘Eligible Members’ they were able to vote:

1. to approve the 'Scheme'
2. to 'Change the Articles'

Administering authorities could also object to the transfer. 

7.3 The DCPF consulted with its actuaries, Barnett Waddingham, to investigate the    
proposal and provide a recommendation on how to vote in relation to the above 
proposals and how this would impact the 30 members who hold with profits 
investments within Equitable life  Having competed their analysis of the data Barnett 
Waddingham concluded that it would be in the members interest to vote wholly in 
favour of both proposals and this how DCPF used its vote.

     7.4. In the event that the proposal goes ahead then the DCPF will contact all the affected 
members and offer them the choice of either selecting their own investment strategy 
from the unit-lined investments that are available through Utmost Life and Pensions, 
or they will be invested into the default Automatic Investment Option

Further information is attached at Appendix 3.

8. Key Performance Indicators and work backlogs 
5.5. The Key Performance (KPI) Indicators for the period 1 August 2019 to 31 October 

2019 are attached at Appendix 4. This represents the ten key areas for the Fund but 
does not cover all work completed.

Page 26



Page 7 

Aidan Dunn 
Pension Fund Administrator
27 November 2019

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 22

Administration Strategy

For  the

Dorset County Pension Fund

DRAFT

Page 29



Page 2 of 22

Introduction        3   
  
Compliance        3   
  
Review         3 
  
Regulatory Framework      4 
  
Liaison and Communication     5 
  
Fund and Employer Responsibilities   7 
  
Standards of Data       13 
  
Fund Administration Performance    14 
  
Employer Performance Reporting    15 
  
Associated Policy Statements     16 
  
Appendix A - Charging Schedule    20 
  
Contact Details       21 
  
  
 

Contents

DRAFT

Page 30



Page 3 of 22

Introduction

Dorset County Pension Fund (“the Fund”) is responsible for the administration of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) within the geographical area of Dorset.  The Fund also 
administers the LGPS on behalf of a number of qualifying employers who are not situated 
within the Dorset area.  The service is carried out by Dorset Council (“the administering 
authority”) on behalf of qualifying employers and ultimately the LGPS members. 
  
This document is the Pensions Administration Strategy statement outlining the policies and 
performance standards towards providing a cost-effective, inclusive and high quality pensions 
and administration service.  Delivery of such an administration service is not the responsibility 
of one person or one organisation, but is rather the joint working of a number of different 
stakeholders, which between them are responsible for delivering the pensions administration 
service to meet the diverse needs of the membership.  As the cost of this service is borne by 
the Fund, and effectively recharged pro-rata to each employer via the contribution rate, it is in 
everyone's interests to ensure an efficient cost-effective provision.

Compliance

Developed in consultation with employers within the Fund, this statement seeks to promote 
good working relationships, improve efficiency and ensure agreed standards of quality in 
delivery of the pension administration service amongst the employers and the Fund.  A copy of 
this strategy is issued to each of the relevant employers. 
  
The undertakings set out within this Pension Administration Strategy will be reviewed annually 
by the Fund.  In no circumstances does this strategy override any provision or requirement of 
the Regulations set out below nor is it intended to replace the information provided in the 
Employers' Guide on the Dorset County Pension Fund website for day-to-day use;  
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Employers

Review

The Fund will review this policy statement and make revisions as appropriate following a 
material change in its policies in relation to any of the matters contained in the strategy. 
Employers will be consulted and informed of the changes.

DRAFT

Page 31



Page 4 of 22

Regulatory Framework

Regulation 59 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 enables an LGPS administering authority to 
prepare a document (“the pension administration strategy”) detailing administrative standards, 
performance measure, data flows and communication with employers. 

  
In addition, Regulation 70 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 allows an administering authority to 
recover costs from an employing authority where costs have been incurred because of that 
employing authority's level of performance in carrying out its functions under these 
Regulations.  See Poor Performance section. 
  
This document has been presented, considered and approved by the Pension Fund 
Committee on the ********** and, as such, the contents of which apply to all existing and future 
employers of Dorset County Pension Fund and from 1 April 2019.

DRAFT

Page 32



Page 5 of 22

Liaison and Communication

The delivery of a high quality, cost effective administration service is not the responsibility of just 
the administering authority, but depends on the joint working of the administering authority with a 
number of individuals in different organisations to ensure Scheme members, and other interested 
parties, receive the appropriate level of service and ensure that statutory requirements are met. 
  
Each Employing authority will designate a named individual to act as the main point of contact 
(Pension Liaison Officer (PLO)) with regard to any aspect of administering the LGPS. 
  
  
Their key responsibilities will be to: 
  
 • to act as a conduit for communications to appropriate staff within the employer  
  - for example, Human Resources, Payroll teams, Directors of Finance; 
 • to ensure that standards and levels of service are maintained; 
 • to ensure that details of all nominated representatives and authorised signatures  
  are correct and to notify the Fund of any changes immediately; 
 • to arrange distribution of communications literature as and when required; 
 • to inform the Fund of any alternative service arrangements required; 
 • to assure data quality and ensure the timely submission of data to the Fund;  
 • to assist and liaise with the Fund on promotional activities; and to ensure payments 
  due to the Fund are made in accordance with the Pensions Administration Strategy

  Employer Training / Meetings

Employer workshops are arranged 3 times per year but more will be provided if requested or 
deemed necessary by the Fund.  The workshops cover employer responsibilities highlighting: 
  
 •  Starter and leaver processes 
 •  Final Pay 
 •  LGPS Discretions 
 •  End of Year requirements 
 •  Communications 
  
The Fund will hold Pension Liaison Officer Group (PLOG) meetings 3 times per year.  Attendance 
by each employer's PLO is actively encouraged. 
  
The Fund holds an annual employers' meeting where officers provide information on Fund 
Finances, Investment Performance and topical issues for the Fund; in recent times this has 
included updates on future changes to the LGPS. Attendance by each employer's main contact 
and Senior Management is actively encouraged. 
  
Meetings with senior pension fund staff can be arranged on request.

DRAFT

Page 33



Page 6 of 22

  Policy Discretions

Each employer is required to produce, publish and maintain a statement of policy regarding the 
exercise of certain discretionary functions available to them within the LGPS regulations. The 
policy statement must be kept under review and where revisions are made; the revised policy 
statement must be sent to the Fund and made readily available to all employees within the 
employing authority within one month of the effective date.

Any decisions made by an employing authority affecting an employee's rights to membership or 
entitlement to benefits must be notified to the employee in writing.

  Notification of Employee's Rights

  Internal Disputes Resolution Procedures (IDRP)

Each employing authority is required to nominate and name the person to whom applications 
under Stage 1 of the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedures should be made. The name, job 
title and contact details of this nominated person must be kept current with the Fund.

  Computer Links

The Fund will, to appropriate large employers, provide the software, hardware and 
communication facilities in order for employing authority staff to produce retirement estimates and 
enquire on their employee's record of membership. 

  
The Fund will ensure that the Pensions Administration computer system is available for use 
during normal office hours with the exception of any necessary scheduled maintenance of the 
system.

DRAFT

Page 34



Page 7 of 22

Fund and Employer Responsibilities

The LGPS Regulations identifies a number of responsibilities for the Fund and Employers.

NEW APPOINTMENTS Header

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To ensure that pensions information is included as 
part of any induction process.

To provide to employers on request appropriate 
information/forms for inductions.

To provide each new employee with an LGPS 
booklet and application form, either with their 
contract or within two weeks of starting work.

To update pension information in accordance 
with regulatory changes and provide sufficient 
stock within five weeks of request by the 
employer.

NEW STARTERS Header

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY

To ensure that all employees subject to automatic 
admission are brought into the LGPS from the date 
of appointment, and provide the Pensions Team 
each month with details of their start date by 
electronic interface, monthly return or YourFund 
starter form. 

To accurately record and update associated 
member records on the pension administration 
system.

To assist the Fund in ensuring that all new starters 
complete the Pension Membership Form 
containing information including National Insurance 
Number, Date of Birth and Home Address to the 
Fund within 1 calendar month of the employee's 
first pay date.

To apply for any Transfer Value details within 10 
working days of receipt of all the relevant 
information from the member and to produce a 
Membership Certificate and forward to 
member's home address, within thirteen weeks 
of joining the LGPS, as stated within the 
Regulations.

Where there is more than one contract of 
employment with the same employer, each 
membership shall be maintained separately and 
the Fund notified.

To accurately record these member records on 
the pension administration system.

To send the Fund notification in agreed electronic 
or paper format of any eligible employees subject 
to automatic entry, who do not wish to join, or elect 
to leave the scheme within three months of 
appointment.

To accurately record and update member 
records on the pension administration system 
within 30 working days of receipt of the 
notification.

  Performance Standards are held within the following tables:

DRAFT

Page 35



Page 8 of 22

VALUATION & ANNUAL BENEFIT ILLUSTRATIONS

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY

To ensure that the Fund is informed of any changes 
in the circumstances of employees on YourFund or 
by agreed templates within 1 calendar month of the 
change.  
  
The changes include: 
  
Status: 

•  Change of Name 
•  Marital Status 
•  National Insurance Number 
•  Address 

  
Conditions of Service: 

•  Contractual Hours 
•  Employee Number and/or Post Number 
•  Date Joined Scheme (if adjusted) 

  
  

  
Each employer must ensure that the relevant 
contributions are deducted, if required. 
  
End of Year 
End of Year contribution return to be sent to the 
Fund by the 30th April. 
  
Employer to respond to End of Year queries within 
10 working days of request. 
  
  
  
 

  
To provide forms for recording any key change 
in circumstances and/or to provide a template 
for the secure submission of data electronically. 
  
To accurately record and update member 
records on the pension administration system 
within 30 working days of notification or any 
shorter period as requested by the employer 
with regard to specific requirements. 
  
To issue Annual Benefit Illustrations by the 31st 
August of the year concerned for all members 
where the employer has sent end of year 
contribution return by 30th April of that same 
year. 
  
To calculate the LGPS member's Annual 
Allowance under HMRC Legislation and notify 
members, where appropriate by the 5th October 
of the year concerned or within 3 months of 
member's request.

DRAFT

Page 36



Page 9 of 22

RETIREMENT ESTIMATES

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To submit a request using the estimate form on  
YourFund  
 
(Only 1 estimate request per member per rolling 
year allowed, additional requests chargeable as 
per Charging Schedule  - Appendix A) 
 
For larger bulk estimates, requests can be made in 
alternative formats.

To issue the quotations within 15 working days 
of receiving the request or by separate agreed 
timescales for bulk requests. 
  
 

To provide large employers with the appropriate 
software to produce retirement estimates 
without the resource of Fund staff.

ACTUAL RETIREMENT

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To submit the appropriate YourFund form to the 
Fund at least one month before retirement where 
possible but in all cases no later than 15 working 
days after retirement date. 
  
Further information can be found in the Employers 
Guide: www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Employers.

To issue the member with a pre-retirement letter 
and information within 15 days of notification 
from employer. 
  
To issue a final retirement letter and make 
payment of any lump sum within 10 working 
days of receipt of all relevant forms and 
certificates subject to being after the date of 
retirement. 
 
To pay any pension payment on the last working 
day of each month, following retirement.DRAFT

Page 37



Page 10 of 22

ILL HEALTH RETIREMENTS

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY

To determine based on medical opinion and advice 
of one of the Administering Authorities approved 
Independent Medical Registered Practitioners 
(Independent Medical Registered Practitioners 
(IMRP)) whether an ill health award is to be made 
and determine which tier 1, 2 or 3. 
  
To submit the appropriate form to the Fund at least 
one month before retirement where possible but in 
all cases no later than 15 working days after 
retirement date

To calculate and pay required benefits inline 
with actual retirement timescales.

To keep a record of all Tier 3 ill health retirements, 
particularly in regard to the 18 month review of their 
gainful employment and any subsequent 
appointment with an (IMRP) approved by the 
Administration Authority for a further medical 
certificate. 
 
To inform the Administering Authority if and when 
the pension should cease.

To calculate and recover any overpayment of 
pension benefits

To review all Tier 3 ill health retirement cases prior 
to discontinuance at three years and notify member 
of cessation if applicable. 
  
Further information on ill health retirements can be 
found in the Employers Guide; 
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Employers

Update the member records as becoming a 
“pensioner member with deferred benefits from 
the date of the suspension”.

MEMBERS LEAVING EMPLOYMENT BEFORE RETIREMENT

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To notify the Fund of the employee's date and 
reason for cessation of membership and all other 
relevant information on approved forms within one 
month of the event.

To accurately record and update member 
records on the pension administration system. 
 
To inform members who leave the Scheme, who 
are not entitled to immediate payment of 
benefits, the options available and deferred 
benefit entitlement 

DRAFT

Page 38



Page 11 of 22

FORMER MEMBERS WITH DEFERRED BENEFITS

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To keep adequate records of the following for 
members who leave the Scheme with deferred 
benefits as early payment of benefits may be 
required: 

•  Name and Last known address 
•  National Insurance Number 
•  Payroll Number 
•  Date of Birth 
•  Last job including job description 
•  Salary details 
•  Date and reason for leaving 

On application from the former employee to have 
their deferred benefits paid early, a determination 
as to whether or not they are eligible for early 
payment on ill health grounds after seeking a 
suitable medical opinion from an (IRMP) approved 
by the Administering Authority, to determine 
whether benefits should be released early on 
compassionate grounds and whether any early 
retirement reduction should be waived.

To record and update member records on 
pension administration system. 
 
Issue deferred benefit notification within 2 
months of notification by employer. 
 
To provide former members, where possible, an 
annual benefit illustration of their deferred 
benefits updated by accrued annual pensions 
increase award. 
 
To provide estimates of benefits that may be 
payable and any resulting employer costs within 
15 working days of request.

DEATH IN SERVICE & TERMINAL ILLNESS

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To inform the Fund immediately of the death of an 
employee or when a member is suffering from a 
potentially terminal illness and provide details of 
the next of kin. 
Further information can be found in the Employers 
Guide; 
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Employers

To assist employers, employees and their next 
of kin in ensuring the pension options are made 
available and that the payment of benefits are 
expedited in an appropriate caring manner.

DRAFT

Page 39



Page 12 of 22

FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To pay the Fund all contributions deducted from 
payroll (not including AVCs) of its employees and 
employer contributions, no later than the 19th day 
(for cheque payments) or 22nd (for electronic 
payments) of the month following the period of 
deductions.   
  
To re-imburse the Fund for all pension payments 
made which are not to be borne by the Fund e.g. 
early retirement strain cost, compensatory added 
years, injury allowances under an agreed schedule. 
  
To ensure that all payments made to the Fund are 
supported by a completed Monthly Financial 
Return form which is available at 
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/employers 
  
Further information can be found in the Employer 
Guide:  
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/employers

To allocate the received contributions to each 
employers record. 
  
To monitor employer contribution payover as 
detailed in the Fund's Payment of Employee and 
Employer Pension Contributions Policy. 
 
Interest will be charged for late payment as 
detailed in Regulation 71(4) of the LGPS 
Regulations 2013. 
 

To apply the correct employer and employee 
contribution rate.  
  
To alter employee contribution rates at all other 
times in line with the employers' discretionary 
policy on adjusting employee contribution rates.

Inform each employer of any new contribution 
banding.

To pay all rechargeable items to the Fund within 
four weeks of the invoice.

The Fund will inform employers of any recharge 
items as they become due.

To pay the appropriate AVC provider AVC 
contributions deducted from payroll of its 
employees no later than the 19th day of the month 
following the period of deductions.

To record and update member records on 
pension administration system to show 
membership of AVC scheme.

ADDITIONAL BENEFITS (ARCs and ASBCs)
EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
To collect from the employee payroll, contributions 
and to arrange the prompt payment to the Fund no 
later than the 19th day (for cheque payments) or 
22nd (for electronic payments) of the month 
following deduction. 
  
More information can be found in the Employers 
Guide, www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/employers

To provide information on Additional Regular 
Contributions (ARCs) and Additional Survivor 
Benefit Contributions (ASBC's) on request to the 
LGPS member and employers and issue 
quotations within 15 working days.

DRAFT

Page 40



Page 13 of 22

DISCRETIONS POLICY

EMPLOYERS' RESPONSIBILITY FUND'S RESPONSIBILITY
Formulate, publish and update (as necessary) an 
Employer Discretions Policy as required under the 
LGPS Regulations and provide a copy using the 
Discretions template to the Fund.  More information 
can be found in the Employers Guide, 
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/employers 
See Appendix B for details of Discretions. 
  
This must be done within 30 days of policy being 
agreed by the appropriate officers or committee of 
the Employer OR any changes being made 
  
AND 
  
No later than 6 months after being informed by the 
Fund of any relevant change in the Regulations

Formulate, publish and update (as necessary) 
an Administering Authority Discretions Policy as 
required under the LGPS Regulations.  The 
Fund will keep the policies under review and will 
update within 6 months of any relevant change 
in the Regulations. 
  
Where the Fund does not have an up to date 
discretions policy from an Employer, the Fund 
will not process anything which involves 
Employers discretions.  This currently includes 
application of rule of 85 for members between 
55 and 60, additional pension awards, flexible 
retirement and waiving of actuarial reductions on 
any of these.

DRAFT

Page 41



Page 14 of 22

Fund Administration Performance - Task Standards
In all cases the standard quoted applies only once all necessary information and documents have 
been received

TASK STANDARD  
(WORKING DAYS)

Letters/emails acknowledged 10 Days 

New Starters processed  - electronic/paper 30 Days

Payment of transfer values 20 Days

Provision of inward transfer quotes 15 Days

Notification of deferred benefits 40 Days

Respond to members general postal/telephone enquiries  10 Days

Changes in details processed 30 Days

Estimates for divorce purposes processed 30 Days or 21 Days for Court 
Ordered requests

Refund Payments 15 Days

Deferred benefits calculated 40 Days

ARC Illustrations calculated 10 Days

Annuity quotations calculated 5 Days

New retirement letters sent detailing options 10 Days

New retirement benefits processed for payment following receipt of 
election 5 Days

Deferred benefits processed for payment following receipt of election 20 Days

Notification of death processed 5 Days 

Processing of survivor pensions   5 Days

Processing of death grants 5 Days

Estimate requests processed 15 Days

The annual figures for the Fund performance measures across all employers will be monitored 
by the Local Pensions Board and Pension Fund Committee and reported in the Annual Report.

DRAFT

Page 42



Page 15 of 22

Audit

Benchmarking

The Fund is subject to an annual audit of its processes and internal controls. Employers are 
expected to fully comply with any requests for information from both internal and approved 
external auditors. Any subsequent recommendations will be considered and where appropriate 
implemented with Employing authority cooperation

The Fund will regularly monitor its costs and service performance by benchmarking with other 
administering authorities. Details of the costs of administration, quality measures and 
standards of performance will be monitored by the Pension Fund Committee, the Local 
Pensions Board and a summary will be published in the Annual Report.

Employer Performance Reporting

The Pension Fund Committee will monitor regularly the key performance measures.  The Fund 
will seek, at the earliest opportunity, to work closely with employers in identifying areas of poor 
performance, provide the necessary training and development to put in place appropriate 
processes to improve the level of service into the future. 
  
In the event of continued poor performance and a lack of any evidence of measures being 
taken to achieve improvement by an employing authority the Fund will seek to recover any 
additional costs arising.   
  
The Fund may also charge for other services, details of all the charges that apply are provided 
in Appendix A. 
  
Any third party costs or regulatory fines incurred by the Fund as a consequence of 
administrative failures or poor performance by the employing authority will be recovered from 
the employer. These may include fines imposed by the Courts or the Pensions Ombudsman 
and additional charges in respect of actuarial fees, legal fees, third party computer charges 
and additional printing and distribution costs. 
 

As part of this Pensions Administration Strategy the Fund will develop, with employer 
consultation, arrangements for quarterly reporting on key performance measures as contained 
in section 6 of this document. 
  
This approach to reporting will facilitate early engagement with employers and also provide a 
mechanism for service level review and recognition of best practice.

Poor Performance

DRAFT

Page 43



Page 16 of 22

      In dealing with poor performance the Fund will: 
  
•    Write to the employer setting out the area(s) of poor performance; 
•    meet with the employing authority, to discuss area(s) of poor performance and how these   

can be addressed; 
•    issue formal written notice, where no improvement is demonstrated by the employing 

authority or where there has been a failure to take agreed action by the employing authority; 
•    make a claim for cost recovery, taking account of time and resources in resolving the  
     specific area(s) of poor performance; 
•    will report any claim for the cost of recovery to the Pension Fund Committee at the next   

available meeting and may form part of the administration report in the Fund's published 
Annual Report; 

•    Report the employer to the Pensions Regulator.

  Overriding Legislation
In performing the role of administering the LGPS, The Fund and Employers will comply with the 
overriding legislation, including: 
  
          •   the General Data Protection Regulations 
          •   the Occupational Pensions Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 1986; 
          •   the Public Pensions Pensions Act  
          •   any Transitional Regulations currently in place; 
          •   the Discretionary and Compensation Regulations 2006; 
          •   the Data Protection Act 2018; 
          •   the Freedom of Information Act 2000; 
          •   the Equality Act 2010; 
          •   the Finance Act 2004; 
          •   Health and Safety Legislation; 
          •   Employment Rights Act 1998; 
          •   HMRC Legislation and 
          •   Current Government Actuaries Department Guidance 
  
and any future amendments to the above legislation.

Standards of Data

DRAFT

Page 44



Page 17 of 22

The statement outlines the Fund's policy on: 
        •    Information to members, representatives and employers; 

•    The format, frequency and method of distributing such information; 
•    The promotion of the Scheme to prospective members and their employing    

authorities 
  

The policy can be accessed on the Dorset County Pension Fund website: 
www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/In-the-Scheme/Publications

Dorset Council has delegated to the Pension Fund Committee various powers and duties in 
respect of its administration of the Fund.This statement sets out the scheme of delegation and 
the terms of reference, structure and operational procedures of the delegation. 
  
The policy can be accessed on the Dorset County Pension Fund website: 

https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Investments-Governance/Responsible-Investment

Governance Policy

The LGPS Regulations require every employing authority to: 
           •    issue a written policy statement on how it will exercise the various discretions provided 
               by the LGPS; 
          •     keep it under review; 
          •     revise it as necessary. 
  
A list of the Employer discretions can be found in the Employers Guide:   

https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Employers

Employer Discretions

Associated Policy Statements
Communications Policy

Privacy Statement

Data Retention Policy

The fund collects and processes personal data about scheme members.  This policy explains the 
information the Fund holds and how it is used. 
  
The policy can be accessed on the Dorset County Pension Fund website: 

https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Accessibility/Privacy-and-Cookie-Policy.aspx 
 

This statement sets out the Fund's policy on the retention of personal data. 
  
The policy can be found on the Dorset County Pension Fund website: 
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Accessibility/Privacy-and-Cookie-Policy/Retention-
Policy.aspx 
 

DRAFT

Page 45

}{\rtlch\fcs1 \af1\afs22 \ltrch\fcs0 \f1\fs22\insrsid14112461\charrsid14503046 https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Investments/Responsible-Investment}{\rtlch\fcs1 \af1\afs22 \ltrch\fcs0 \f1\fs22\insrsid14112461 
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Accessibility/Privacy-and-Cookie-Policy.aspx
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Accessibility/Privacy-and-Cookie-Policy/Retention-Policy.aspx
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Accessibility/Privacy-and-Cookie-Policy/Retention-Policy.aspx


Page 18 of 22

The LGPS Regulations require every administering authority to: 
           •     issue a written policy statement on how it will exercise the various discretions provided   
                by the LGPS; 
           •     keep it under review; 
           •     revise it as necessary. 

  
A copy of the Dorset County Pension Fund Administering Authority Discretions can be found on 
the Dorset County Pension Fund website:  https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Scheme

Administering Authority Discretions 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME REGULATIONS 2013 EXCERPTS 
RELATED TO PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY DOCUMENTS

Exchange of information - Regulation 80  
  
(1). A Scheme employer must  -  
       a) inform the appropriate administering authority of all decisions made by the employer under regulation 
           72 (first instance decisions) or by an adjudicator appointed by the Scheme employer under regulation 
           74 (applications for adjudication of disagreements) concerning members; and 
       b) give that authority such other information as it requires for discharging its Scheme functions. 
  
(2). If  -  
       a) an administering authority makes any decision under regulations 72 (first instance decisions), 75 
           (decisions of the adjudicator) or 76 (reference of adjudications to administering authority) about a 

person for whom it is not the Scheme employer; and 
       b) information about that decision is required by the person's Scheme employer for discharging that 
           employer's Scheme functions, that authority must give that employer that information if asked to 
           supply it. 

  
 (3). Within three months of the end of each Scheme year, each Scheme employer must give a  
       statement to the appropriate administering authority giving the following details in respect of 
       each employee who has been an active member during the Scheme year - 
       a) the employee's name and gender;  

         b) the employee's date of birth and national insurance number;  
         c) a unique reference number relating to each employment in which the employee has been an 
             active member; and  
         d) the information relating to the employee for the Scheme year in question for each employment 
             which is specified in paragraph (4).  
  

(4). The information required by paragraph (3)(d) is - 
       a) the dates of active membership;  
       b) the pensionable pay received and employee contributions deducted while regulation 9 (contributions)  
           applied;  
       c) the pensionable pay received and employee contributions deducted while regulation 10 (temporary  
           reduction in contributions) applied;  
       d) any contributions by the employer in relation to the employee's pensionable pay;  
       e) any contributions by employee or employer under regulation 16 (additional pension contributions);  
        f) any contributions by employee or employer under regulation 17 (additional voluntary contributions).

DRAFT

Page 46



Page 19 of 22

 Pension administration strategy - Regulation 59 
        
(1). An administering authority may prepare a written statement of the authority's policies in  
      relation to such of the matters mentioned in paragraph (2) as it considers appropriate (“its 
      pension administration strategy”) and, where it does so, paragraphs (3) to (7) apply. 
  
(2). The matters are  -  
       a) procedures for liaison and communication with employers in relation to which it is the  
           administering authority (“its scheme employers”); 
       b) the establishment of levels of performance which the administering authority and its Scheme  
           employers are expected to achieve in carrying out their Scheme functions by  -  

 i. the setting of performance targets, 
 ii. the making of agreements about levels of performance and associated matters, or 
 iii. such other means as the administering authority considers appropriate; 

       c) procedures which aim to secure that the administering authority and its Scheme employers  
     comply with statutory requirements in respect of those functions and with any agreement about  
     levels of performance; 

       d) procedures for improving the communication by the administering authority and its Scheme 
           employers to each other of information relating to those functions;  
       e) the circumstances in which the administering authority may consider giving written notice to any of 
           its Scheme employers under regulation 70 (additional costs arising from Scheme employer's level  
           of performance) on account of that employer's unsatisfactory performance in carrying out its  
           Scheme functions when measured against levels of performance established under sub- 
           paragraph (b);  
        f) the publication by the administering authority of annual reports dealing with - 
       i. the extent to which that authority and its Scheme employers have achieved the levels of   
          performance established under sub-paragraph (b), and  
                 ii. such other matters arising from its pension administration strategy as it considers 
                     appropriate; and  
        g) such other matters as appear to the administering authority after consulting its Scheme  
            employers and such other persons as it considers appropriate, to be suitable for inclusion in that  
            strategy. 
  
 (3).  An administering authority must  -  
         a) keep its pension administration strategy under review; and 
         b) make such revisions as are appropriate following a material change in its policies in relation 
             to any of the matters contained in the strategy. 
  
(4).  In preparing or reviewing and making revisions to its pensions administration strategy,   
       an administering authority must consult its scheme employers and such other persons as it  
       considers appropriate. 
  
(5).  An administering authority must publish  - 
        a) its pension administration strategy; and 
        b) where revisions are made to it, the strategy as revised. 
  
(6).  When an administering authority publishes its pension administration strategy, or that   
        strategy as revised, it must send a copy of it to each of its employers and to the Secretary  
        of State as soon as is reasonably practicable. 
  
 (7).  An administering authority and its Scheme employers must have regard to the pension   
        administration strategy when carrying out their functions under these Regulations. 
  
 (8).  In this regulation references to the functions of an administering authority include, where  
        applicable, its functions as a Scheme employer.

DRAFT

Page 47



Page 20 of 22

     
Additional costs arising from Scheme employer's level of performance 
- Regulation 70  
       
(1). This regulation applies where, in the opinion of an administering authority, it has incurred  
        additional costs which should be recovered from a Scheme employer because of that  
        employer's level of performance in carrying out its functions under these Regulations. 

  
   (2). The administering authority may give written notice to the Scheme employer stating - 
          (a) the administering authority's reasons for forming the opinion mentioned in paragraph (1);  
          (b) the amount the authority has determined the Scheme employer should pay under regulation     
               69(1)(d) (payments by Scheme employers to administering authorities) in respect of those costs  
               and the basis on which the specified amount is calculated; and  
          (c) where the administering authority has prepared a pension administration strategy under  
               regulation 59, the provisions of the strategy which are relevant to the decision to give the notice 
               and to the matters in sub-paragraphs (a) or (b). 

  
  

Interest on late payments by Scheme employers - Regulation 71 
  
   (1).  An administering authority may require a Scheme employer or former Scheme employer  
           from which any payment is due under regulations 67 to 70 (employer's contributions or  
           payments) is overdue to pay interest on that amount. 
  
   (2).  The date on which any amount due under regulations 67 (employer's contributions), 68 
          (employer's further payments), 70 (additional costs arising from Scheme employer's level of 
          performance) is overdue is one month from the date specified by the administering authority  
          for payment. 
  
   (3).  The date on which any amount due under regulation 69 (payment by Scheme employers to  
           administering authorities) (other than an extra charge payable under regulation 68 and  
           referred to in regulation 69(1)(b)) is overdue is the day after the date when that payment is 
           due. 
  
   (4).  Interest payable under this regulation must be calculated at one per cent above base rate on 
          a day to day basis from the due date to the date of payment and compounded with three- 
          monthly rests 

  
  

Overriding legislation dictates minimum standards that Pension Schemes should meet in providing 
certain pieces of information to the various associated parties  - not least of which the Scheme member.
DRAFT

Page 48



Page 21 of 22

Appendix A - Charging Schedule

Failure to notify the Fund of new starters 
with full information within 1 month of their 
start date

£50 per case

Failure to notify the Fund of changes in 
status, conditions of service and absence of 
employees within 1 month of the change

£50 per case

Failure to notify the Fund of any member 
leaving the Scheme (termination of 
employment or opting-out) within 1 month of 
the event

£50 per case

Failure to notify the Fund of any retirement 
within 15 days of retirement date £50 per case

Where as a result of the Employer's/Payroll 
Providers failure to notify the Fund of a 
retirement interest becomes payable on any 
lump sum or death grant paid, the Fund will 
recharge the total amount of interest to the 
Employer/Payroll Provider

Interest calculated in accordance with 
Regulation 71 of the LGPS Regulations 

2013

Failure to notify the Fund of the death in 
service of a member within 10 working days 
of the Employer receiving notification

£250 per case

Failure to pay over the monthly contributions 
to the Fund by the 22nd of the month 
following deduction of the contributions

Interest calculated on a daily basis equal to 
the Bank of England Base Rate plus 1%

Failure to provide the Fund with the End of 
Year contribution return by 30th April

£50 per working day from day after required 
date to date return is received

Failure to respond to requests for End of 
Year information to resolve queries within 
10 working days of Fund request

£50 per query

Estimate requests in excess of 1 required in 
a rolling year

£100 per estimate request plus VAT per 
additional request

Failure to pay invoices from the Fund within 
the prescribed payment period

Interest calculated on a daily basis equal to 
the Bank of England Base Rate plus 1%

DRAFT

Page 49



Page 22 of 22

Write to us at: 
  
 Dorset County Pension Fund 

County Hall 
Dorchester 
Dorset    Tel:    01305 224845 
DT1 1XJ   Fax:    01305 224049 
  

Email: pensionshelpline@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
Web:   www.yourpension.org.uk/dorset

Contact Details

Notes to Charging Schedule 
  
•    Notifications of new starters, changes, absences, leavers, retirements and death in service   
     must give full information as detailed in the Employer's Guide:   

 www.yourpension.org.uk/Dorset/Employers  
  
•    Regulation 71 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 states that interest must be calculated at one 
     per cent above base rate on a day to day basis from the due date to the date of payment 
     and compounded with three-monthly rests.  If late payment of a lump sum or death grant 
     occurs as a result of a failure by the scheme member or scheme member's representative 
     to provide the information to the Fund, the Fund will be liable for the payment of any interest 
     due. 

 

V.3 - Nov 2019

DRAFT

Page 50



 

Dorset County Pension Fund

2019 LGPS Valuations –key issues – report by the Fund actuary

The 2019 valuations are now in full swing and there are a number of themes and issues that are emerging 
across all Funds including the Dorset Fund. 

As ever there is some good news, some bad news and some other issues that could only be categorised as ugly.

The Good

In terms of crunching the numbers then the data is a lot better then at 2016 – the first valuation of the new 
CARE scheme introduced in 2014.  Funds and in particular the Dorset Fund have been working hard cleaning 
their data.

But it’s not just data is better.  Funds continued to achieve strong positive asset returns in the 3 years to March 
2019.  Some quite considerable variation though with returns ranging from about 8% p.a. to 12% p.a.  The 
Dorset Fund return was around 11% per annum.

So any other good news?  

As has been widely reported there has been a slowdown in the rate of improvement in longevity. This might not 
sound like good news but it is for some - undertakers and pension funds are the more obvious benefactors.  
With the help of our longevity team we have been analysing the mortality experience of our LGPS Funds 
including the Dorset Fund.  So as at 2019 mortality rates are generally higher than we were projecting back in 
2016 and future projections have also been scaled back.  Mortality is still improving – we are all still living 
longer – but maybe not just as long as previously thought.  So Funds are now projected to pay out less pension 
benefits than previously thought.

The Bad

Of course it’s never all good news.

The slowdown in longevity improvements will lead to less being paid out than before.  However forward 
projections of inflation have increased meaning more expected to get paid out than before.  Overall one 
probably cancels out the other.

Strong positive asset returns are of course great – provided you had some assets at the start.  Not so great if 
you still need to buy some – much more expensive than before means we need more cash to buy the same 
assets.  It’s a bit like the property market – mums and dads feeling a bit wealthier as property prices increase 
but the kids looking to buy needing more cash to get on the property ladder.

LGPS Funds are of course still accruing new liabilities and need to buy new assets to fund these liabilities.  So 
this means we need more cash to buy these more expensive assets to meet these new liabilities.  This all gets 
reflected in the determination of those discount rates that everyone loves but never really understands.  So the 
biggest part of most employers’ contributions – the so called “primary rate” – the cost of future accrual has 
increased albeit not as much as it might have done thanks to the slowdown in longevity improvements.

So overall how does it all stack up?

Page 51



 

Funding levels will be up – as expected but are likely to be quite a bit higher than expected – the extra asset 
returns and longevity changes will have outpaced the increase in inflation and lower discount rates.  In the 
Dorset Fund the funding level has increased from 83% to 92% with the deficit reducing from £452m to £255m.

So higher funding levels usually means lower deficits and reductions in deficit contributions.

However primary rates have increased thanks to higher inflation, lower future return expectations as reflected in 
discount rates net of the longevity expectations.  For the Dorset Fund the average primary rate has increased 
from15.6% to 17.7% of pay.

So when we add it all together where are we and will we see any reduction in employers’ total contributions?

It’s a question we get all the time – what does it take to actually reduce employer contributions?  It’s a simple 
question with a not so simple answer. As ever – it depends on a number of factors.  Funding level does come 
into it but so too does the existing level of contribution.  

In the long term the cost of the LGPS to employers is probably somewhere in region the 15% to 20% of pay.  

So a Fund with a 102% funding level with employers paying 18% of pay – a reduction is unlikely as it wouldn’t 
take much to get back into negative territory and a not insignificant risk of having to increase contributions at 
the next valuation having just reduced them.  A Fund on a funding level of 98% with employers paying 35% of 
pay – a very modest reduction is more likely as still might be okay in 3 years’ time even if funding levels decline.  

The ugly

The ugly stuff is mainly the regulatory uncertainty – the well intentioned if flawed and now paused cost 
management process, section 13 valuations and of course the McCloud case.  Of all the assumptions actuaries 
have to make the outcomes of these are probably some of the most challenging as they are more political and 
legal in nature and so more difficult to predict.  

Once the valuations are all put to bed and we reflect back on the financial status of the LGPS and in particular 
the Dorset Fund at the 2019 valuations the conclusion will be that the LGPS is in a pretty good place.  More 
assets than ever – but equally more liabilities than ever - but the gap between the two closing.  The challenge is 
that the cost of funding new liabilities has increased but overall the total cost of past and future liabilities across 
the LGPS should be relatively stable.  This will not of course be the case for all of the 16,000 employers in the 
LGPS but will be for many.

Graeme Muir
Dorset County Pension Fund Actuary
Barnett Waddingham
November 2019

Page 52



1

Equitable Life transfer to Utmost 
Life and Pensions 

Requirement to provide an AVC arrangement 
 
LGPS administering authorities are legally obliged to provide access to an in-house 
Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) arrangement for their members. This was 
an overriding requirement between 6 April 1988 and 5 April 2006 but is now only a 
requirement under the LGPS regulations themselves. 

The overriding requirement was provided for by:
 section 12 of the Social Security Act 1986 from 6 April 1988 until 6 February 

1994
 section 111 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993 from 7 February 1994 until 5 

April 2006. 

The Scheme requirement is currently provided for by regulation 17 of the LGPS 
Regulations 2013: 

17. -(1) An active member may enter into arrangements to pay additional voluntary 
contributions ("AVCs") or to contribute to shared cost additional voluntary contribution 
arrangements ("SCAVCs") in respect of an employment.

(2) The arrangements mentioned in paragraph (1) must be a scheme established under 
an agreement between the appropriate administering authority and a body approved 
for the purposes under the Finance Act 2004
("the AVC provider"), registered in accordance with that Act and administered in 
accordance with the Pensions Act 2004

In predecessor regulations the requirement has been provided for by:

 Regulation 60 of the LGPS Regulations 1997
 Regulation 25 of the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008

Equitable Life 

Because of the legal requirement mentioned above, all LGPS administering 
authorities have entered into arrangements with one or more AVC providers. When 
the requirement was first introduced Equitable Life were a big player in the market 
and many funds appointed Equitable Life as their sole or joint AVC provider. 

In 1999, Equitable Life launched court proceedings to enable it to force policyholders 
to accept bonus cuts. It won the first stage of its battle only to lose in the Court of 
Appeal and then the House of Lords. 

Following the House of Lords ruling in July 2000 Equitable Life decided it was in the 
interest of members to find a purchaser for the Society. This failed and on 8 
December 2000 it announced that it would not write any new business – it has been 
operating in run-off since then. 

Page 53



2

At this time LGPS administering authorities took action regarding:

 whether to retain Equitable Life as an AVC provider, and 
 whether to appoint another AVC provider either in substitution for, or as an 

addition to, Equitable Life. 

As a result, most LGPS administering authorities only hold AVC policies with 
Equitable Life in respect of historical AVCs but we think the amount invested across 
the whole of the LGPS is still significant. 

The Proposal
 
On 15 June 2018, Equitable Life announced that it has entered into an agreement to 
transfer its business to Utmost Life and Pensions (previously Reliance Mutual). 

Equitable Life’s Proposal is made up of two main parts:

1. The Scheme – 
- increasing with-profits investments with an immediate one-off ‘Uplift’
- removing any investment guarantees, and
- converting with-profits policies to unit-linked investments

2. The Transfer - 
To transfer to Utmost all of the business of Equitable Life except for certain 
excluded policies. 

The Proposal involves three legal processes: 

(i) the ‘Scheme’, which is the legal process which would make the changes to 
the with-profits policies

(ii) the Change to Articles, which would make Utmost the Equitable Life’s only 
Member

(iii) the Transfer, which is the legal process which would transfer the transferring 
business to Utmost. 

In August 2019, Equitable Life wrote to all the LGPS administering authorities 
affected by the transfer (about 45) to advise them that as both ‘Scheme Policy 
Holders’ and ‘Eligible Members’ they are able to vote:
 

1. to approve the ‘Scheme’ 
2. to ‘Change the Articles’ 

Administering authorities are also able to object to the transfer of Equitable Life’s 
business to Utmost Life and Pensions (which does not require a vote but does need 
the approval of the High Court). 
 
The deadline for the receipt of postal and online votes is 10am on 30 October 2019. 

Page 54

http://www.equitable.co.uk/media/47903/press-release-final-150618.pdf


3

Key points

1. Scheme Policyholders cannot choose to opt out of the Scheme. The Scheme will 
only go ahead if the statutory majorities are obtained in the vote on the Scheme. 
These are:

 a majority of more than 50% of the Scheme Policyholders vote in favour of the 
Scheme, and

 the Scheme Policyholders who vote in favour of the Scheme hold 75% or 
more of the total Voting Value of all the Scheme Policyholders who vote. 

2. The Change to the Articles requires approval of at least 75% of the votes cast. If 
the Change to the Articles is not passed the Scheme will not be implemented. 

3. LGPS administering authorities are able to split their vote in a way that 
represents the preferences of their members. 

4. The Scheme will also not become effective unless Utmost obtains a Changes in 
Control Approval from the Regulators (the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) 
and the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)), as a result of them becoming the 
sole member of Equitable.

5. If enough Scheme Policyholders vote for the Scheme and the Change to Articles 
is passed, Equitable Life intends to return to the High Court to ask it to approve 
(or “sanction”) the Scheme and the Transfer. This hearing is likely to take place 
on 22 November 2019. 

6. Although there is no policyholder vote on the Transfer, all policyholders of the 
Equitable are able to raise concerns or object if they believe they will be 
adversely affected by the Transfer.

7. If the Proposal does not become effective, no Scheme Policyholder would 
receive any uplift and Equitable would continue to run as it does currently. They 
would try to find a different solution to the challenges they currently face, which 
they state include:

o policyholders choosing to retire or take their benefits later than Equitable 
expect

o regulatory requirements to set aside assets to provide for risks, rather 
than distribute them to their With-Profits Policyholders

o Equitable becoming too small to function efficiently or cost effectively, and
o other risks that materialise which mean that future policy payments have 

to decrease. 

Full details about the Proposal is available on Equitable Life’s website.  

Page 55

https://www.equitable.co.uk/ProposalAug2019/indexnews.html#latest-news


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Dorset Council KPI Report - CMS stats - All Teams

Performance 2018/19 - report for period :
August 20 19 - 
October 2019

Number of complaints received 2

Admissions (DR01 & DR01W) 1262 98.97% 30 1249
Transfers In Quote (DR02E, DR02R, DR03E & DR03R ) 201 100.00% 15 201
Transfers In Actual  (DR02A & DR03A) 87 95.40% 20 83
Transfers Out (DR09E & DR10E) 141 94.33% 10 133
Transfers Out actual (DR09A & DR10A) 92 90.22% 10 83
Estimates Employee (DR08) 223 99.55% 15 222
Estimates Employer (DR22, DR22I, DR22R & DR22W) 53 100.00% 15 53
Retirements (DR14, DR14W & DR12 & DR12I & DR14I & DR22I, DR14T, DR12A, DR14A) 788 97.34% 5 767
Deferred Benefits (DR11 & DR11W) 853 99.18% 40 846
Refunds (DR16 & DR16W) 1056 99.05% 15 1046
Deaths (DR23) 78 100.00% 5 78
Correspondence (DR24 & DR24A) 690 96.81% 30 668
Total 5524 98.28% 5429

Cases 
completed on 
time or earlyTop 10 detail - cases completed on time

Completed in 
period Performance KPI (days)

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT PREPARED FOR 

Dorset County Pension Fund - Pension Fund 
Committee 

 November 2019

 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

Alan Saunders, MJ Hudson Allenbridge 
alan.saunders@mjhudson.com 
www.mjhudson.com 

 
 
 

THIS DOCUMENT IS DIRECTED ONLY AT THE PERSON(S) IDENTIFIED ABOV
ON THE BASIS THAT THEY ARE A PROFESSIONAL INVESTOR OR 
PROFESSIONAL CUSTOMER. IT IS ISSUED BY ALLENBRIDGE. ALLENBRIDGE IS 
A TRADING NAME OF ALLENBRIDGEEPIC INVESTMENT ADVISERS LIMITED 
AND ALLENBRIDGE LIMITED WHICH ARE ALL APPOINTED REPRESENTATIVE OF 
ALLENBRIDGE CAPITAL LIMITED WHICH IS AUTHORISED AND REGULATED BY THE 
FINANCIAL CONDUCT AUTHORITY (FCA). 

  

INVESTMENT OUTLOOK 

Markets made modest gains in Q3 after a small wobble over the slowdown in global economic growth. 
The current quarter has continued this better tone, supported by relaxation of monetary policy in the 
US and EU, by some easing of tension in the US-China trade dispute and by renewed hope of a Brexit 
deal. Uncertainty has returned of course to UK assets with the announcement of a December general 
election though sterling , which has recovered a lot of ground and equities are holding firm so far. 

The strength of equities this year- global equities up over 20%- seems at variance with the weakening 
economic outlook but markets are looking ahead as usual. This is mirrored to some extent in bond 
markets. Last quarter, we observed how bond yields had fallen yet again to exceptional low levels with 
talk of a global deflationary spiral. Yields are now off these lows. Yet again, central banks are expected 
to underwrite the economy and prevent such an outcome though they are running out of ammunition. 

The key to markets therefore will be the economic data of the next few months, though the UK will be 
driven by the election result and the Brexit outcome. 

ECONOMY 

As we said in the last report, there is major divergence between the US and the rest of the OECD. The 
US slowdown has been muted and the Fed has indicated it will now pause on interest rate cuts after the 
third one this year. That suggests its stance is based on a mid-cycle correction rather than averting 
recession. The economic background is still quite supportive of Trump’s re-election campaign with 
low inflation and full employment but that could change if manufacturing gets hit by reduced China 
exports.

Draghi’s last act at the ECB was to lower rates further into negative territory and his successor is 
unlikely to change the direction of policy. With the German economy a wounded beast at present, 

Page 60



3 
 

the outlook for Europe is grim with growth no better than 1-1.5%, which explains perhaps Merkel’s 
desire to do a deal on Brexit. Interestingly, the new German finance minister has indicated a more 
flexible approach towards EU banking union, suggesting that deposit reinsurance might be something 
worth consideration. If Germany were to consider a fiscal stimulus, with a focus on infrastructure, 
following the UK parties’ promises, there might be more grounds for optimism but the EU is too 
dependent on being rescued by the global economy.

The UK avoided recession in Q3 but is operating at stall speed with growth around 1%. Sterling was 
buoyed by the news that the government has agreed a new Brexit deal but that news has of course been 
somewhat dissipated by the major uncertainty regarding the election result. If Johnson wins a clear 
majority, then the deal could be passed by January at which stage negotiations on a trade deal 
commence. It seems optimistic that this can be achieved before the transition agreement expires at the 
end of 2020 and markets will doubtless start to agonise on the possibility of no agreement and a resort 
to WTO rules. If of course the election outcome is different, then forecasting becomes difficult but the 
current uncertainty will surely persist.

What is striking about both the major parties’ pledges is the major fiscal boost promised, to an extent 
regarded as irresponsible by fiscal hawks. The share of public expenditure / GNP will rise from 38% to 
41.5-43.5%, which will act as a strong old style Keynesian boost to the economy. The Bank of England 
will be watching with interest. It has just announced no change in interest rates but with a tight labour 
market and wages now rising in real terms by some 2%, it might be concerned about inflation. It is not 
inconceivable that rates could be rising in a year’s time. That might depend on how sterling behaves. A 
fall based on a bad Brexit outcome and with fiscal stimulus might push inflation up well beyond the 
current 2%.

Elsewhere, China is slowing but still reporting 6% growth with the authorities’ fine tuning the 
economy through active monetary policy. Japan continues to cruise slowly along with weak growth 
and weak inflation. The oil price has steadied at around $ 60/bbl and so inflationary pressures remain 
weak .The global deflation story described in the last report has not vanished. It is on hold.

MARKETS

Global equities rose some 4% in sterling terms in Q3, led by the US with emerging markets trailing. 
The UK rose only 1% and year to date is trailing global equities with total returns of 14% against 
21%.with the US returning 25%. Sterling weakness accounted for some3-4% of the divergence but yet 
again the UK is underperforming. Small cap stocks have been especially weak with their dependence 
on the domestic economy. Interestingly, long dated gilts and index linked outperformed equities, the 
same as last year.

It may seem surprising that the S&P 500 is making new highs given the gloomy background and that 
global equities are back to the peak of early 2018 before trade concerns and Brexit hit sentiment. 

Page 61



4 
 

It does suggest markets believe we can avoid global recession and/or a financial shock such as in 
2008.The central bank support operation clearly help sentiment and the US economy is amazingly 
robust. The corporate profits story may be a clue. US earnings have declined for three consecutive 
quarters validating the weak market of 2018 but Q3 came in above expectations and market consensus 
is that the corporate earnings story will be positive in 2020, in the US at least. Market valuation is on 
the high side but not excessive. The trailing P/E in the UK is 16 for example. We seem to be having a 
fairly typical yearend rally but markets may be getting ahead of themselves and may be disappointed,

Exceptionally low interest rates – negative in Europe- drive asset prices higher of course. This has been 
seen in bond markets also. UK gilts will give something back in Q4 if yields stay higher- 10 year 
yields at 0.6% against 0.4%-but corporate bonds and high yield bonds have had a very good year with 
returns of 12-14%. Credit spreads may widen out of course if economic uncertainty picks up. 

The only asset which has had a poor year is UK commercial property where capital values appear 
stalled but returns are sustained by the attractive rental yield. The yield advantage over gilts is 
exceptional now but that is not enough in itself to offset concerns such as Brexit and the decline of the 
High street, while industrial properties have performed so well their yield advantage is diminished.

ASSET ALLOCATION 

The portfolio is well diversified and probably more conservative in its asset allocation than some in 
LGPS .A lower weighting to equities than some will have cost performance this year as diversified 
growth funds and multi- credit will not have done so well and nor has property. The move away from 
UK to overseas equities has undoubtedly helped over the last two years though hedging half the 
exposure has not helped when sterling has weakened. Its recovery in the current quarter will reverse 
the negative effect of the previous quarter. 

 The LDI allocation is of course a hedge but it has produced good returns over the years mainly 
because of the impact of falling gilt yields though there has been some gain from higher inflation. Now 
there is a threat to our inflation hedge because of the possible long term switch away from RPI to 
something called CPIH. This matters because the scheme liabilities are now in CPI rather than RPI 
which is used to hedge inflation risk.  Forward markets are beginning to price in a possible switch 
which would mean potential losses on RPI swaps. Meanwhile, to confuse matters, the government 
continues to issue RPI index linked bonds. The conclusion in the short term is that it would be 
mistaken to increase the inflation hedge and there may be a case for reducing it or rebalancing the 
hedge to reduce the long duration hedge which is most vulnerable.

Shortly, the investment strategy will need to be reviewed as a consequence of the triennial actuarial 
valuation. It looks as though discount rates are falling some 0.5% which might, other things being 
equal, increase liabilities and deficits .As the scheme has derisked a fair amount, there is unlikely to be 
a significant realignment, though clearly the LDI hedging strategy will need review. 

Page 62



5 
 

RFOR FURTHER INFORMATION 

For further information, please contact Alan Saunders on 020 7079 1000 or at 
alan.saunders@mjhudson.com. 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Date of Meeting: 27 November 2019

Director: Aidan Dunn, Executive Director Corporate Development

Executive Summary:

The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the Pension Fund’s funding 
position, and the valuation and overall performance of the Fund’s investments as at 30 
September 2019.  The report provides a summary of the performance of all external 
investment managers and addresses other topical issues for the Fund that do not require a 
separate report.

Barnett Waddingham, the Fund’s actuary, have now completed their full assessment of the 
funding position for the triennial valuation as at 31 March 2019. The funding level is 
estimated to have improved from 83% as at 31 March 2016 to 92% as at 31 March 2019.

The estimated value of the Fund’s assets at 30 September 2019 was £3,139M compared 
to £3,023M at the start of the financial year.  The quarter saw rises in all listed equities 
markets, which drove a rise in the value of the Fund’s assets. 

The total return from the Fund’s investments over the financial year to 30 September 2019 
was 5.1%, compared to the combined benchmark return of 4.8%.  Over the last 12 months 
the Fund’s investments have returned 5.2%, below the Fund’s combined benchmark return 
of 5.9%.  

The Fund’s relative underperformance over the last year is partly a result of high cash 
balances that have built up as part of the cautious approach to market outlooks.  It is also 
driven by the managers with ‘cash plus’ or ‘absolute return’ benchmarks not directly linked 
to market returns.  The Fund’s currency hedging strategy also acts as a ‘drag’ on 
performance, at times when sterling depreciates against other major currencies, 
particularly the US dollar.

As at 30 September 2019, 45% of the Fund’s liabilities were hedged against inflation 
sensitivity through the Fund’s Liability Driven Investment (LDI) mandate with Insight 
Investment.

Equalities Impact Assessment:  

This report does not deal with any new strategies or polices that would trigger an impact 
assessment.

Budget: 

Not applicable.

Pension Fund Committee

Fund Administrator’s Report

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



Page 2 

Risk Assessment: 

The Fund assesses the risks of its investments in detail and considers them as part of the 
strategic allocation.  In addition, risk analysis is provided alongside the quarterly 
performance monitoring when assessing and reviewing fund manager performance.

Climate Implications:

The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement requires all external investment managers to 
consider and manage all financially material risks arising from environmental issues, 
including those associated with climate change.

Other Implications:  

None.

Recommendation:

That the Committee:
1) Review and comment upon the activity and overall performance of the Fund.
2) Note the progress in implementing the new strategic asset allocation.

Reason for Recommendation:

To ensure that the Fund has the appropriate management arrangements in place and are 
being monitored, and to keep the asset allocation in line with the strategic target.

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Listed Equities Report
Appendix 2: Corporate Bonds Report (RLAM)
Appendix 3: Multi Asset Credit (CQS)
Appendix 4: Property Report (CBRE)
Appendix 5: Liability Driven Investment (Insight) 

Background Papers:

Funding Strategy Statement June 2017
Investment Strategy Statement March 2018

Officer Contact: 

Name: David Wilkes, Service Manager for Treasury and Investments
Tel: 01305 224119
Email: investments@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Page 66



Page 3 

1. Funding Update 

1.1 The Fund’s actuary, Barnett Waddingham, undertakes a full assessment of the 
funding position every three years.  This was last completed as at 31 March 2016 
when the Fund had a funding level of 83% i.e. assets were estimated to be 83% of 
the value that they would have needed to be to pay for the expected benefits accrued 
to that date, based on the assumptions used.

1.2 The actuary has now completed its latest triennial review of the funding position as at 
31 March 2019, and the estimated funding level has improved to 92%.

1.3 In addition to the full triennial assessment, officers have asked Barnett Waddingham 
to carry out indicative updates on the funding position on a quarterly basis.  It is 
intended that this will provide a better understanding of movements in the Fund’s 
overall funding position between triennial valuations.  

1.4 Results for all scheme employers were received and shared with employers in 
November 2019.  The final certificate of the contribution rates applicable for all 
employers for 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23 must be issued by the actuary before 
31 March 2020 at the latest.

1.5 Committee members will receive a full update on the results of the latest valuation 
from Barnett Waddingham at the training day on 26 November 2019.

2. Asset Valuation Summary

2.1 The table below shows the Fund’s asset valuation by asset class at the beginning of 
the financial year and as at 30 September 2019, together with the target allocation as 
agreed at the meeting of the Committee on 13 September 2017.

Asset Class £M % £M % £M %
UK Equities 643.0 21.3% 642.8 20.5% 627.8 20.0%
Overseas Equities 703.0 23.3% 771.8 24.6% 690.6 22.0%
Emerging Markets Equities 98.2 3.2% 101.8 3.2% 94.2 3.0%
Total Listed Equities 1,444.2 47.8% 1,516.4 48.3% 1,412.6 45.0%
Corporate Bonds 214.4 7.1% 230.3 7.3% 188.3 6.0%
Multi Asset Credit 139.7 4.6% 142.7 4.5% 157.0 5.0%
Diversified Growth 176.1 5.8% 183.4 5.8% 251.1 8.0%
Infrastructure 138.7 4.6% 177.1 5.6% 157.0 5.0%
Private Equity 80.3 2.7% 93.9 3.0% 157.0 5.0%
Property 323.3 10.7% 321.9 10.3% 376.7 12.0%
Cash 105.1 3.5% 69.1 2.2% - 0.0%
F/X Hedging 0.7 0.0% 0.2 0.0% - 0.0%
Total Return Seeking Assets 2,622.5 86.7% 2,735.0 87.1% 2,699.6 86.0%
Liability Matching Assets 401.1 13.3% 404.1 12.9% 439.5 14.0%
Total Asset Valuation 3,023.6 100.0% 3,139.1 100.0% 3,139.1 100.0%

31-Mar-19 30-Sep-19 Target Allocation

Page 67



Page 4 

3. Implementation of changes to Strategic Asset Allocation

3.1 At its meeting on 13 September 2017, the Committee agreed a number of changes 
to the strategic asset allocation of the Fund.  The following paragraphs summarise 
progress in implementing these changes.

3.2 The new 5% allocation to Multi Asset Credit manager CQS was achieved in full with 
an investment of £135M on 1 December 2017. It was funded from a partial 
disinvestment from the corporate bonds mandate with RLAM (£120M) and existing 
cash balances (£15M).  This leaves the current allocation to Corporate Bonds as 
7.3% against the revised target of 6%.

3.3 The increased allocation to Diversified Growth Funds (DGF) was met in part by 
investing a further £50M in the Baring Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund in February 
2018 funded by partial disinvestment from the then internally managed UK equities 
portfolio. This leaves the current allocation to DGF as 5.8% against the revised target 
of 8%. This shortfall will be met when the Brunel DGF portfolio is open for 
investment, expected January/February 2020.

3.4 The total allocation to Listed Equities has reduced from 53% when the strategic 
allocation was agreed to 48% as at 30 September 2019, compared to the target of 
45%.  In July 2018, the internally managed passive UK equity portfolio, and the 
global equity investments managed by Allianz transitioned to Brunel portfolios 
managed by Legal and General Investment Management (LGIM).  In November 
2018, assets under management of external UK Equities manager AXA Framlington 
were transferred to the Brunel UK Equities Active portfolio.  

3.5 The increased allocations to infrastructure, private equity and property will be 
achieved if, and when, suitable opportunities arise with existing managers or through 
allocation to the appropriate Brunel portfolio as and when these become available. A 
commitment of 2.0% has been made to the Brunel Private Equity portfolio with £3.2M 
invested as at 30 September 2019, with a further 2.0% commitment to the Brunel 
Secured Income portfolio of which £2.9M had been invested by the end of 
September 2019.  Drawdowns against commitments will be funded from cash 
balances and/or further disinvestment from equities and corporate bonds.

3.6 For all other asset classes, where the current allocation is different to the new target, 
it is expected that the target will be achieved through allocation to the appropriate 
Brunel portfolio as and when these become available.  There will be a review of the 
strategic asset allocation now that the results of the triennial valuation are known. 

Page 68



Page 5 

4. Investment Performance Summary

4.1 The overall performance of the Fund’s investments to 30 September 2019 is 
summarised below (returns for three and five years are annualised figures).

1.8%

5.1% 5.2%

7.4%

8.9%

1.8%

4.8%

5.9%

7.8%

8.9%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

Quarter FYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

Fund Return  Benchmark Return

4.2 The Fund returned 1.8% for the three months to 30 September 2019, matching the 
combined benchmark.  Over the longer term, the Fund underperformed its 
benchmark over 1 year, returning an annualised 5.2% against the benchmark return 
of 5.9% and underperformed its benchmark over 3 years returning an annualised 
7.4% against the benchmark return of 7.8%. The Fund matched its combined 
benchmark over 5 years, returning an annualised 8.9%. 

4.3 The Fund’s relative underperformance over one year is partly a result of the high 
cash balances which we have allowed to develop as part of cautious approach to 
current market outlook.  It is also driven by the performance of managers who have 
‘cash plus’ or ‘absolute return’ benchmarks which are not directly linked to market 
returns, particularly over the shorter term.  The Fund’s currency hedging strategy 
also acts as a ‘drag’ on performance, at times when sterling depreciates against 
other major currencies, particularly the US dollar.

5. Performance by Asset Class and Investment Manager

UK Equities

5.1 In July 2018, the internally managed UK equity portfolio transferred to the Brunel UK 
Passive Equities portfolio managed by Legal & General Investment Management 
(LGIM).  In November 2018, assets under the management of AXA Framlington 
transferred to the Brunel UK Equities Active portfolio. The performance of the Fund’s 
external mangers is detailed in Appendix 1 and summarised in the tables below. 

Page 69



Page 6 

Brunel/LGIM Passive - £391.0m assets under management (AUM)

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 1.3% 1.3% 0.0%
Financial Year to Date 4.5% 4.6% -0.1%
12 months 2.8% 2.7% 0.1%
Since inception 0.9% 1.0% -0.1%

Brunel UK Active - £168.8m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 0.3% 1.3% -1.0%
Financial Year to Date 3.4% 4.6% -1.2%
Since inception 9.6% 10.8% -1.2%

Schroders - £54.0m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter -0.8% -1.2% 0.4%
Financial Year to Date 3.9% -0.3% 4.2%
12 months -8.0% -7.8% -0.2%
3 years p.a. 9.9% 3.0% 6.9%
5 years p.a. 11.1% 5.7% 5.4%
Since inception p.a. 9.9% 6.0% 3.9%

Global Developed Markets Equities

5.2 In July 2018, the holdings under the management of Allianz transferred to the Brunel 
Smart Beta portfolio managed by LGIM.  The performance of the Fund’s external 
global equities managers is detailed in Appendix 1 and summarised in the tables 
below.

Investec - £239.3m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 3.0% 3.8% -0.8%
Financial Year to Date 8.9% 10.6% -1.7%
12 months 6.4% 7.8% -1.4%
3 Years p.a. 11.4% 12.2% -0.8%
Since inception p.a. 14.1% 14.8% -0.7%

Wellington - £266.6m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 3.9% 3.8% 0.1%
Financial Year to Date 11.9% 10.6% 1.3%
12 months 7.9% 7.8% 0.1%
3 years p.a. 13.1% 12.2% 0.9%
Since inception p.a. 15.9% 14.8% 1.1%

Page 70



Page 7 

Brunel/LGIM Smart Beta - £158.7m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 4.9% 4.9% 0.0%
Financial Year to Date 11.5% 11.4% 0.1%
12 months 10.9% 11.0% -0.1%
Since inception 11.2% 11.4% -0.2%

Brunel/LGIM Smart Beta (Hedged) - £141.4m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 2.6% 2.6% 0.0%
Financial Year to Date 5.7% 5.7% 0.0%
12 months 4.7% 5.1% -0.4%
Since inception 6.1% 6.7% -0.6%

5.3 Relative performance in the quarter was above benchmark for Wellington but 
Investec were below their benchmark. Over twelve months Investec underperformed 
their benchmark by 1.4%, whilst Wellington outperformed by 0.1%. Since inception in 
December 2015 Wellington are above their benchmark whilst Investec are 
underperforming their benchmark.  

5.4 Please note that the Fund’s Global Equities managers have some exposure to UK 
equities (approximately 6-7% of assets under management). 

Emerging Markets Equities - £101.8m AUM

5.5 The performance of JP Morgan, the Fund’s emerging markets equities manager is 
detailed in Appendix 1 and summarised below.

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter -0.5% -1.1% 0.6%
Financial Year to Date 3.7% 1.9% 1.8%
12 months 4.5% 3.7% 0.8%
3 years p.a. 8.5% 7.9% 0.6%
5 years p.a. 8.9% 8.1% 0.8%
Since inception p.a. 5.7% 5.6% 0.1%

5.6 The quarter to 30 September 2019 saw emerging markets outperform its benchmark 
as both stock selection and country allocation contributed to relative returns.  Stock 
selection in Taiwan was one of the leading contributors to relative returns during the 
period.

Corporate Bonds - £230.4m AUM 

5.7 The performance of the Fund’s external Corporate Bonds manager, RLAM, is 
detailed in Appendix 2, and summarised below.

Page 71



Page 8 

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 4.6% 5.0% -0.4%
Financial Year to Date 7.5% 7.6% -0.1%
12 months 13.4% 13.6% -0.2%
3 years p.a. 5.4% 4.0% 1.4%
5 years p.a. 7.6% 7.0% 0.6%
Since inception p.a. 8.9% 8.8% 0.1%

5.8 The manager was under the benchmark for the quarter and 12 months but above the 
benchmark over all longer periods. 

Multi Asset Credit (MAC) - £142.7m AUM

5.9 The performance of the Fund’s external MAC manager, CQS, is detailed in Appendix 
3 and summarised below.

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 0.6% 1.2% -0.6%
Financial Year to Date 2.2% 2.4% -0.2%
12 months 2.9% 4.8% -1.9%
Since inception (Dec-17) 3.1% 4.7% -1.6%

5.10 The target for the CQS fund is cash (1 month LIBOR) plus 4% over the longer term, 
and this is used as the benchmark for the investment. 

Property - £321.9m AUM 

5.11 The performance of the Fund’s external property manager, CBRE, is detailed in 
Appendix 4, and summarised below.

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 0.8% 0.3% 0.5%
Financial Year to Date 1.5% 0.9% 0.6%
12 months 4.0% 2.1% 1.9%
3 years p.a. 6.8% 6.6% 0.2%
5 years p.a. 8.2% 7.7% 0.5%
Since inception p.a. 7.7% 7.6% 0.1%

5.12 Assets under the management of CBRE at 30 September were valued at £318.9m, 
with a further £3.0m in secured long income property funds under the management 
of Brunel.

Diversified Growth Funds (DGF) - £183.4m AUM

5.13 Diversified Growth Funds give fund managers total discretion over how and where 
they invest which means that the portfolio holds a wide range of investments against 
a diverse range of asset classes.  The objective of the Barings fund is to deliver 
‘equity like’ returns (over the long term) but with about 70% of the equity risk. The 
manager seeks to achieve out performance against a cash benchmark by focusing 
on asset allocation decisions.  

Page 72



Page 9 

5.14 The performance for Barings is summarised below.

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 1.6% 1.2% 0.4%
Financial Year to Date 4.2% 2.4% 1.8%
12 months 2.7% 4.9% -2.2%
3 years p.a. 4.1% 4.7% -0.6%
5 years p.a. 4.5% 4.6% -0.1%
Since inception p.a. 4.5% 4.6% -0.1%

5.15 The target for the Barings fund is cash (3 month LIBOR) plus 4% over the longer 
term and this is used as the benchmark for the investment.

Private Equity

5.16 Private Equity is an asset class that takes several years for commitments to be fully 
invested.  The table below summarises the commitment the Fund has made in total 
to each manager, the drawdowns that have taken place to date and the percentage 
of the total drawdown against the Fund’s commitment.  It also shows the distributions 
that have been returned to the Fund, the valuation as at 30 September 2019 and the 
total gains or losses on investments.

Private Equity Commitments, Drawdowns and Valuations

Manager Commitment Distribution Valuation Gain

£m £m % £m £m £m
HarbourVest 113.1 80.6 71% 75.8 55.7 50.9
Aberdeen Standard 79.9 58.2 73% 60.5 34.2 36.5
Brunel 60.0 3.2 5% 0.0 4.0 0.8
Total 253.0 142.0 56% 136.3 93.9 88.2

Drawndown  

5.17 In order to meet the target allocation, there is a requirement to keep committing to 
Private Equity funds.  Officers are in regular discussions with HarbourVest, Aberdeen 
Standard and the Brunel private markets team to identify further opportunities for 
investment.

5.18 The Fund has committed to investing with HarbourVest and Aberdeen Standard in 
their Private Equity ‘fund of funds’.  Private Equity is a long-term investment and as 
such the performance should be considered over the longer term.  Additionally, as 
the benchmark used for these investments is the FTSE All Share index and the 
investments are held in US dollars and Euros, currency movements can contribute to 
volatility in relative performance.

Page 73



Page 10 

5.19 The tables below summarise performance to date for both managers. 

HarbourVest - £55.7m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 8.9% 1.3% 7.6%
Financial Year to Date 22.8% 4.6% 18.2%
12 months 22.5% 2.7% 19.8%
3 years p.a. 19.0% 6.8% 12.2%
5 years p.a. 20.9% 6.8% 14.1%
Since inception p.a. 12.1% 5.9% 6.2%

Aberdeen Standard - £34.3m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 3.1% 1.3% 1.8%
Financial Year to Date 11.9% 4.6% 7.3%
12 months 13.4% 2.7% 10.7%
3 years p.a. 12.5% 6.8% 5.7%
5 years p.a. 12.6% 6.8% 5.8%
Since inception p.a. 3.9% 6.3% -2.4%

Infrastructure

5.20 As with Private Equity, Infrastructure is a long-term investment that takes several 
years for commitments to be fully invested.  The Fund has two external infrastructure 
managers, Hermes and IFM.  The target for each manager is a 10% absolute annual 
return and this is used at the benchmark for these investments.  Performance is 
summarised in the tables below:

Hermes - £78.2m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 4.2% 2.5% 1.7%
Financial Year to Date 7.2% 4.9% 2.3%
12 months 7.0% 10.0% -3.0%
3 years p.a. 7.9% 10.0% -2.1%
Since inception p.a. 8.6% 10.0% -1.4%

IFM - £98.9m AUM

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter 4.2% 2.5% 1.7%
Financial Year to Date 10.6% 4.9% 5.7%
12 months 15.4% 10.0% 5.4%
3 years p.a. 16.0% 10.0% 6.0%
Since inception p.a. 17.4% 10.0% 7.4%

5.21 The investments with IFM are denominated in US dollars but performance is 
measured in sterling, therefore currency movements can contribute to volatility in 
performance.

Page 74



Page 11 

 Liability Driven Investment (LDI) - £404.1m AUM 

5.22 The Fund holds a proportion of its assets in an inflation hedging strategy, managed 
by Insight Investments which are not held to add growth, but to match the 
movements in the Fund’s liabilities.

5.23 LDI strategies allow pension schemes to continue investing in return-seeking assets 
while hedging out their liability risks through the use of leverage.  As at 30 
September 2019, 12.9% of the Fund’s assets were invested in the mandate but 45% 
of the Fund’s liabilities were hedged against inflation sensitivity i.e. if the value of the 
Fund’s liabilities increased by £100M (purely as a result of changes to inflation 
expectations), the value of the assets under management would be expected to 
increase by approximately £45M.

5.24 The liability matching strategy is intended to hedge against the impact of increasing 
pensions liabilities which are linked to the Consumer Prices Index (CPI).  CPI cannot 
currently be hedged as there is not a sufficiently developed futures market, so the 
Fund’s strategy targets the Retail Prices Index (RPI) swaps market to act as a proxy 
for CPI which tends to be lower than RPI.  

5.25 The performance of the manager is detailed in Appendix 5 and summarised below.

Performance Benchmark Relative
Quarter -0.2% 0.3% -0.5%
12 months 7.9% 9.1% -1.2%
3 years p.a. 6.5% 4.6% 1.9%
5 years p.a. 9.2% 8.4% 0.8%
Since inception p.a. 11.8% 10.6% 1.2%

6. Cash and Treasury Management

6.1 The Fund generates cash flows throughout the year which need to be managed.  The 
Fund therefore holds a proportion of cash that is invested in call accounts, money 
market funds and fixed term deposits.  A breakdown of the balances held internally 
as at 30 September 2019 is shown in the table below, including balances held in the 
custodian bank accounts and in a property rent collection account where a float is 
required for working capital purposes.

Page 75



Page 12 

Amount Rate
£000s %

Fixed Term Deposits
Lloyds Banking Group 5,000 0.90%
Lloyds Banking Group 5,000 1.00%
Standard Chartered 10,000 1.00%
Nationwide Building Society 10,000 0.90%
Plymouth City Council 10,000 0.72%
Total Fixed Term Deposits 40,000 0.89%

Call Accounts
National Westminster Bank 2,719 0.20%
Total Call Accounts 2,719 0.20%

Money Market Funds
Federated Prime Rate 6,800 0.73%
Total Money Market Funds 6,800 0.73%

Holding Accounts
State Street Custody Accounts 18,609 0.70%
Property Client Account 982 0.00%
Total Holding Accounts 19,591 0.66%

Total Cash / Average Return 69,110 0.78%

6.2 The Fund is currently ‘cashflow positive’ as it receives more money in contributions 
and investment income than it pays out as pensions and retirement grants.  It was 
estimated that there would be a surplus of income over expenditure from these cash 
flows of approximately £10M to £20M in the 2019/20 financial year.  The table below 
summarises the main Fund’s main cash flows for the financial year to date.

Summary Cashflow for the Financial Year to 30 September 2019

£M £M
Cash at 1 April 2019 105.1

Less:
Property Transactions (net) -0.9
Infrastructure Drawdowns (net) -25.7
Private Equity Drawdowns (net) -8.4
Currency Hedge (net) -10.8
Net Transfers to other pension funds * -25.0

-70.8
Plus:

LGIM Smart Beta (disinvestment) 5.0
Brunel UK Equities Active (disinvestment) 25.0
Net Income 4.8

34.8

Cash at 30 September 2019 69.1

6.3 *From 1 November 2018, Wiltshire Pension Fund became the administering authority 
for Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service, therefore becoming responsible for 

Page 76



Page 13 

the liabilities of LGPS scheme members previously employed by Dorset Fire and 
Rescue Service.  As a result of these changes, a transfer payment of £25M was 
made by the Fund to the Wiltshire Pension Fund.

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1– Listed Equities Managers Report

Pension Fund Committee 27 November 2019

Listed Market Equities

Performance Summary for the period ending 30 September 2019

UK Equities 

1. Background

1.1 On 11 July 2018, the internally managed passive UK equity portfolio transferred to 
the Brunel UK Passive Equities portfolio managed by Legal & General Investment 
Management (LGIM).  On 21 November 2018, one of the two UK Equity managers, 
AXA Framlington was transferred in full (sale proceeds £177M) to the UK Equities 
Active Brunel portfolio. The Fund still has one UK equity active manager, Schroders. 

1.2 This combination of managers and styles is designed to give the opportunity of 
outperformance against the FTSE All Share index and has a two thirds passive and 
one third active mix.  Details of the combined portfolio (£613.8M) at 30 September 
2019 are shown in the table at paragraph 4.1.

1.3 Investment in the smallest companies which make up 3.5% of the index is achieved 
by a holding in the Schroders Institutional UK Smaller Companies Fund which is 
managed on an active basis.

2. Valuation

2.1 The table below summarises the valuations for the three managers as at 1 April 2019 
and 30 September 2019.

Schroders LGIM Brunel Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Valuation 01-Apr-19 52,033 374,014 187,596 613,643
Investment 0 0 0 0
Disinvestment 0 0 -25,000 -25,000 
Change in Valuation 2,004 17,003 6,180 25,187
Valuation 30-Sep-19 54,037 391,017 168,776 613,830

3.9% 4.5% 3.3% 4.1%

3. Performance

3.1 The table below summarises the performance for each manager in absolute terms 
and compared to their respective benchmarks for the quarter, the financial year and 
since inception to 30 September 2019.

Page 79



Page 2– Listed Equities Managers Report

Schroders LGIM 
Passive

Brunel UK 
Active

Inception Apr-06 Jul-18 Nov-18
Quarter to Date

Performance -0.8% 1.3% 0.3%
Benchmark -1.2% 1.3% 1.3%
Relative Return 0.4% 0.0% -1.0%

Year to Date
Performance 3.9% 4.5% 3.4%
Benchmark -0.3% 4.6% 4.6%
Relative Return 4.2% -0.1% -1.2%

Twelve Months to Date
Performance -8.0% 2.8% -
Benchmark -7.8% 2.7% -
Relative Return -0.2% 0.1% -

Three Years p.a.
Performance 9.9% - -
Benchmark 3.0% - -
Relative Return 6.9% - -

Five Years p.a.
Performance 11.1% - -
Benchmark 5.7% - -
Relative Return 5.4% - -

Since Inception p.a.
Performance 9.9% 0.9% 9.6%
Benchmark 6.0% 1.0% 10.8%
Relative Return 3.9% -0.1% -1.2%

Global Equities 

4. Background

4.1 With effect from mid December 2015, the Fund replaced its then two global equities 
managers, Pictet Asset Management and Janus Intech, with three new managers, 
Allianz Global Investors, Investec Asset Management and Wellington Management. 
On 18 July 2018 Dorset’s global equities under the management of Allianz were 
successfully transitioned to the Brunel Smart Beta portfolio, managed by Legal & 
General Investment Management (LGIM).  In addition, JP Morgan has been the 
Fund’s emerging markets equities manager since April 2012.

5. Valuation

5.1 The table below summarises the movement in valuations for all managers for the 
financial year to 30 September 2019.

Page 80



Page 3– Listed Equities Managers Report

Investec Wellington LGIM JP Morgan Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Valuation 01-Apr-19 219,766 238,172 281,051 98,177 837,166
Investment 0 0 0 0 0
Disinvestment 0 0 -5,000 0 -5,000 
Increase in Valuation 19,490 28,378 24,118 3,618 75,604
Valuation 30-Sep-19 239,256 266,550 300,169 101,795 907,770

8.9% 11.9% 8.6% 3.7% 9.0%

6. Performance

6.1 The table below summarises the performance for each manager in absolute terms 
and compared to their respective benchmarks for the quarter, the financial year and 
since inception to 30 September 2019.

Investec Wellington
LGIM 

Smart Beta
LGIM 

Smart Beta JP Morgan
(Hedged)

Inception Dec-15 Dec-15 Jul-18 Jul-18 Apr-12
Quarter to Date

Performance 3.0% 3.9% 4.9% 2.6% -0.5%
Benchmark 3.8% 3.8% 4.9% 2.6% -1.1%
Relative Return -0.8% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.6%

Year to Date
Performance 8.9% 11.9% 11.5% 5.7% 3.7%
Benchmark 10.6% 10.6% 11.4% 5.7% 1.9%
Relative Return -1.7% 1.3% 0.1% 0.0% 1.8%

Twelve Months to Date
Performance 6.4% 7.9% 10.9% 4.7% 4.5%
Benchmark 7.8% 7.8% 11.0% 5.1% 3.7%
Relative Return -1.4% 0.1% -0.1% -0.4% 0.8%

Three Years to Date
Performance 11.4% 13.1%  -  - 8.5%
Benchmark 12.2% 12.2%  -  - 7.9%
Relative Return -0.8% 0.9%  -  - 0.6%

Five Years to Date
Performance  -  -  -  - 8.9%
Benchmark  -  -  -  - 8.1%
Relative Return  -  -  -  - 0.8%

Since Inception
Performance 14.1% 15.9% 11.2% 6.1% 5.7%
Benchmark 14.8% 14.8% 11.4% 6.7% 5.6%
Relative Return -0.7% 1.1% -0.2% -0.6% 0.1%

6.2 Investec underperformed its benchmark over three months by 0.8%, by 1.7% over 
the year to date and by 1.4% over the twelve months to the 30 September 2019. 
Wellington outperformed their benchmark by 0.1% over three months, by 1.3% over 
the year to date and by 0.1% over twelve months. Since inception, Wellington has 
outperformed their benchmark by 1.1%, whilst Investec has underperformed by 
0.7%. 

Page 81



Page 4– Listed Equities Managers Report

6.3 JP Morgan have outperformed their benchmark for the quarter by 0.6%, 1.8% for the 
year to date and by 0.8% over twelve months. JP Morgan outperformed the 
benchmark by 0.6% over 3 years and by 0.8% over 5 years. Since inception JP 
Morgan’s performance has outperformed the benchmark by 0.1%.

7. Manager Commentaries (Active Mandates)

7.1 Schroders (UK Smaller Companies)

The fund outperformed its FTSE Small cap (ex-investment companies) benchmark 
over the three-month period.

Enterprise software specialist Aptitude Software (formerly Microgen) was the top 
individual contributor over the period after unveiling plans to return £45 million to 
shareholders following the disposal of its Microgen Financial Systems subsidiary. 
Defence and security business Cohort was another top performer after its 
Portuguese subsidiary EID was awarded a significant contract to supply equipment to 
the Portuguese army. Meanwhile, specialist manufacturer Avon Rubber was another 
of the holdings to deliver double-digit share price returns after investors welcomed its 
acquisition of 3M’s ballistic-protection business. Not owning collapsed tour operator 
Thomas Cook, or low-cost short-haul holiday operator On the Beach benefited 
performance. Similarly, avoiding UK challenger bank Metro Bank supported 
performance amid fears around the strength of its capital position.

On the negative side, LED lighting products manufacturer Dialight fell sharply on the 
back of a profit warning. Provider of wound sealant and dressings Advanced Medical 
Solutions performed poorly after interim results marginally missed expectations, 
causing some investors to question the stock’s high rating. Other detractors included 
Colefax, a designer and distributor of furnishing fabrics and wallpaper, which 
cautioned that trading conditions are challenging, and enterprise software specialist 
Altitude Group, on the back of disappointing interim results.

The holding in medical enterprise software supplier Craneware were sold on the back 
of valuation concerns and also sold financial administration services business JTC. 
Additions included countermeasures specialist Chemring, North Sea focused oil and 
gas producer EnQuest, challenger financial services platform Equals and support 
services group Mitie, whose management-led turnaround is making good progress.

7.2 Brunel (UK Equities)

The FTSE All share index underperformed global developed markets during the 
quarter, posting a return of 1.3% over the quarter and 14.4% year to date. During the 
quarter, a new prime minister, Brexit uncertainty, and weak growth indicators all led 
investors once again to favour more defensive sectors such as Healthcare and 
Utilities, while economically sensitive sectors such as Financials and Materials 
underperformed.

Over the quarter, the portfolio has underperformed the FTSE All Share by 0.98%, 
returning 0.29% against the FTSE All Share return of 1.27%. Since inception on 21 
November 2018, the portfolio has returned 9.59%, an underperformance of -1.23% 
against the FTSE All Share over the same period.

7.3  Investec (Global Equities)

The portfolio underperformed the index over the third quarter of 2019. The4Factor 
screening part of the process was negative for portfolio performance in aggregate for 
the quarter.

Page 82



Page 5– Listed Equities Managers Report

Negative stock selection in real estate was a significant headwind to portfolio returns 
at a sector level. This was led by Hong-Kong listed CK Asset Holdings, which sold off 
as a result of continued civil unrest in the city. This also affected insurer AIA Group.

Healthcare stocks underperformed in the period as concerns grew about potential US 
healthcare reform arising from the upcoming US presidential election. Portfolio 
holdings affected included Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Anthem and IQVIA Holdings. In 
communication services, the position in US media conglomerate CBS Corporation 
retreated due to investor disappointment over its merger with Viacom.

Oil and gas company Range Resources continued to be weak, affected by softer gas 
prices and the absence of announcements on assets sales to reduce leverage 
continued to challenge the firm. 

Conversely, Japanese beverage company Asahi Group rebounded in August, as the 
market started to take a more favourable view of its recent Australian acquisition. 
Positive stock selection in communication services also drove performance. This was 
largely due to the outperformance of Google parent company Alphabet which was 
lifted by a material re-acceleration in growth which went some way to address 
competition concerns. US financials stock Fidelity Information Services rallied, as it 
delivered better organic growth and margins in the first quarter since its merger with 
Worldpay closed.

NIKE positively surprised on earnings and raised full-year guidance on gross 
margins. Following two quarters of disappointing operating results due to investments 
more than absorbing gross profit outperformance, it was pleasing to see evidence of 
these investments paying off in line with our thesis. US medical device company 
Medtronic also outperformed following a solid set of results, beating expectations on 
earnings and profits, while it also increased forward earnings guidance.

7.4 Wellington (Global Equities)

The portfolio outperformed the index over the quarter.  Strong selection in industrials 
was modestly offset by selection in healthcare. On a regional basis, strong selection 
in North America was modestly offset by selection in Japan.

Within industrials and consumer staples, the top relative contributors were being 
overweight to Lockheed Martin and Nestle, respectively. Within healthcare and 
energy, the top relative detractors were being overweight to Teva Pharmaceutical 
Industries and EnCana, respectively.

Shares of Lockheed Martin rose after the company raised its profit and sales forecast 
for 2019, benefiting from higher production of the F-35 fighter jet and an increase in 
arms sales that have bolstered the company’s order backlog. Teva Pharmaceuticals 
was sold off during the period in response to the expansion of a 2016 lawsuit alleging 
industry price-fixing. The stock also experienced weakness after announcing an 
unexpected cash settlement over its role in the production and manufacturing of 
opioids.

7.5 JP Morgan (Emerging Market Equities)

Quarterly review:  The portfolio outperformed its benchmark over the three-month 
period. The portfolio’s underweight to South Africa boosted relative performance 
during the quarter, as the market fell 12.6% (in USD terms). Investors have been 
frustrated by the pace of reform in the economy, and furthermore, the vulnerability of 
the Rand to external risks, also weighed on the market during the quarter.

Page 83



Page 6– Listed Equities Managers Report

Stock selection in Taiwan was one of the leading contributors to relative returns 
during the quarter, most notably led by the portfolio’s exposure to Taiwan 
Semiconductor (TSMC), the world’s largest foundry producer of integrated circuits. 
The company’s share price recovered as it became increasingly apparent that TSMC 
would only be minimally affected by the ongoing skirmishes between China and the 
US related technology, given its dominant position.

On the downside, the portfolio’s exposure to Banco Macro, was one of the leading 
detractors to relative performance. The stock fell in line with Argentinian equities, 
following the results of the August 11th primary elections that showed opposition 
candidate Alberto Fernandez leading President Marci ahead of the October elections.

Lack of exposure to Naver, a South Korean internet advertisement and search portal 
business, hindered performance during the quarter. The stock was boosted by 
positive guidance from management with respect to their outlook on growth and 
resilient margins.

12 Month Review: The portfolio outperformed its benchmark over the twelve-month 
time period. The portfolio’s overweight to Brazil was a leading contributor to returns in 
the year period, as the market rose 25.4% (in USD terms). The election of Jair 
Bolsonaro drove Brazilian’s equities higher in the last quarter of 2018, and the 
beginning 2019 on the back of elevated hopes for market-oriented reforms. As a 
result, positions in Banco do Brasil, Itau unibanco and Banco Santander Brasil, were 
among the top contributors to performance in the year.

Additionally, the portfolio’s underweight exposure to Saudi Arabia also boosted 
relative returns. The drone attacks on the largest crude oil processing plant in the 
world (owned by Aramco) weighed on the market during the period.

On the downside, the portfolio’s lack of exposure to Gazprom, one of the largest 
producers of gas in the world, was a leading detractor from relative returns during the 
period. For a number of years, the company has declined to increase its dividend to 
levels requested by the Government citing CAPEX requirements. The stock price 
was boosted by the unexpected announcement that they will rise their 2018 dividend 
by 60%.

David Wilkes
Service Manager for Treasury and Investments
November 2019

Page 84



 

ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 

DORSET COUNTY PENSION FUND 

  

Quarterly Report 30 September 2019 

 
 

 

For further information, please contact: 

Robert Nicholson 
Client Relationship Director 

Royal London Asset Management Limited  
55 Gracechurch Street  
London EC3V 0RL  

T: 020 3272 5281 
E: robert.nicholson@rlam.co.uk 

Page 85



 

CONTENTS 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 2 │ PAGE 
 

Contents  

PORTFOLIO REVIEW 3 

FUND PERFORMANCE 5 

RLPPC OVER 5 YEAR CORPORATE BOND FUND 6 

FURTHER INFORMATION 10 

RLAM TEAM 11 
 

FINANACIAL STATEMENTS  13 
 

 

Page 86



 

PORTFOLIO REVIEW 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 3 │ PAGE 
 

Portfoli o R eview 

Fund performance objective  

The fund objective is to outperform the benchmark by 0.5% per annum net of the standard management fees. 

Fund asset allocation 

Fund & benchmark index Fund allocation (%) 

RLPPC Over Five Year Corporate Bond Fund 

Benchmark: iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Over 5 Year Index. 
100.0 

Portfolio value 

 Portfolio total (£m) 

30 September  2019 230.37 

30 June 2019 220.28 

Change over the quarter 10.09 

Net cash inflow (outflow) 0.00 

Executive summary 

Performance 

 The Fund gave a gross return of 4.58% over the quarter, bringing the 12 month return to 13.38%. 

 Sterling investment grade credit underperformed UK government debt in the third quarter; respective all-maturities 

returns were 3.68% and 6.20%. The average sterling investment grade credit spread (the average extra yield available from 

a corporate bond compared with government debt of equal maturity) widened by 4bps to 1.29% by the end of the period. 

 The fund underperformed the corresponding index, with positive effects from our underweight in supranationals offset by 

stock selection within structured bonds. 

The economy and bond markets 

 Global economic growth remained weak in the third quarter and US-China trade tensions escalated further with retaliatory 

tariffs between the countries. While consumer data remained relatively resilient, business surveys implied a weak, albeit not 

recessionary, global economy. There was significant and widespread easing of monetary policy alongside a smattering of 

fiscal stimulus announcements. The US and UK yield curves both inverted, implying that perceived future growth prospects 

were sufficiently limited as to warrant little concern about future inflation. 

 Survey data suggested that UK economic growth is worsening, with PMI survey data consistent with a modestly shrinking 

economy, though hard data painted a more positive picture. Retail sales, consumer confidence and the labour market 

remained robust. Real pay growth was strong, around 2% year-on-year, and employment continued to grow. On the other 

hand, business investment was weak, Brexit and the global backdrop weighed on business sentiment, and signs of a pick-up 

in domestically-driven inflation remained elusive. The government announced a substantial fiscal boost for the year ahead, 

as well as additional spending on Brexit preparations. 

 Continuing their positive trajectory from the first half of the year, valuations in government bond markets moved to 

unprecedented levels in the third quarter, as central banks reacted to deteriorating economic growth globally. Having kept 

interest rates unchanged at 2.25% since the start of the year, the US Federal Reserve cut them twice over the quarter to 

1.75%. The European Central Bank (ECB) also cut its deposit rate to an all-time low of -0.5% and committed to purchasing 

€20bn of bonds a month until such time as it raises interest rates. Trade tensions between the US and China escalated in 

August following the surprise imposition by President Donald Trump of an additional 10% tariff on $300bn of Chinese 

imports, prompting retaliatory measures.   

Page 87



 

PORTFOLIO REVIEW 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 4 │ PAGE 
 

Investment outlook  

 Global growth is likely to slow further before bottoming out next year. In our base case we think that a global recession will 
be avoided, although we acknowledge that the recessionary risks are significant. Business sentiment and global growth are 
likely to be weighed down by higher tariffs and uncertainties surrounding global trade policies and Brexit. That should 
encourage further monetary and fiscal easing from central banks and policymakers, supporting economic growth. We think 
that inflationary pressures will build in some countries, despite weak growth, but modestly. 

 We have further reduced our growth forecasts. We expect 2019 global GDP growth to be 3.1%, compared to 3.2% previously, 
and 2020 growth to be 3.0%, down from 3.3%, with some growth momentum from mid-2020. 

 We expect the Fed to cut rates at least another 25bps later this year. We think that the ECB to continue its asset purchase 
programme through to the end of 2020. We anticipate that the People’s Bank of China (PBOC) will ease monetary policy 
further in the coming months. We expect further monetary policy easing from the Bank of Japan (BoJ). We anticipate a 
modest rate cut from the Bank of England (BoE) in the next few months. 

Page 88



 

FUND PERFORMANCE 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 5 │ PAGE 
 

fund performance 

Performance 

 Fund (%) Benchmark¹ (%) Relative (%)  

Q3 2019 4.58 4.97 -0.39 

Year-to-date 13.20 13.40 -0.20 

Rolling 12 months 13.38 13.58 -0.20 

3 years p.a. 5.32 4.05 1.27 

5 years p.a. 7.59 6.97 0.62 

Since inception p.a. 02.07.2007² 8.80 8.75 0.05 

Past performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance. The value of investments and the income from them is 
not guaranteed and may go down as well as up and investors may not get back the amount originally invested. 

All performance figures stated gross of fees and tax unless otherwise stated. 

Source: RLAM, ¹Benchmark: iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Over 5 Year Index. 

² The fund launched 02.07.2007 but its benchmark and objective changed on 30.06.2012.Performance prior to 30.06.2012 has therefore been 
omitted. If you require performance prior to this change, please contact your client account manager. 

The fund objective is to outperform the benchmark by 0.80% per annum gross of the standard management fees. 

 

 

Source: RLAM, gross of standard management fees. 

*Benchmark: iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Over 5 Year Index. 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

Total Fund

Dorset 4.58%

Benchmark 4.97%

Page 89



 

RLPPC OVER 5 YEAR CORPORATE BOND FUND 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 6 │ PAGE 
 

RLPPC Over 5 Year C orporate Bond Fund 

Performance 

 Fund (%)  Benchmark¹ (%) Relative (%)  

Q3 2019 4.58 4.97 -0.39 

Year-to-date 13.14 13.40 -0.26 

Rolling 12 months 13.45 13.58 -0.12 

3 years p.a. 5.30 4.05 1.25 

5 years p.a. 7.61 6.97 0.63 

Since inception p.a. 02.07.2007² 8.59 7.41 1.17 

Past performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance. The value of investments and the income from them is 
not guaranteed and may go down as well as up and investors may not get back the amount originally invested. 

All performance figures stated gross of fees and tax unless otherwise stated. 

Source: RLAM, ¹Benchmark: iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Over 5 Year Index. 

² The fund launched 02.07.2007 but its benchmark and objective changed on 30.06.2012.Performance prior to 30.06.2012 has therefore been 
omitted. If you require performance prior to this change, please contact your client account manager. 

The fund objective is to outperform the benchmark by 0.80% per annum gross of the standard management fees. 

Performance attribution for quarter 3 2019 

 

Source: RLAM and UBS Delta. The above performance attribution is an estimate. Please note that the attribution chart does not include residual 
effect returns. 

  

Asset split 

 Fund 
(%) 

Benchmark¹ 
(%) 

Conventional credit bonds² 99.7 99.0 

Index linked credit bonds 0.0 0.0 

Sterling conventional gilts 0.0 0.0 

Sterling index linked gilts 0.0 0.0 

Foreign conventional sovereign 0.3 1.0 

Foreign index linked sovereign 0.0 0.0 

Derivatives 0.0 0.0 

Other 0.0 0.0 
 

Fund data 

 Fund Benchmark¹ 

Duration³ 10.3 years 10.6 years 

Gross redemption yield⁴ 2.73% 1.96% 

No. of stocks 438 728 

Fund size  £231.7m  - 

Source: RLAM, Launch date: 20.07.2007. 

¹Benchmark:  iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Over 5 Year Index. 

²Conventional credit bond allocation includes exposure to non-sterling 
credit bonds and CDs, where applicable. 

³Excluding cash 

⁴The gross redemption yield is calculated on a weighted average basis 

Page 90



 

RLPPC OVER 5 YEAR CORPORATE BOND FUND 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 7 │ PAGE 
 

Sector breakdown 

 

Source: RLAM. Figures in relation to your portfolio exclude the impact of cash held, although they do include the impact of CDs if held within 

your portfolio 

Maturity profile 

 

Credit breakdown 

 

Ten Largest Holdings 

 Weighting (%) 

HSBC Bank 5.375% 2033 2.0 

Finance for Residential Social Housing 8.368% 2058 1.4 

Électricité De France 6% 2114 1.3 

Prudential Plc 5.7% VRN 2063 1.3 

Innogy Finance 6.125% 2039 1.3 

Exchequer Partnership 5.396% 2036 1.2 

Thames Water Utilities 2 7.738% 2058 1.2 

Annes Gate Property 5.661% 2031 1.2 

Equity Release 5.7% 2031 1.1 

Barclays Plc 3.25% 2033 1.1 

Total 13.0 

Source: RLAM. Figures in the table above exclude derivatives where held, subject to rounding. 

Page 91



 

RLPPC OVER 5 YEAR CORPORATE BOND FUND 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 8 │ PAGE 
 

Portfolio review 

 
What we thought What we did What happened Effect on portfolio 

S
e

c
to

r
 We expected corporate 

bonds to outperform 
supranational debt. 

We kept the significant 
underweight position in 
supranationals versus 
corporate issues. 

Supranational debt held 
up well as credit spreads 
widened, but its low 
duration constrained 
absolute returns. 

The fund’s substantial 
underweight position in 
supranationals had a 
positive impact on 
performance this quarter. 

S
e

c
to

r
 

We continued to see value 
in financials (banks and 
insurers), and to favour 
subordinated debt over 
senior bonds. 

The overweight exposure 
to subordinated financial 
debt and the below 
benchmark holding of 
senior issues were broadly 
maintained.  

Banks and insurers both 
marginally outperformed 
the broader market. Senior 
insurance bonds 
underperformed 
subordinated issues, 
whereas senior bank issues 
outperformed their junior 
peers. 

The above benchmark 
position in financials was 
positive. However, the 
impact on performance 
over the quarter was only 
modest because of the 
mixed performance of the 
sub-sectors. 

S
e

c
to

r
 

We continued to believe 
that secured bonds were 
undervalued relative to 
unsecured debt. 

We kept the significant 
overweight positions in 
sectors that benefit from 
enhanced security, e.g. 
asset-backed securities 
(ABS), social housing and 
investment trusts. 

Within secured and 
structured sectors, which 
typically comprise longer-
dated bonds and span a 
wide range of industries, 
ABS underperformed: 
however, social housing 
strongly outperformed.  

Above benchmark 
exposure to secured debt 
was broadly positive for 
performance. 

 

R
a

ti
n

g
s
 

We believed lower-rated 
credit bonds offered better 
value than AAA and AA 
rated securities. 

The bias towards lower-
rated debt was maintained 
over the quarter. 

Despite the overall 
widening of credit spreads 
in corporate bonds, the 
different rating bands 
delivered mixed 
performance. 

The preference for lower -
rated debt had a limited 
impact on performance 
this quarter. 

R
a

ti
n

g
s
 

Credit ratings, while 
useful, are not a complete 
assessment of value and 
creditworthiness. 

We maintained exposure 
to bonds rated below 
investment grade where 
we believed they were 
consistent with the overall 
objective of the fund. 

Exposure to unrated 
issues, which 
predominantly have 
investment grade risk 
characteristics and are in 
many instances secured, 
was broadly unchanged. 

High yield debt 
outperformed investment 
grade credit over the 
quarter. 

Unrated bonds in the fund, 
which consist mainly of 
secured and structured 
issues, were relatively slow 
to respond to the 
improving sentiment in 
markets. 

The allocation to sub-
investment grade debt was 
positive for returns. 

Exposure to unrated bonds 
had a mixed impact on 
performance. 

D
u

r
a

ti
o

n
 We think the level of gilt 

yields is challenging over 
the longer term. However, 
our level of conviction is 
low regarding their short-
term direction. 

The fund maintained its 
slight short duration 
stance versus the 
benchmark over the 
quarter. 

The yield on the 10-year 
gilt fell by 35 basis points 
to 0.49%, extending this 
year’s decrease. 

The duration position had 
a negative impact on 
performance. 

 

  

Page 92



 

RLPPC OVER 5 YEAR CORPORATE BOND FUND 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 9 │ PAGE 
 

Fund activity 

 Sterling investment grade credit issuance for the third quarter of 2019 was very similar to the second quarter. The fund 

participated in various new issues this quarter, including in AAA rated bonds of Westfield Stratford, a structured deal 

secured against retail property, and a longer-dated social housing ABS issue by Accent Housing. We also purchased 

financials debt of Prudential and Reassure Group (both Tier 2), and Barclays and Nationwide (both AT1). Otherwise, 

we bought new utilities issues from SSE subsidiary Scottish Hydro, Western Power Distribution and Wessex Water 

Services; and a sterling-denominated 12-year bond from French oil major Total. 

 Intu Properties, the UK’s largest shopping centre landlord, continues to be negatively impacted by well-publicised 

challenges in the UK retail sector. The company’s half-year results, which were released during the quarter, pointed to 

further downward pressure on rental income and property values, reflecting the struggles of some of their underlying retail 

tenants. Although the secured and covenanted nature of Intu’s bonds will help to dampen their fundamental exposure, the 

market move in the price of these bonds was significant, with spreads widening by around 300 basis points (bps) over the 

period. We will continue to invest on a very selective basis in the UK retail sector with a particular emphasis on secured and 

credit-enhanced opportunities. 

 Financials remained an important component of sterling credit portfolios. Subordinated bank and insurance bonds were 

volatile over the quarter, reflecting changes in risk appetite and new issuance activity. However, our sterling credit portfolios 

have benefitted from exposure to these areas over the year, with good relative contributions being made from exposure to 

both Prudential and Barclays Bank. 

 One of the most noticeable changes in sterling credit indices in recent years has been the increased weighting of the social 

housing sector. Having previously been a small part of the market, with typically unrated issues, the sector has become far 

more significant. Issues are now usually rated and are benchmark constituents. This reflects both the appetite by investors 

for longer-dated, highly-rated bonds, but also the greater reluctance of banks to offer long-term finance following the global 

financial crisis. During the quarter, we maintained our overweight position – which was beneficial as the sector 

outperformed – and participated in a new issue (see above). We believe that regulatory oversight, high asset backing and the 

sector’s vital role in the provision of housing are all supportive factors. 

Investment outlook 

 Corporate bonds are largely being driven by macroeconomic factors at present, taking their cue from government bond 

markets. The yield on 10-year gilts fell by another 35bps to 0.49%, compared to its year high of 1.35% in mid-January. While 

Brexit-related concerns have had an impact, this shift has mainly been driven by lower expectations of global economic 

growth. US treasury yields have also fallen sharply, while German bund yields have extended their push into negative 

territory (-0.70%). While we feel these levels are challenging, with central banks pursuing ultra-loose interest rate policies 

and/or quantitative easing, our level of conviction is low regarding their short-term direction. For this reason, we have 

positioned duration moderately shorter than the benchmark. 

 Over the quarter, the inversion of the yield curve attracted a great deal of comment as this has traditionally been seen as an 

augury of recession. However, we think there is a danger of over-interpreting these financial market dynamics and under-

appreciating real-world economic developments. We believe curves are inverted because investors believe that central banks 

will do whatever it takes to avoid recession and think this won’t ignite inflation. It is difficult to position against this – 

“Don’t fight the Fed!” – so yields may stay lower for longer. The key is not to allow these conditions to undermine our 

investment philosophy chasing higher yields to deliver returns, thereby losing focus on quality. 

 Brexit continues to dominate UK politics and is increasingly dampening economic activity. Our sterling credit portfolios 

have a low relative exposure to those sectors most exposed to trading interaction between the UK and the EU (e.g. general 

industrials and consumer goods). However, disruption arising from an adoption of World Trading Organisation (WTO) 

rules would have economic consequences that would impact a broad range of UK companies. Such uncertainty reinforces 

our favoured approach of ensuring significant diversification of issuers and biasing our portfolio towards bonds with strong 

asset backing and/or covenant protections to mitigate such risks. 

Key views within the portfolio 

 A significant underweight in supranational bonds, as we expect corporate debt to outperform over the medium term. 

 Duration moderately below that of the benchmark, as we expect underlying gilt yields to gradually trend higher. 

 A bias towards asset-backed securities, an area that we believe still offers very strong risk/return characteristics.  

 An overweight position in subordinated financial debt, where we believe yields are attractive. 

Page 93



 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 10 │ PAGE 
 

Further Infor mation 

Market commentaries & investment outlook 

Please click on link for further information. 

 

Stewardship and Responsible Investment at RLAM 

Please click on link for further information. 

 

Royal London Fixed Income ESG Analysis 

Please click on link for further information. 

 

Royal London Equities Voting and Engagement 

Please click on link for further information. 

 

Glossary 

Please click on link for a glossary on terms. 

Page 94

http://rlamcmsedit2014.rlam.co.uk:8888/Documents-RLAM/CAM%20reports/RLAM%20Market%20Overview%20and%20Outlook.pdf
https://www.rlam.co.uk/Documents-RLAM/Responsible%20Investing/STEWARDSHIP%20and%20RESPONSIBLE%20INVESTMENT%20AT%20RLAM.pdf
http://rlamcmsedit2014.rlam.co.uk:8888/Documents-RLAM/CAM%20reports/Royal%20London%20Fixed%20Income%20ESG%20Analysis%20-%20final.pdf
http://rlamcmsedit2014.rlam.co.uk:8888/Documents-RLAM/CAM%20reports/Royal%20London%20Equities%20Voting%20and%20Engagement%20Q1%202019.pdf
http://www.rlam.co.uk/Documents-RLAM/CAM%20reports/Glossary.pdf


 

RLAM TEAM 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 11 │ PAGE 
 

RLAM team 

Your fund managers 

 

Jonathan Platt 
Head of Fixed Income  

Shalin Shah 
Senior Fund Manager  

Paola Binns 
Senior Fund Manager 

 

Your dedicated contact 

 

Rob Nicholson 

Client Relationship Director 

 

T: 020 3272 5281 

F: 020 7506 6784 

E: robert.nicholson@rlam.co.uk 

 

In Rob’s absence, please feel free to contact any of the Client Relationship team members listed below or  

email: ClientRelationships@rlam.co.uk. 

 
Emily Benson T: 020 3272 5513 E: emily.benson@rlam.co.uk 
Fraser Chisholm T: 020 3272 5278 E: fraser.chisholm@rlam.co.uk 
Daniel Norsa Scott T: 020 3272 5280 E: daniel.norsascott@rlam.co.uk 
Andrew Cunningham T: 020 3272 5468 E: andrew.cunningham@rlam.co.uk 
John Matthews T: 020 3272 5423 E: john.matthews@rlam.co.uk 

Sam Wreford T: 020 3272 5167 E: sam.wreford@rlam.co.uk 

MiFID (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive) 

Pursuant to the FCA rules and based on information that we hold about you, we have classified you a ‘Professional Client’. 

 
  

Page 95

mailto:emily.benson@rlam.co.uk
mailto:john.matthews@rlam.co.uk


 

 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 12 │ PAGE 
 

  

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

For professional clients only, not suitable for retail investors. The views expressed are the author’s own and do not constitute investment advice. 

This document is a financial promotion. It does not provide, and should not be relied on for, accounting, legal or tax advice, or investment 
recommendations. For more information concerning the risks of investing, please refer to the Prospectus or Key Investor Information Document 
(KIID), available via the Fund Price pages on www.rlam.co.uk. 

Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future results. The value of investments and the income from them is not guaranteed and may go 
down as well as up and investors may not get back the amount originally invested.  

Portfolio characteristics and holdings are subject to change without notice. This does not constitute an investment recommendation. For 
information purposes only, methodology available on request. Information derived from sources other than Royal London Asset Management is 
believed to be reliable; however, we do not independently verify or guarantee its accuracy or validity. 

All rights in the FTSE All Stocks Gilt Index, FTSE Over 15 Year Gilts Index, FTSE A Index Linked Over 5 Years Gilt Index and FTSE A 
Maturities Gilt Index (the “Index”) vest in FTSE International Limited (“FTSE”). All rights in the FTSE 350, FTSE All Share, FTSE 100, FTSE 250, 
FTSE 350 Higher Yield and FTSE Small Cap (the “Index”) vest in FTSE International Limited (“FTSE”).  “FTSE®” is a trade mark of the London 
Stock Exchange Group companies and is used by FTSE under licence. The Royal London Funds (the "funds") have been developed solely by 
Royal London Asset Management. The Index is calculated by FTSE or its agent. FTSE and its licensors are not connected to and do not 
sponsor, advise, recommend, endorse or promote the fund and do not accept any liability whatsoever to any person arising out of (a) the use of, 
reliance on or any error in the Index or (b) investment in or operation of the fund. FTSE makes no claim, prediction, warranty or representation 
either as to the results to be obtained from the Funds or the suitability of the Index for the purpose to which it is being put by Royal London 
Asset Management. 

All confidential information relating to any Royal London Group company must be treated by you in the strictest confidence. It may only be used 
for the purposes of assessing the proposal to engage Royal London Asset Management Limited (RLAM). Confidential information should not be 
disclosed to any third party and should only be disclosed to those of your employees and professional advisers who are required to see such 
information for the purpose set out above. You should ensure that these persons are made aware of the confidential nature of such information 
and treat it accordingly. You agree to return and/ or destroy all confidential information on receipt of our written request to do so. 

Issued by Royal London Asset Management Limited, Firm Registration Number: 141665, registered in England and Wales number 2244297; 
Royal London Unit Trust Managers Limited, Firm Registration Number: 144037, registered in England and Wales number 2372439; RLUM 
Limited, Firm Registration Number: 144032, registered in England and Wales number 2369965. All of these companies are authorised and 
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Royal London Asset Management Bond Funds Plc, an umbrella company with segregated liability 
between sub-funds, authorised and regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland, registered in Ireland number 364259. Registered office: 70 Sir 
John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland. 

All of these companies are subsidiaries of The Royal London Mutual Insurance Society Limited, registered in England and Wales number 99064. 
Registered Office: 55 Gracechurch Street, London, EC3V 0RL. The Royal London Mutual Insurance Society Limited is authorised by the 
Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority. The Royal London 
Mutual Insurance Society Limited is on the Financial Services Register, registration number 117672. Registered in England and Wales number 
99064. 

 Page 96



Holding Identifier Asset Description Market Price 
(Bid £)

Book Cost 
Capital (£)

Market Cap. 
Value (£)

Accrued Inc. 
Value (£)

Market Value 
(£)

Days 
Accrued

Market 
Value %

Funds Held

85,353,190 GB00B1ZB3X88 RLPPC Over 5 Year Corp Bond Pen Fd 2.69907 108,221,886.76 230,374,235.68 0.00 230,374,235.68 0 100.0

Funds Held total  108,221,886.76 230,374,235.68 0.00 230,374,235.68 100.0

Grand total  108,221,886.76 230,374,235.68 0.00 230,374,235.68 100.0

Portfolio Valuation for Dorset County Pension FundPage 1 of 1

Portfolio Valuation
As at 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

P
age 97



Trade Date Transaction Type Nominal Security Price (£) Book Cost (£)

Acquisitions
Funds Held

04 Jul 2019 Acquisition Rebate 61,397.12 RLPPC Over 5 Year Corp Bond Pen Fd 2.65 162,617.64

Funds Held total  162,617.64

Acquisitions total  162,617.64

Trading Statement for Dorset County Pension FundPage 1 of 1

Trading Statement
For period 01 July 2019 to 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

P
age 98



���� � ���� �	��
 � ��� ��� �	��
 ��
 � �
  ��	���� ��� �� 	���
 �� � ������ �	� ��� �� ����� �� ����� 	� �	 �� � ���� ������ ��� �� �	�� �� ����� �
� �
� � ��� �� �� 	����� � ��� ��� ��	 �� ��� ���� ����

Page 99



 

! "#$% "&' "( )**+#, -. /01 2345 6789 :69 ;8 3<7=9 6:6<8 <>?68 >68 @>A3B C94 3>DE FGH I J< JK98=

;9 A?L 6M9 ?98 :3L <89L98 NO
-P QR9 ;<L 3A? S3AL N T<789 :6L NU<A<?6M ?L 34 <L 7>6M98 I3>8B 3L9 3

-V A:6;8 ;I>6M 3U9 A<A8L N<7>3;;C 3<A; TW9 ?=X9 6LM <AMY9 A<A79 <L ; TR ;;68

Z <7[ 6M\ 67@>989 6;<AMP 3A:6>894L 6Z 3AM ;

-Q <9 A8 <9 A;L 3K9 A8 6>6;8 ><8 6M @><89 3A] 7<II6M <88 K3N6<>;^ <AMM 36;A38

@;6B 9 A<A79 <LL 6:6><?6_

àbcdef ghi jhklmng

f ghi jhklmngo pq lr gs
t uuvwxy z{|} {~ v�u � y u�{� u�{�~y �u �� � �w ��t uuvwxy z{| � �x w~yxy~ �� y u�{ � u�{�~y �u���� � w��{ � y u�{ � u�{�~y �u� ����� } {~ v�u ���

� ���
� �� �� ���
� ���

� ���� ¡¢£� ¤¥¤¦§̈�  ©¦  ª«  �¬̈® ¯° ± ¤�² ¦ � ¦ ��³¥¤�  ¥¦́ ª¤¦  µ ¤³µ ³ ¦ �¶ ¤³¦́ �´ ©¤¦  µ¶   ¥ · ̧© ³¥ ¥¤³µ́ ³��ª � ´ ³¹ ¥¦  µ ¯±º  »¤� « ¤¥ µ �³¼ �³² ½¦  �ª© �¶ ��ª¤³� ©��¾  �¦́ �³¥�¶¦º  ´ ³¹ ¥¦ ª ³¦ ¥¦ �¤¦  ²»

¿ÀÁ Â¿ÃÄ ÅÆ ÇÈÀÁÉÆÉ ÈÀÊ¿ÆÆË ÅÆÉ ÂÅÈÌ ÂÈÁ ÅÍÍÉ ÀÎ¿ÀÁ ¿ÃÅÆË ÅÃÅÌ ÈÃÅÊÏÐÑ ÅÇÆÆ ÈÇË ¿ÀÎÅ ÒÓË ÅÃÅÉ ÊÀÈÎÏ¿Ã¿ÀÆ ÅÅÆË ¿Æ ¿ÀÔÆ ¿ÃÎÅÆ ÃÅÆ ÏÃÀÇ¿ÀÐ Å¿ÇËÉ ÅÕÅÁ ÒÖ ÀÕÅÊÆ ÈÃÊÊË ÈÏÍÁ ÀÈÆ ×Í ¿ÇÅ¿ÀÔÃÅÍÉ ¿ÀÇÅÈÀÊÏÇËÆ ¿ÃÎÅÆ ÃÅÆ ÏÃÀÉ À

µ  �µ́́ ³²Øº  ¦º  �¦ �´ ³¹ ¥¦́ ³¦º  Ù �³µ ¯± ¤�² ¦ � ¦ ��³¥¤� ¶ ��¼́¼ �¥¦ �¤¦́ ¹ ©��©�¥ ¥�³¼ » ¯Ú Û �̧ ©¦ Øº  ³� Ü�´ � µ¶ ������ ³�»º  µ ²´ ³²©��©�¥ ¥ ¯Ý Þ  ¦ ��³¥� ©� ¥ ³¦¦º  ß  �¶ ��ª¤³� à ³µ  ̧áâß ¯ß¼  ¤¥ � ¶  �¦ �¦º   ³µ �¶

¦º  ©� ¥ ³¦ ¤¦́ �³¶ ��¶ ��¦º  �µ  ¦ ¤¼́ ¥¤¥¦ �º �Ø¦º́ ¥´ ³µ  ̧´ ¥��³¥¦́¦ �¦  µ ¯±º́ ¥©� ¥ ³¦ ¤¦́ �³´ ³�¼ �µ  ¥º́ ¥¦ ��´ �� ¦ ��³¥¤³µ ©¤¥¦ © �¶ ��ª¤³� ´ ¥³�¦ ¤� ¼́ ¤«¼  ´ ³µ́ �¤¦ ���¶¶ �¦ �� � ¥�¼¦ ¥ ¯±º  ¹¤¼ � �¶́ ³¹ ¥¦ ª ³¦ ¥�¤³²�µ �Ø³

¤¥Ø ¼¼ ¤¥�© ¯ãä åæçåèéê å ëìåê íìèçìåî åìåèïåêð åã åìî éìñæèïåò èó åôõöã ëæêð åéìåê÷ ïæä ëèéè ø÷ èùåçê æúä åçð æìåïä æççûð÷ ïð÷ çñæó åíüéî æçåì÷ åçéî çð æìåïä æççåç÷ èéìó åìê é

ý þÿ���� ��� þ�� þ� ���þ�� 	���
 �� þ��� ����
� �� þ� ��	� �þ	��ý� ���� þ� ��ý �� �þ��ý ����� �� þ
 �ý þ�� ��ÿ�� ��
 ��
 �
 �	� �ý þý ���� þþ�ý �� �� þ��þ�þ�� ��
 �� �

��� ������ �� �!"# $�$ %���� ��& �'�#   �
( )$ &%� � *�&� +��, ��  ��

'- �  � ., � "$� ��%#- ��$- ���� � �&,  "���, �&%$ �#&*�&� /0 &'��� �,

,$  "�� $ #&#1 ��� ��& �'�#   �
'� #� .���$ &+ +�#�" �&

, +�#+��"�$ � !� �

2 3456 3738 9:; <=56 3>9?:5 3: @?A;BB 9A5 :?5 38C 4DE6; =6 4; 3B8 @F6 3:3; <

'#&� �� �� #GH�$ +� I$ �-, ��� � "�#%$, �, �-- #1�� ���� ��&$ &�� ��  �� '- �  /

�J ����!�-- "# $�$ #&�,� #� �K ��, %�&� �+�#1��$  ,$  "�� $ #&( I$ &'��� $ &+

�L"# ���� #HM�$ +� I$ �-,� #NN /OP .�&�!�$ +�  $ &'�$ &'�"�$ #&#1�� �

Q �&, .� #'�"� ���'#*"�--$ &+�� �*��$ '�&,$,$ # I&'���$ '#""#�� �&$�$ � !�

� �%�$, �&�$1$ �,$ &�� �HM( ##K /J �� �%�( �- �&'�,��$  !$�� ��, �'�,

�L"# ���� #HM- #�& /
�R-- �  �� '- �  � '#&� �$( �� �, "# $�$ %�- I� #��� ��& .$ & "$� �#1  � #�� )� ��*

7?:2 S5 T S7?:2 35 UTB ?5;B;5 4; <;8; TA4<V:?5; V<?73A; <56 3DE 7?:2 35 @7TA5

�'�� �- I1 �-�$ &- #�& /W #�& - �,�� �!�I!$�� �'#&� �$( ��$ #&#1X /YZP .!$�� �

+##, "��1 #�*�&'�1 �#*�� �G ��#"��&- #�& ( ##K *#���� �&#11  ���$ &+

�&, ��"��1 #�*�&'���- ��$ %�� #�-- #'��$ #&1 �#*�� �HM- #�& ( ##K � �

'#& ����&'�#
1$,$ # I&'���$ '1 �'� #� /R[M '#&� �$( �� �,X /YOP .� �- "�,( I

 � �#&+"��1 #�*�&'�1 �#*H\J� #- �[ � $ &�  M �'��$�$  ��$ #&] "�(  ^ �&,

G ��#"��&[[[ �&,[[_Ẁ  /a$ +�b$ �-, '#&� �$( �� �,X /YXP .!$���� �

G ��#"��&( ##K "��1 #�*$ &+ � �#&+- I /G-  �!� ��� .Q$ &�&'$ �-  ]X /XZP̂ �&,

c T<U3:5;CB 3Ade feghi ?B ATj3:k T:738 F3BB; <56; A3<U; :T<73<5 f

�W ##K$ &+�� ��� ��& #&�+�#+
��"�$ '�-( � $  .G ��#"� � �#&+- I#�� "��1 #�*�,

�� �HM .!$��G ��#"�'#&� �$( ��$ &+X /lNP �&,�� �HM]X /XmP̂ /�� ���!� �

 *�-- &�+��$ %�'#&� �$( ��$ #&1 �#*R  $ �]_[  ^ /

�J �'#&�$ &��� #( �-$ �%���$  �&%$ �#&*�&�$  "�� �&�$ &+��� ��'�$ %�- #&+ )� ��*

#""#�� �&$�$ � 1 #�#�� �'���, )$ &'#*�, �$ %�&�""�#�'� ."�#%$, �, !� � �I

,$  '$ "-$ &�, �&, �'�$ %�!$�� �� "�'�� #1 �&, �*�&� �- '��,$�  �- �'�$ #& /

n opqrst ouvwxyz rvqx ov{ uv|} qprs upvovx vxsx ~yx v�rqs �rvs �

�� ���� ���� �� ����� ����� �������

���� ���� ����� ��  ¡�¡�¢�£ �¤� ��� �����¥

Page 100



¦

§ ¨̈©ª«¬ ®°̄¬ ±̈®² ±̈®³´¬ µ̈ ¶�·
§ ¨̈©ª«¬ ®¯̧ µ« ª´¬«¬ ´ ¹°¬ ±̈®² ±̈®³´¬ µ̈

¶�·
°º ª»³®°¬ ±̈®² ±̈®³´¬ µ̈

¼ ®»½ µ» ª̈±®¾ ®´ »¬ ±
¿ À�¢

� À��

� À¥�

ãä åæçåèéê å ëìåê íìèçìåî åìåèïåêð åã åìî éìñæèïåò èó åôõöã ëæêð åéìåê÷ ïæä ëèéè ø÷ èùåçê æúä åçð æìåïä æççûð÷ ïð÷ çñæó åíüéî æçåì÷ åçéî çð æìåïä æççåç÷ èéìó åìê é

ó åñéèçê ìæê åêð åä éèÁåçê ïéèç÷ çê åèêä Âæùæ÷ä æúä åê ìæïÃ ìåïéìóî éìêð åÄ íèó ÅÆú ìåæÃó éûèéî êð å÷ èó åôî éìñíä æê÷ éè÷ ç÷ èïä íó åó æêêð ååèó éî êð åüìåçåèê æê÷ éè Å

� ���� ¡¢£� ¤¥¤¦§̈�  ©¦  ª«  �¬̈® ¯±º  Ù �³µ¼ ¤�³�º  µ �³¬Ç ¤³�¤�»¬̈§ Ø¦́º¢¼ ¤¥¥¢ÛÈÞ ·Øº́ �ºº ¤¥¥´ ³� «  ��ª ´ ³¤�¦́ ¹  ¯±º́ ¥©� ¥ ³¦ ¤¦́ �³´ ³�¼ �µ  ¥º́ ¥¦ ��´ �� ¦ ��³¥¤³µ ©¤¥¦ © �¶ ��ª¤³� ´ ¥

³�¦ ¤� ¼́ ¤«¼  ´ ³µ́ �¤¦ ���¶¶ �¦ �� � ¥�¼¦ ¥ ¯±º  ¹¤¼ � �¶́ ³¹ ¥¦ ª ³¦ ¥�¤³²�µ �Ø³¤¥Ø ¼¼ ¤¥�© ¯

¼ ®»½ µ» ª̈±®² ¨¯ ®ÉÊË¼Ì ª̈ ¶�·Í ®Î ¶�·¾ ª» ¶�·§ ³» ¶�·¾ ª¹ ¶�·Ì ©̈ ¶�·Ì ©« ¶�·§ ©Ï ¶�·° ®³ ¶�·Ð ±´ ¶�·Ñ µÒ ¶�·Ó ®± ¶�·ÔÕÓ ¶�·

�Ö�×

� À�¢� ÀØ�� À�Ø� À¿��� À�Ù�� À�¿� À¿Ø� À¥Ú� À��� ÀÚ¢� À¿ØÛ ��×

ÜÝÞß
à áâãà áäåà áååà áåäà áæçà áâèà áéãà áåâêà áåãëà áàãà áçãêà áèéëì íÜî

�Ö��
� ÀØ�� À��� ÀÚ¥� ÀÙ¢� À¢¿�� À¢¿�� ÀØ��� À�Ù��� À¿��� ÀÙ�� À���� À¢¢�× �Û�

�Ö�Û
�� ÀÙÚ��� À¥¥�� À¿¢� À¿�� ÀÙÚ�� À¢��� ÀØ¿� À�¿� À¿¿� À¢�� À�Ø� À¥Ø� ���

�Ö��
� ÀÙ¢� ÀÚÙ� À��� ÀÚ�� À¥�� À�Ù� À���� À�Ú�� ÀØÙ� À�¿� À�Ú� À��Û ���

ÜÝÞï
à áääêà áçèëà áàçà áèèêà áàåëêà áçåëà áæçà áåãà áèãêà áççëêà áäèëêç áéâëÝ íÜî

�Ö�ð
� À�¥� À��� À¿Ø� À���� À�¢�� ÀÚ�� ÀØ¢�� À¢��� À¢¢

� �Ö�

ñ w~ {�ò � uy~y wx� uó{z~ ô{u~
õ {~} {~ v�u�u� u~y wx� uó{z~ ô{u~���
tö÷ wzw~��� {�~ {ôø {�����ù

ñ ��z{~ú �vu�yxû {uzy �u
ü vu|

�ý þÿ ��� �

�� ����

� ���	
 �� �

Page 101



�

ãä åæçåèéê å ëêð åã åìî éìñæèïåò èó åôõöã÷ çú æçåó éèæêð åéìåê÷ ïæä ëèéè ø÷ èùåçê æúä åçð æìåïä æçç Åò ê÷ çñæó åíüéî æçåì÷ åçéî çð æìåïä æççåç÷ èéìó åìê é

ó åñéèçê ìæê åêð åä éèÁåçê ïéèç÷ çê åèêä Âæùæ÷ä æúä åê ìæïÃ ìåïéìóî éìêð åÄ íèó ÅÆú ìåæÃó éûèéî êð å÷ èó åôî éìñíä æê÷ éè÷ ç÷ èïä íó åó æêêð ååèó éî êð åüìåçåèê æê÷ éè Å

� ���� ¡¢£� ¤¥¤¦§̈�  ©¦  ª«  �¬̈® ¯° Þ  ¦ ��³¥� ¶  � ³� ¦º  ß  �¶ ��ª¤³� à ³µ  ̧áâß ¯Ú ̈�̈à ³µ  ̧´ ¥¤«¼  ³µ  µ«  ³�º ª¤�� � ¦ ��³��ª©�´ ¥´ ³²¦º  È���à��  ¹ �¤² µ� �¤³à ³µ  ̧� ¤³µ¦º  á¼ �« ¤¼�́ ²º

�́  ¼µà ³µ  ̧���̈̈�  ̧©� ¥¥ µ́ ³�  µ ² µáâß¦  �ª¥ ¯±º  ´ ³µ  ̧´ ¥´ ³�¼ �µ  µ ª � ¼ »¦ �¥º �Ø¦º  ² ³ �¤¼¦ � ³µ ¥´ ³¦º  © �´ �µ́ ³µ́ �¤¦  µ ¤³µ́ ¥³�¦́ ³¦  ³µ  µ¦ �´ ª©¼ »¦º ¤¦¢��́ ¥¥´ ª¼́ ¤�¦ �¦º  ´ ³µ  ̧´ ³

ÇÈÂ×ÈÊÉÆÉ ÈÀÈÃÃÉ ÊÄ ÒÓËÉ Ê×ÃÅÊÅÀÆ ¿ÆÉ ÈÀÉ ÀÇÍ ÏÁ ÅÊËÉ ÊÆ ÈÃÉ ÇÃÅÆ ÏÃÀÊ¿ÀÁ ×¿ÊÆ ×ÅÃÌ ÈÃÂ¿ÀÇÅÉ ÊÀÈÆ ¿ÃÅÍÉ ¿ÐÍ ÅÉ ÀÁÉ Ç¿Æ ÈÃÈÌÌ ÏÆ ÏÃÅÃÅÊÏÍÆ Ê ÒÓË ÅÕ¿Í ÏÅÈÌÉ ÀÕÅÊÆ ÂÅÀÆ ÊÇ¿ÀÎÈÁ È�À¿Ê�ÅÍÍ ¿ÊÏ× Ò���� ���  ! "#$ "# �%�&'( )*+,- ./ 0-123 )*+456 .0� 7 �� "89

P X:;
< =>?@A

C <;8@> U\ 9 A76V A:6;8 U6A8
BC DEDFG DHIJBK

LMN OPQ ROSTU PQ VW
W PPX YZ[\]

G J@@H
? JĜH
= JE=H
G J@̂H

_ S` PaOPQ ROSTZ OVXX Y
Z[\b P` cP]̀

K deJf
J dKIf
g dhJf
e dhKf

i_[jk lmn TZ[\]
= Jo?H
@ J@pH
G J>EH
p JppH���4 qq"%r 0%s"#

6t/ .%u)+ ���6 .v"%r 0%s"#
6t/ .%u�+

wxyz{|} ~yyy} ~y�x} ~yxy} ~y�x} ~}yy} ~}�x � ����� �� �y}�
� �� �y}�
� ����� �� �y}�
� �� �y}w

�������������������

� ��� ��� �  ¡¢£¤

Page 102



Dorset County Pension Fund | 1

DORSET COUNTY PENSION FUND
QUARTERLY REPORT

Q3 2019

Dorset County (‘DC’) property fund provides diversified exposure to good quality real estate located throughout the UK, across a range
of sectors including offices, industrial, retail and other. The allocation to property has increased from 10% to 11% of DC’s total assets
which represents approximately £330m. The new allocation is to target Secure Long Income (‘SLI’) property beyond which the intention
is to transition the portfolio gradually to a 50/50 split between SLI and Conventional properties.

CONVENTIONAL SLI

Mandate Commenced 1993 Commenced 2017

Performance objective MSCI Quarterly over 5 years LPI +2% p.a.

Capital Value (Q3 2019) £280.7m (88%) £38.2 (12%)

Number of assets 28 9

Value of purchases during quarter - £0.6m

Value of sales during quarter £0.1m -

Net initial yield (p.a.) 4.4% 3.8%

Average unexpired lease term (to break) 8.4 years (7.4 years) 67.0 years (19.4 years)

COMBINED VALUATION
Direct Property (Q3 2019 values) £281.7m

Indirect Assets (Q3 2019 values) £37.2m

Total Portfolio Valuation £318.9m

PERFORMANCE*** CONVENTIONAL SLI COMBINED MSCI QUARTERLY UNIVERSE

Q3 2019 0.7% 1.6% 0.8% 0.3%      

12 months 3.6% 4.7% 4.0% 2.1%

3 yrs p.a. 6.8% - 6.8% 6.6%

5 yrs p.a. 8.1% - 8.2% 7.7%

(Combined Dorset Portfolios)

£318.9M 37
AssetsCapital Value To Invest

£11.1M

Page 103



Dorset County Pension Fund | 2

STRATEGY

Bow Lane, London

Coney Street, York   

Size

▪ Target size £330m – current size £318.9m.  DC has increased its allocation to property from 10% to 
11% of total assets which represents approximately £330m.  

▪ The new allocation is targeting Secure Long Income.  

▪ The longer term intention is to transition the portfolio gradually to a 50/50 split between 
Conventional property and SLI, the SLI property held within the Conventional portfolio is to be 
included in the 50:50 allocation.    

Performance objectives 

▪ Conventional and SLI portfolios’ have had distinct benchmarks since 1st April 2018. 
▪ Conventional portfolio:  “To achieve a return on Assets at least equal to the average IPD Quarterly 

Universe Portfolio Return including Transactions and Developments for a rolling five year period 

commencing 1 January 2006.”
▪ Secure Long Income Portfolio:  “To achieve a total return greater than, or equal to, Limited Price 

Inflation (“LPI”) plus 2.0% p.a. measured over the long run (7-10 years) commencing 1 April 2018.”  

Income yield

▪ Target is for the Conventional portfolio income return to exceed the MSCI (formerly called IPD) 
benchmark income return.

▪ Continue to focus on maintaining a low vacancy rate and a resilient income yield.

▪ Ensure SLI held properties / new acquisitions have strong rental growth prospects, long leases and 
an element of indexation.  

ALLOCATION

Property type

▪ Conventional portfolio:  Remain well diversified as the portfolio transitions to a 50/50 split to SLI, 
with holdings in good locations with a proportion of exposure to properties that will allow active 
management to generate outperformance.

▪ We anticipate maintaining a total of between 15-20 assets with an average lot size of between £8m 
and £11m.

▪ SLI portfolio:  target lot sizes between £3m and £20m with an average lease length in excess of 15 

years at purchase with at least 70% of the portfolio having index linked rent reviews once fully 
invested.   

Geographic allocation ▪ Diversified by location but with a bias towards London and the South East.

Sector allocation

▪ Diversified by sector with a maximum of 50% in any single sector.
▪ Target a lower than average weighting to Offices and Retail and a higher than average weighting to

Industrial and Other Commercial.

▪ Source suitable SLI investments that could be available in any sector.

ECONOMIC AND PROPERTY UPDATE

• The UK economy contracted in Q2 2019 prompting fears that it could have slipped into recession over the
summer, but recent data points to growth resuming in Q3.

• The underlying trend is one of sluggish growth, which we expect to continue into 2020, before acceleration
from 2021. This outlook is underpinned by the assumption that there will be an orderly Brexit, following the
latest extension to the Article 50 deadline into 2020.

• Property performance in Q3 2019 was very similar to that seen through the first half of the year. All Property
capital values fell by 0.7%, matching the fall seen in Q2.

• Since last quarter we have revised our forecasts and extended the horizon to end-2024. The impact has
been an upgrade to the 5-year All Property total return outlook, now 4.5% p.a. over the period 2020-24.

• Despite the improved outlook for capital values, income returns will be the mainstay of performance over
coming years. Quality of income and underlying occupier appeal will be critical. In this environment good
quality buildings in locations with deep tenant demand will prove most resilient.

Page 104



Dorset County Pension Fund | 3

CONVENTIONAL PORTFOLIO INFORMATION 

TRANSACTIONS

Purchases £0m

Disposals £0.1m

Money available to invest £0m

Union House, Southwark, London

CONVENTIONAL PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

Dunbeath Court, Swindon

Q3 2019

Direct market value £243.5m

Indirect market value £37.2m

Total Conventional Portfolio market value £280.7m

No. of assets (avg. value) 28 (£10.0m)

No. of lettable units (direct avg. value) 82 (£3.0m)

Vacancy rate (% direct ERV) 2.7%

Avg. unexpired direct lease term (to break) 8.4 years (7.4 years)

Direct net initial yield (p.a.) 4.4%

% of income direct RPI / index linked 9.3%

Rent with +10 years remaining (% of direct rent) 15.7% 

Rent with +15 years remaining (% of direct rent) 7.8% 

Largest Tenant WorldPay Limited
£1.3m p.a.

(9.4% of contracted income)

Page 105



Dorset County Pension Fund | 4

48.8%

19.5%

10.0%

6.3%

9.0%

6.4%

London / South East Eastern South West Midlands North Rest of UK

CONVENTIONAL PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS

SECTOR BREAKDOWN INCLUDING INDIRECTS

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

DC Conventional Portfolio MSCI Quarterly Universe

GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN EXCLUDING INDIRECTS

Cambridge Science Park 

Page 106



Dorset County Pension Fund | 5

SLI PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

TRANSACTIONS

Purchases £0.6m

Disposals £0m

Money available to invest £11.1m

Union House, Southwark, London

SLI PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

Red Lion, London SW1

Q3 2019

Direct market value £38.2m

Indirect market value £0m 

Total SLI Portfolio market value £38.2m

No. of assets (avg. value) 9 (£4.2m)

No.of lettable units (direct avg. value)* 13 (£2.9m)

Vacancy rate (% ERV) 0%

Avg. unexpired direct lease term (to break) 67.0 years (19.4 years)

Net initial yield (p.a.) 3.8%

% of income RPI / index linked 71.6%

Rent with 15+ years remaining (% of rent) 100% 

Largest Tenant Ei Group Plc
£0.4m p.a.

(28.4% of contracted 
income)

*Assumes each residential portfolio is treated as a single lettable unit.

Page 107



Dorset County Pension Fund | 6

Union House, Southwark, London

SLI PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS 

38%

24%

38%

London / South East Eastern

South West Midlands

North Rest of UK

38%

62%

SECTOR BREAKDOWN (% OF TOTAL VALUE)

Supermarkets Pubs Ret. W'house Offices

Industrial Hotel Other Residential

GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN (% OF TOTAL VALUE) 

Elgin Bar & Grill, London W9  

Ingersley Building, Macclesfield 

Page 108



Dorset County Pension Fund | 7

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, GOVERNANCE

TRANSPARENCY

Green leases are essential in protecting against environmental risks and improving the sustainability of the portfolio. All leases

are now being monitored for green lease clause implementation. Solicitors are now expected to provide confirmation of all

green clauses being put into new leases and historic leases are being reviewed.

Responsible Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) practices are fundamental to our business

strategy. We have implemented a consistent ESG framework across our UK House. Dorset County

Pension Fund has set a Gold ambition level and set targets to 2022 in three areas:

103

13

2

6

Medium 

Risk

Short Term 

High Risk 

Long Term 

High Risk 

No. of units

High Quality or 

Modelled EPC
11 0 1

Tenant Engagement 2 0 1

Refurbishment 0 0 0

Planned Redevelopment 

or Considering Sale
0 0 0

CARBON

Landlord energy data is currently being reviewed and analysed on the funds data management system (Measurabl). Carbon

emission figures will be reported in the annual report in line with Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting requirements. The

annual report is due to be released in February 2020, reviewing 2019 data.

COMPLIANCE 

COMPLIANCE
• Energy ratings
• Policies
• TCFD

• Compliance 
Risk

TRANSPARENCY
• Building 

certifications
• Reporting

• Stakeholder 
engagement

• Data coverage

CARBON

• Energy 
• Water

• Waste 
• Tenants

A key part of the ESG strategy is the Energy Performance Risk Mitigation Program, where we seek to improve the sustainability

performance of assets through improving the Energy Performance Certificate ratings.

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Q4 2018 Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019

Ca
pi

ta
l v

al
ue

 o
f u

ni
ts 

(£
)

M
ill

io
ns

Exempt

Unknown

Long Term High Risk (F & G Rated)

Short Term High Risk (F & G Rated)

Medium Risk (E Rated)

Low Risk (A - D Rated)

Figures 1 and 2 Change in level of risk by value (left) and EPC Risk Management Action Plans (right)

All Environmental Compliance Risks GRESB Outperformance 3% Year On Year Carbon Reduction

Page 109



Dorset County Pension Fund | 8

IMPORTANT NOTICE

The information contained herein must be treated in a confidential manner and may not be reproduced, used or disclosed, in whole or in part,
without the prior written consent of CBRE Global Investors.

The indirect property portion of this portfolio is managed by CBRE Global Investment Partners Limited which is authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority in the United Kingdom. In accordance with the restrictions on the promotion of non-mainstream pooled investments,
the communication of this document in the United Kingdom is only made to persons defined as professional client or eligible counterparties, as
permitted by COBS 4.12.5R (Exemption 7) and the Collective Investment Scheme (Exemptions) Order 2001.

Acceptance and/or use of any of the information contained in this document indicate the recipient’s agreement not to disclose any of the
information contained herein. This document does not constitute any form of representation or warranty on the part of CBRE Global Investors,
investment advice, a recommendation, or an offer or solicitation, and it is not the basis for any contract to purchase or sell any security, property
or other instrument, or for CBRE Global Investors to enter or arrange any type of transaction. CBRE Global Investors expressly disclaims any
liability or responsibility therefore.

This document should not be regarded as a substitute for the exercise by the recipient of its, his or her own judgement. The figures in this
document have not been audited by an external auditor. This document does not purport to be a complete description of the markets,
developments or securities referred to in this report. The value of an investment can go down as well as up and an investor may not get back the
amount invested. Past performance is not a guide to future performance. Forecasts of future performance are not an indicator of future
performance. All target or projected “gross” internal rates of return (“IRRs”) do not reflect any management fees, incentive distributions, taxes,
transaction costs and other expenses to be borne by certain and/or all investors, which will reduce returns. “Gross IRR” or “Gross Return” shall
mean an aggregate, compound, annual, gross internal rate of return on investments. “Net IRR” or “Net Returns” are shown after deducting fees,
expenses and incentive distributions. There can be no assurance that the mandate will achieve comparable results, that targeted returns,
diversification or asset allocations will be met or that the investment strategy and investment approach will be able to be implemented or that the
mandate will achieve its investment objective. Actual returns on unrealized investments will depend on, among other factors, future operating
results, the value of the underlying assets and market conditions at the time of disposition, foreign exchange gains or losses which may have a
separate and uncorrelated effect, legal and contractual restrictions on transfer that may limit liquidity, any related transaction costs and the timing
and manner of sale, all of which may differ from the assumptions and circumstances on which the valuations used in the prior performance data
contained herein are based. Accordingly, actual returns may differ materially from the returns indicated herein. The value of any tax benefits
described herein depends on your individual circumstances. Tax rules may change in the future.

CBRE Global Investors and its affiliates accept no liability whatsoever for any direct, consequential or indirect loss of any kind arising out of the
use of this document or any part of its contents.

Where funds are invested in property, investors may not be able to realise their investment when they want. Whilst property valuation is conducted
by an independent expert, any such opinion is a matter of the valuer’s opinion. Property is a specialist sector which may be less liquid and
produce more volatile performance than an investment in broader investment sectors. CBRE Global Investors Limited is regulated by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). CBRE Global Investors (UK Funds) Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA).

Page 110



������������
��	
	�������
���	��������
��������	�

�����������
���
��������
������������
��������	

������������
����������� 
���!������"
�#� ����"��
�� !$�%�

Page 111



Page 112



&

'()*++
Page 113



,

'()*++-. /012345 6173889 6::; 7<= 6> ?@ A8; >68 3B;8=C 7A; <=8 26D 20D 68; /7A EF 28 061; 6DD; 6G;D;8 H: 68 66A68IJ. 3K8 3>G 31LJMN EF 28 061; 6DD; 6G;D;8 HC@JM; AA26D 3:G 6A3: /78= 3K13A378

OPQ RSTUVW SPXV RPYZ PQQZ P[ZQZVZ S\YSQ PVZ OSV TVW S]P̂_ PV SXP\WUQ T̀OPQ RSa \SSPbbŜ_Z cU TYU TY]RQ Pd

eef SOSYPgShScbT
\RYSOPQ RSTUZ ^UQ PVZ T̂QZ ^i S_QZ P[ZQZVZ S\W S_ gS_j bTYVU TQZ TP\\SV OPQ RS keeelWZ \Z \PbYTcmU TYVW SbYTbT\S_ T̂VZUZ XPVZ T̂Q SOSQ TUn R̂_ OPQ RSjopqr srtu k

v wxyz{ | }~ ���� }v ����| } ��� �� ����| } ��� ��� y�� � y���z� xy } ��� �

� TYVU TQZ T �q kt�� k��� ku�� kr�rr k�q

� ŜXW ]PYiq ktu� kq�� k��� k��rq k��

� �� �z� �� �� ��� �~ ���~ ���� ���~ �~�
v� ��  y �~� ¡¢£v� �� �� �~� ¡¢£

� TYVU TQZ Topqr
t ¤r�� kq

t ¤��q k�

� ŜXW ]PYiopqr
t ¤r�� k�

t ¤��� kq

¥ XV RPYZ PQQZ P[ZQZV mopqre
u ¤r�� kq
u ¤r�� kq

¦ x�z§ x�� x� y§� �z� xy{ �¨ ©���z� xª�
~ ��«
�� �v«

¬ �y�{ w��£� y§� �z� xy{ �¨ ©���z� xª�~ ��«
�� ��«

®̄° ±² ³́µ¶·¶ ¸¶· ¹º¶ ´»· ³¼½µ¾· ¿ÀÁ ÂÁÃÄºÅ Àµ¶ µÆ¿¶ ´·¾¶ Ḉ¼³Àµ³¶ ´¶ ´ÈÉ À·¶ ¿́ Â

ÊËÌ ÍÎ ÏÐÑ ÒÍË ÓÔÍÏÕÒÍÎÌ ÖÏÎ ÒÓ×ÎË ÒØÙÓØÓÙÎÌ ÓÕÓ×ÎË ÒÚ ÛÕÜÝ ÍÏÞÎ ÛÏÙÌ ÏÑ

É¶ ÀÅ¶É¶·¶ ³µ·ß À· À¼³ß ³à á³àÅ ¹·ß ³Æ¿¼·È ¿É¶ ¿ Ââß¶ µÀÉ µ¿µß ¿ãµ·ß ³Æ¿¼·È ¿É¶ ¿¶ µ

³̧¼¹ÇÉ ¿µ³· ¿·ß ³Å ³́Çß ½À¼ä¶ ´· ³¼½µ¿È¶· µ· ¿· ÀÉ¶ ´ÈÉ À·¶ ¿́µ³́µ¶·¶ ¸¶· ¹ Â
âß ³ÀÅ ¿̧³· ÀÅÉ ³µß ¿ãµµ· ¼³µµ· ³µ· µÈ ¿¼É ¿́á å· ³¼½¶ ´· ³¼³µ· ¼À· ³µÀ́àÉ ¿́á å

· ³¼½¶ ´ÈÉ À·¶ ¿́¼À· ³µ Ââß ³æ ḉà ÇÀ́µçÆÆ¿¼· Àèé ÂêÄÈ ÀÉÉ¶ ´É ¿́á å· ³¼½¶ ´ÈÉ À·¶ ¿́

³ëÆ³Ç· À·¶ ¿́µÆ¼¶ ¿¼· ¿¼ḉ́¶ á́¿ç· ¿È Ç¿ÉÉ À· ³¼ÀÉ· ¿µçÆÆ¿¼··ß ³ß ³à á³ Â

ìÁ ÂêÄÈ ÀÉÉ¶ ´¶ ´ÈÉ À·¶ ¿́ã¿çÉà· Àä ³·ß ³æ ḉà Àí Âê ëÉ ³̧³¼Àá³
î{ �y©�� y� xy© �z ��w� y§� �z� xy�ï���z �z� xy|

q kqð �q kuð �r kqð �r kuð �t kqð �t kuð

p cbSXV S_ OPQ RSTU
XTQQ PV SYPQañ ]d�q��qu

tr�r�r
��ru

f SOSYPgS]RQVZ bQ St k�q� k��� k��� kt�rr kq�ur ku�

q kqr kqt kq� kq� kqu kq� kq

ò óôõö÷ ôóøôùú÷ú ûüùú ôø
ý þÿþý��� �� �� õ � ��̄ õ

Page 114



�

'()*++

� 	
���  � �� ��� ����� �

�� ����� � �� �� ��� � ! "#$# %

� � &$# % ' �� ������� � () ��� �� ����*
�� ����� � �� �� ��� � +$$ % � � ,## % � �� ��� ����� �

� � -$$ % ' �� ������� � () ��� �� ����*

Page 115



.

'()*++

/ ��  �
0 yz ���|z ��z �|�y|�z� ��z �1¦/�~2
0 y§� �z� xy|�y|�z� ��z �103�~2

¢ w
¢£
« x§4 �y�{ w��£
¢£
« x§4 �y�{ w��£

5 ¿̧́³́·¶ ¿́ÀÉ á¶É· µ
t� k�

��u k�
u k�ð
q kq
q kqð

6 ´à ³ë åÉ¶ ´ä ³à á¶É· µ
��� kt

�r ¤�tq kq
r�u ktð
r ¤t�� kr
uu ktð

5 ¿¼Æ¿¼À· ³Å ¿́à µ
� k�

�rt kr
r k�ð
rr k�
q kuð

7 ³Æç¼Çß Àµ³Àá¼³³½³́
· µ

�uq kr
q kr
q kqð
q kq
q kqð

786 µãÀÆµ

ru k�
��u k�

u k�ð
��� ku
�� kuð

6 ´· ³¼³µ· ¼À· ³µãÀÆµ
�rtu kt

��� k�
�rt� krð

q kq
q kqð

9¶ :ç¶à¶· ¹

tq k�
q kq
q kqð
q kq
q kqð

æ ç· ç¼³µ

�q k�
t� kr

�� k�ð
q kq
q kqð

6 µ́¶ áß·9¶Å ¿¼8É çµæ ḉà
rr kq
q kq
q kqð
q kq
q kqð

â ¿· ÀÉ ¼³· ç¼́µãÀÆ
r kr

�r�� kr
r� k�ð
r�q k�
u k�ð

; ôù üý ü<<þù <

��� ��
��=v ��

�� ��«
� ¡vv� �v
�� ��«

>ú ü?úýú ù ö? þøû@ AüóB
CDC �E

FDGD �H
HEE �E}
I JCCK �E
HEE �E}

�Lqr MXW P̂gSZ b̂YS\ŜV OPQ RSYS\RQVZ ĝU YT]Pq kqrð Rb̀PY_ \WZUVZ ^Q T̂g �V SY]Z ^V SYS\V YPV S\

C@JM 42= 67<3; 7K13A378 N6D 0313A0D8; 7<O 1/>6J EJMP 0KB61: A=;O8; 7D /7< Q8 31>; 7OD 68; /73RK328 68; /7A

Page 116



Page 117



S

'()*++
TU VWX Y Z[\]̂ _

` abcd
Y abcd_
e abcd_
fg \hbg \hbi]g [\

j
j
j i kc k
j i kc k
j i kc k

l mnop mUq m

rs tuv
w txw
y tz{
| t}|
}} txs

~ �W�� �VnX

s tuz
| ts|
{ ty{
x tv|
}s ty{

� b� c]g �b

�� k��
�` k��

` k��
� k��
` k�̀

TU VWX Y Z[\]̂ _
` abcd
Y abcd_
e abcd_
fg \hbg \hbi]g [\

�
�
�
�

h�Z�� c]g �b�

l mnop mUq m

rxz} �zwx
u} �y}v �vwv
z{ �sss �xsz
}}} �yuy �zvs
}ws �vzw �{zx

~ �W�� �VnX

|}u �||y
uz �s{s �z{u
vx �z}w �{{{
}ss �zv} �{y|
}zu �{zu �|yz

� b� c]g �b

�` ���� �e��
�Y ���� ��̀�

è ���Y �Y�̀
`̀ ���e ���̀
�̀ ���� ���Y

Page 118



Date of Meeting: 27 November 2019

Lead Officer: Aidan Dunn, Executive Director Corporate Development

Executive Summary:

At its meeting 7 January 2017, the Pension Fund Committee approved the Full Business 
Case (FBC) for the establishment of the Brunel Pension Partnership.  This report provides 
an update to the Committee on progress in implementing the FBC.

To date, investments valued at approximately £960m have transferred to the pool’s 
management, representing just over 30% of the Fund’s total assets of £3.0bn.  A further 
£125m is expected to transition in November 2019 to Brunel’s High Alpha Global Equities 
portfolio, funded by partial disinvestment from the Fund’s two global equities’ managers, 
Investec and Wellington.

Dawn Turner, Brunel’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), has resigned from her position and 
left the company at the end of September 2019.  Laura Chappell, Brunel’s Chief 
Compliance and Risk Officer, will be Acting CEO until a new CEO is recruited.

The resignation of the CEO has prompted Brunel to review their remuneration policy. 
Under the shareholders’ agreement, any changes to the remuneration policy are a ‘Special 
Reserved Matter’ (SRM) that require the approval of all ten shareholders.  Proposed 
changes to the policy have been discussed by the oversight board at its recent meetings, 
and Brunel have issued an SRM requesting approval to raise the cap on remuneration for 
the chief executive.

Equalities Impact Assessment:  

This report does not deal with any new strategies or polices that would trigger an impact 
assessment.

Budget: 

Not applicable.

Risk Assessment: 

Details of the expected risks of implementing the project are included in the report.

Climate Implications:  

The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement requires all external investment managers to 
consider and manage all financially material risks arising from environmental issues, 
including those associated with climate change.

Other Implications:  

Pension Fund Committee

Investment Pooling Progress Report

Page 119

Agenda Item 11



Page 2 

None.

Recommendation:

That the Committee note the progress in implementing the Full Business Case for the 
establishment of the Brunel Pension Partnership.

Reason for Recommendation:

To ensure that the Fund has the appropriate governance arrangements in place.

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for quarter ending 30 September 2019
Appendix 2: Brunel Oversight Board 25 July 2019 – minutes

Background Papers:

Brunel Pension Partnership Full Business Case (December 2016)
Investment Strategy Statement (March 2018)

Officer Contact:  

Name: David Wilkes, Service Manager for Treasury and Investments
Tel: 01305 224119
Email: investments@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

1. Background

1.1 At the additional meeting on 9 January 2017 the Committee resolved that the Brunel 
Pension Partnership investment pool be developed, funded and implemented in 
accordance with the Full Business Case (FBC), including the setting up of a Financial 
Conduct Authority (FCA) regulated company to be named Brunel Pension 
Partnership Limited (Brunel Ltd).  This was then ratified by Dorset County Council on 
16 February 2017.  The FBC was also approved by the nine other participating 
administering authorities.  This report provides members with update on progress 
implementing the FBC.

1.2 Brunel Ltd was formally created on 18 July 2017, with representatives from the 
administering authorities of each of the ten founding funds signing the shareholders 
agreement to establish the company.  Brunel Ltd received authorisation on 16 March 
2018 from the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) to act as a full scope investment 
firm, allowing it to provide advisory and discretionary investment management 
services to Dorset and the nine other client funds.  

2. Portfolios Development and Implementation

Listed Equities 

Page 120



Page 3 

2.1 In July 2018, the Fund’s internally managed passive UK equities portfolio transferred 
to the Brunel Passive UK Equities portfolio (current value approximately £390m).  

2.2 In July 2018, the Fund’s global equities under the management of Allianz transferred 
to the Brunel Smart Beta Global Equities portfolio (current value approximately 
£300m).  

2.3 In November 2018, the Fund’s investment in the AXA Framlington UK Select 
Opportunities Fund transferred to the Brunel UK Active Equites portfolio (current 
value approximately £170m).

2.4 In October 2019, the Fund’s investment in the JP Morgan Emerging Markets 
Diversified Equity Fund transferred to the Brunel Emerging Markets Equities portfolio 
(current value approximately £100m).  

2.5 In total, investments valued at approximately £960m have transferred to the pool’s 
management, representing just over 30% of the Fund’s total assets of £3.0bn.  Fee 
savings in a full year from the assets transferred to date are estimated at 
approximately £1.2m, compared to the Fund’s share of Brunel’s annual running costs 
of £1.0m in 2019-20.  As more assets transition to Brunel’s management, fee savings 
are expected to increase

2.6 In November 2019, the Fund will be investing £125m in the Brunel High Alpha 
Developed Markets Equities.  This will be funded by partial disinvestment from the 
Fund’s assets under the management of its two global equities’ managers, Investec 
and Wellington, and will bring the value of assets transferred to Brunel to £1,085m.

2.7 In July 2019, Brunel issued a “Manager Search Launch Paper” for their Smaller 
Companies Equities portfolio, setting out the detailed timeline for the establishment 
of the portfolio, with final transitions expected May 2020.  Dorset has a target 
allocation of 2.25% (approximately £75m) to smaller companies’ equities, to be 
funded from disinvestment of assets under the management of existing managers or 
from cash balances.

Private Markets 

2.8 Work by Brunel establishing private markets’ portfolios is progressing concurrently 
with public markets’ activity.  Following the meeting of the Committee in June 2018, 
commitments of 2.0% (approximately £60m) to the Private Equity portfolio and 2.0% 
to the Secured Income portfolio were agreed.

2.9 Commitments to the private markets’ portfolios are expected to be made by Brunel to 
underlying investments over a two year period ending March 2020, with an 
opportunity to ‘top-up’ initial commitments in April 2019.  Thereafter, from April 2020, 
commitments to further two year investment cycles will be sought by Brunel, again 
with the opportunity to ‘top-up’ after the first year.

2.10 Private Equity, in particular, has proved challenging for the Fund to reach target 
allocation.  Therefore, officers will need to regularly review and update the required 
levels of commitments to Brunel, alongside the legacy investments with the Fund’s 
existing managers, HarbourVest and Aberdeen Standard.  

Page 121



Page 4 

2.11 Brunel has made commitments to two Private Equity funds - the Capital Dynamics 
Global Secondary Fund and the Neuberger Berman Private Equity Impact Fund.   
Dorset’s share of those commitments is £11.5m to the Capital Dynamics Global 
Secondary Fund and £14.3m to the Neuberger Berman Private Equity Impact Fund, 
leaving £34.2m uncommitted. To date £2.5m has been drawndown against the 
Capital Dynamics fund and £0.7m against the Neuberger Berman fund.

2.12 Brunel has made commitments to two Secured Income funds - the Aberdeen 
Standard Long Lease Property Fund and the M&G Secured Property Income Fund.  
Dorset’s share of these commitments is £22m to each fund, leaving £16m 
uncommitted.  To date, £2.9m has been drawndown against Dorset’s commitment to 
the Aberdeen Standard fund, with a call for a further £8m expected shortly.

Liability Driven Investment (LDI)

2.13 LDI is the Fund’s largest and most complex mandate with a target allocation of 14% 
(approximately £400M) managed by Insight Investment.

2.14 Due to the complexity and importance of this asset class, a number of meetings have 
taken place between Brunel and officers from the three clients who have allocations 
to LDI (including Dorset) and their advisers.  Throughout the process it has been 
made clear to potential providers that clients may decide not to transfer their existing 
investments to a new manager.

2.15 The portfolio development, manager selection and due diligence process has now 
concluded, and Insight has not been selected as Brunel’s preferred provider for LDI.  
Because of the bespoke nature of LDI, any transitions will take place client by client 
rather than all at once, at a time convenient to each client.  

2.16 Officers and the Independent Adviser will be watching the experience, costs and 
benefits of the first client transition very closely.  Only if this indicates significant 
benefits to the Fund will a transfer from Insight be recommended.  If such benefits 
are clear, it is very unlikely that a transition would take place before the conclusion of 
the planned review of the strategic asset allocation in 2020. 

Diversified Growth Funds (DGFs)

2.17 Dorset’s target allocation to DGFs is 8% (approximately £240M) and its incumbent 
manager is Barings.  The Brunel Portfolio is expected to be finalised in December 
2019, with transition from the incumbent expected January/February 2020.

Other Portfolios

2.18 Final commitments will be sought by Brunel on a portfolio by portfolio basis, as and 
when appropriate. The expectation in the FBC is that most of the assets of the ten 
client funds will in time transfer to Brunel portfolios but, initially at least, some assets 
will remain outside of the pool for reasons of liquidity and/or value for money.  For 
Dorset such assets are expected to include holdings in property, legacy holdings in 
private equity and infrastructure, and potentially LDI depending on the Brunel 
offering.

Page 122



Page 5 

2.19 The development and transition plan for all unfinalised portfolios (excluding private 
markets) is summarised below.

Portfolio Dorset 
Allocation Start Date Transition 

Date
Smaller Companies Active Equities 2.25% Jul-19 May-20
Sustainable Active Equities 0.00% Sep-19 Aug-20
Global Core Active Equities 8.50% Oct-19 Sep-20
Diversified Growth Funds 8.00% Mar-19 Jan-20
Multi Asset Credit 5.00% Dec-19 Jul-20
Sterling Corporate Bonds 6.00% Feb-20 Sep-20
Global Corporate Bonds 0.00% Jun-20 Apr-21
Hedge Funds 0.00% Aug-20 Mar-21
Equity Protection 0.00% Sep-20 Jun-21
Tactical Asset Allocation 0.00% Sep-20 Jul-21

3. Portfolios Performance 

3.1 Brunel now produce a quarterly review of the performance of the investments held by 
the Fund in Brunel portfolios (see Appendix 1).  As well as financial performance 
metrics, the report also includes responsible investment indicators for each portfolio.  

4. Governance 

4.1 Minutes from the meeting of the Brunel Oversight Board on 25 July 2019 are 
attached as Appendix 2.  The oversight board also met on 26 September 2019 but 
the draft minutes for that meeting have not yet been approved for publication.  The 
oversight board is next due to meet 21 November 2019.

4.2 Dawn Turner, Brunel’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), has resigned from her position 
and left the company at the end of September.  Laura Chappell, Brunel’s Chief 
Compliance and Risk Officer, has agreed to take on the role of Acting CEO to bridge 
the gap until a new CEO is recruited. 

4.3 The resignation of the CEO has prompted Brunel to review their remuneration policy. 
Under the shareholders’ agreement, any changes to the remuneration policy are a 
‘Special Reserved Matter’ (SRM) that require the approval of all ten shareholders.  
Proposed changes to the policy have been discussed by the oversight board at its 
recent meetings, and Brunel have issued an SRM requesting approval to raise the 
cap on remuneration for the chief executive.

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Information Classification: Public

P
age 125



Contents

Page 3     -    About Brunel and News

Page 4     -    Executive_Summary

Page 5     -    Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

Page 9     -    Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

Page 13     -    Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

Page 16     -    High Level Performance of Pension Fund

Page 17     -    Asset Allocation of Pension Fund

Page 18     -    High Level Performance of Pension Fund – Risk Summary

Page 19     -    Brunel Portfolios Overview

Forging better futures
Information Classification: Public

Dorset County Pension Fund

Brunel Portfolio Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Page 2 of 31

P
age 126



About Brunel and News

Over the past quarter, Brunel has faced a number of challenges, and welcomed some fresh developments which we hope you will celebrate with
us.

• In July we appointed our new Non-Executive Director, Patrick Newberry, who will also Chair our Audit Risk and Compliance Committee. Patrick
will formally take up the role upon FCA approval

• In August we announced that Brunel’s charities for 2019-2020 are the Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLI) and Clean Up Bristol Harbour
(CUBH). The choice of the two associated charities comes via The Bristol Gulls, four intrepid rowers who include Brunel’s own Sofia Deambrosi
(Investment Officer, Private Markets). The Bristol Gulls aim to take part in a rowing race across the Atlantic Ocean in December 2020, a
monumental venture that can inspire us all!

• Brunel staff have been making waves recently, with our CRIO Faith Ward taking part in an Asset TV masterclass and our Chair Denise Le Gal
participating in the first ever episode of the LGC podcast and offering insights into our investment decision-making process

• Brunel’s Chair Denise Le Gal, CIO Mark Mansley and CRIO Faith Ward had speaking engagements at the LGC Investment Summit at Celtic
Manor from 5-6 September 2019, discussing the investment opportunities and challenges ahead

• Following the start of its Global Small Cap pre-search and registration process in July, Brunel has launched its call for expressions of interest from
exceptional asset managers

Dorset County Pension Fund

Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Forging better futures
Information Classification: Public

Page 3 of 31

P
age 127



Executive Summary

High Level Performance of Pension Fund

The Fund delivered 1.8% on an absolute basis over the quarter, performing in line with the strategic 
benchmark. The absolute return over the one-year period is 5.1%, underperforming the strategic 
benchmark by 0.8%.

• The key driver of positive absolute performance this quarter was the Fund’s exposure to global equities.
Global markets continued to provide positive returns over the quarter, with the MSCI AC World returning
3.4%. The three legacy global equity positions contributed 0.5% to absolute performance. Notably, the
Wellington fund alone contributed 0.3% to absolute performance. In addition, the legacy corporate
bond fund managed by Royal London contributed 0.3% to absolute performance

• The allocation to passive UK equities contributed 0.2% to positive performance. The Brunel UK passive
portfolio performed in line with the FTSE All Share, which returned 1.3% over the quarter on a total return
basis

• Private markets contributed a positive 0.5% to absolute return. This was driven by the Harbourvest
private equity fund, which contributed 0.1% to absolute performance, as well as the IFM infrastructure
fund, which also contributed 0.1% to absolute performance.

• The positive relative return was helped by the diversified growth position in Barings, which
outperformed its benchmark by 0.3%, and the Brunel private equity portfolio, which outperformed its
benchmark by 13.7%. The State Street currency overlay was the main detractor from performance over
the quarter

Key Points:
• 1.8% Absolute Net Performance Q3
• 0.0% Relative Performance vs Benchmark Q3
• 5.1% Absolute Net Performance 1Y
• -0.8% Relative Performance vs Benchmark 1Y 

Fund Specific Events

Over the quarter the following commitments were made:
Private Equity: New allocation of $17m to Neuberger Berman Strategic Co-investment Partners IV
Secured Income: New allocation of £16.4m to Greencoat Renewable Income Fund

Total
(GBPm)

 30 Jun 2019 3,085

 30 Sep 2019 3,139

 Net cash inflow (outflow) -2

Total Fund Valuation

Jun Sep
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Assets Transitioned to Brunel

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 4 of 31

P
age 128



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

TED Spread

10-2yr Yield SpreadsFixed Income

Q3 2019 was characterised by strong returns across all areas of fixed income, which was in line with
observations from the previous two quarters. Positive returns have been fuelled by stagnant inflation
expectations, slowing global growth and an increasing shift towards looser monetary policy in major
economies.

The best performing asset class in fixed income over the quarter was UK Inflation Linked Bonds, which
returned an impressive +8.2% in local terms. The lowest performing asset class in fixed income was
European High Yield, which returned +0.9% in local terms over the quarter. UK Gilts also posted impressive
returns during Q3, appreciating by +6.6%. UK Inflation Linked Bonds were also the highest performing sub-
asset class on a year-to-date basis; total returns have been +16.8% in local terms following a further
reduction in real yields.

- UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) shifted downwards over the last quarter. The headline UK CPI was
1.7% in September, down roughly 0.3% from the previous quarter. This modest downward trend also
occurred across the major economies in the Eurozone. CPI expectations remain fairly stable in the UK,
despite concerns over Brexit. Market-based median CPI estimates are now 1.8%, 2.0% and 2.0% for 2019,
2020 and 2021 respectively. This is broadly in line with the Bank of England’s long-term CPI target of 2%

- The trend in flattening yield curves continued over the last quarter. This was most prominent in the UK
and US, where the 10-2yr yield spreads turned negative during Q3. 10-2yr spreads rebounded by the end
of September but still remain at almost flat levels. The UK and US 10-year yields have fallen considerably
in absolute terms over the quarter; yields fell by 49 & 32bps respectively. UK 10-year yields touched an all-
time low during the quarter following concerns over Brexit and slowing global growth; yields went as low
as +0.37% in August

- The UK government announced changes to the way UK inflation is calculated. UK chancellor Sajid
Javid outlined plans to reform the retail price index (RPI) by 2030 to correct well publicised calculation
flaws. RPI-linked government bonds subsequently experienced volatility, with the price of some issues
falling as much as 10%. Despite this, real yields on longer dated issues (>25 year) continued to fall over
the quarter; yields were as low as -2.1% at quarter end

- The ‘TED Spread’ in the US has been increasing over the last two quarters. It is now +30bps. TED spreads
show the difference between 3-month LIBOR and 3-Month US T-Bill rates. The spread number represents

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 5 of 31

P
age 129



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

Real Yields – Long Dated
UK Index Linked

the level of credit risk in an economy. Spreads typically rise during periods of economic crisis

UK Index Linked Tickers - FactSet
G4527HBM Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 10-AUG-2048
G4527HDE Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-MAR-2046
G4527HDB Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-MAR-2058
G4527HCW Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-MAR-2068
G92445ER Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-NOV-2056
G92445CR Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-NOV-2065
G4527HCL Government of United Kingdom 0.25% 22-MAR-2052
G92451HG Government of United Kingdom 0.375% 22-MAR-2062
G9245027 Government of United Kingdom 0.5% 22-MAR-2050
G92444AP Government of United Kingdom 0.75% 22-NOV-2047
G92450WC Government of United Kingdom 1.25% 22-NOV-2055

Yield Tickers - FactSet
- TRYGB2Y-FDS – UK 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYGB10Y-FDS – UK 10yr Generic Yield
- TRYUS2Y-FDS – US 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYUS10Y-FDS – US 10yr Generic Yield
- TRYDE2Y-FDS – Germany 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYDE10Y-FDS – Germany 10yr Generic Yield
- TRYFR2Y-FDS – France 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYFR10Y-FDS – France 10yr Generic Yield

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 6 of 31

P
age 130



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

5 Year price of Gold (NYM $/ozt)

Global indices 1 Year ReturnsEquities

The MSCI AC World returned 3.4% over the quarter, adding to positive returns from the previous quarters,
leaving global equity markets with a return of 20.6% year to date (YTD). This positive return comes despite
slowing global growth as global trade declined and European manufacturing suffered its steepest
downturn in seven years.

In US equities, the S&P 500 returned 1.7% over the quarter, returning 20.5% YTD in dollar terms. The Federal
reserve cut its policy rate over the quarter to 2% in an attempt to stimulate growth and counter the
effects of the continuing trade war.

• Rising stock prices pushed US equity valuations higher than their historical averages over the quarter.
This has been largely underpinned by low bond yields and decreasing interest rates
• The trade war continues to fuel risk in the US. New tariffs were imposed on more than $112 billion in
September and a further increase scheduled for October has left business owners with a high degree of
uncertainty. This has led to a slowdown in investment in factories and other businesses as they are
uncertain if they can sell their products with a notable decline in US exports
• US earning growth continued to decelerate over the quarter as estimates for 2019 EPS growth in the US
now stands at 1.5%, down from the 3% estimate at the end of Q2.

Emerging Markets declined over the quarter by -1%, returning 10% YTD.
• Emerging markets were down over the quarter as the previously mentioned US-China trade tensions
escalated
• China is a major swing factor in Emerging markets. With a weighting of 32%, it returned -1.54% over the
quarter and contributed 0.5% to the decline
• Those countries within emerging markets that have a high sensitivity to the USD also underperformed
over the quarter as the dollar strengthened. Notably, South Africa returned -8.2%
• Argentina was the largest underperforming country. A primary election led to a sell-off of Argentine
assets, and returned -45% for the quarter
• In contrast, Taiwan returned 9.3% over the quarter, largely due to their large tech sector, which makes
up over 50% of their market

European markets ex UK returned 1.7% over Q3, 19.9% YTD.
• As mentioned above, Europe’s manufacturing activity has shrunk to its lowest levels since October
2012. This was led largely by Germany, which slumped to its lowest levels since 2009. These stem partly
from the fact that Chinese companies facing tariffs on exports to the US are decreasing their purchases

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 7 of 31

P
age 131



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

of German-made machinery
• Shares, however, provided a positive return this quarter, largely due to the defensive sectors of Utilities,
Consumer Staples and Healthcare

FTSE All share returned 1.3% over the quarter, providing a YTD return of 14.41%.
• A new prime minister and further uncertainty about the UK’s ability to leave the EU on 31 October with
a deal led investors once again to favour more defensive sectors such as Healthcare and Utilities,
leading the FTSE All share positive gain
• Economically sensitive sectors such as Financials and Materials underperformed
• Growth indicators in the UK point towards a loss of momentum as Q2 GDP was confirmed at -0.2%
• Business investment in the UK grew at a rate of 1.1% per quarter during the year before June 2016.
Between Q2 2018 and Q2 2019, business investment is estimated to have fallen by 1.49%

Gold returned 4.19% Q3, 14.95% YTD.
• The continued drop in bond yields and the slowdown in global growth has led investors to favour less
risky assets such as Gold, which saw its price climb to highs of $1560/ozt, its highest since 2013
• Oil prices fell over the quarter, with Brent Crude returning -8.5%. However, a drone attack on a Saudi
Arabia Oil processing facility in September knocked 5% off global oil production immediately, leading to
the biggest intra day rise since 1988. This was subsequently corrected by quarter end

Sterling returns for indices:
- FTSE All-Share: 1.3% (3m) 2.7% (12m)
- MSCI Europe: 1.5% (3m) 5.7% (12m)
- MSCI Europe ex UK: 1.7% (3m) 6.8% (12m)
- MSCI ACWI: 3.4% (3m) 7.9% (12m)
- MSCI ACWI ex USA: 1.5% (3m) 5.1% (12m)
- MSCI Emerging: -1% (3m) 4.1% (12m)
- MSCI China: -1.6% (3m) 1.8% (12m)
- S&P 500: 5.0% (3m) 10.3% (12m)
- GBP Vs USD: -3.2% (3M) -5.5% (12M)

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 8 of 31

P
age 132



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

Overview
As we move into the final quarter of 2019, the challenges faced throughout the year are persistent. US-
China trade tensions and the uncertainty of the Brexit outcome are, for many, foreshadowing a global
recession. With these macroeconomic factors impacting a range of investment markets, successfully
navigating the market is getting harder.

Early indications of Client commitments for Cycle 2 suggest more money across all the Private Market
portfolios, especially to secured income and to private debt where in excess of £300m has already been
communicated. There is a minimum efficient scale to operating the PM Portfolios and for the team to
realistically be able to negotiate better terms with managers on your behalf. Client cohesion,
compromise and buy-in to the Brunel Portfolio offerings is fundamental to the success of our Pool and we
have appreciated the very constructive discussions during the Cycle 2 Portfolio Scoping stages as Clients
see what the team has already delivered during Cycle 1.

Infrastructure
Fundraising activity has significantly slowed down from 2018. Between Q1 and Q3 2019, unlisted
infrastructure funds have secured just 40% of the capital raised in the same time period in 2018. However,
managers’ ability to deploy has not been affected, as during Q3 2019, 593 infrastructure transactions
were completed for an aggregate value of $88bn. Investment levels are almost identical to Q3 2018,
when 592 deals were completed for a total of $93bn.

The geographic focus for managers has shifted slightly, moving from traditional developed to emerging
economies. The number of infrastructure transactions in Asia increased from 69 in Q3 2018 to 104 in Q3
2019, whereas North American deals declined by 23% over the same period, falling from 198 to 158.

Investors continue to view the renewable sector as offering lower political risk, and a higher income
yield, although this reflects the greater revenue variability from power price exposure. It remains the
largest sector in the market, accounting for 51% of all completed deals in Q3 2019. Nevertheless, other
industries are on the rise. The total number of transport deals surpassed energy deals for the first time
since Q2 2016 (84 versus 74 respectively), while the number of telecoms deals nearly doubled from 22 to
40 between Q3 2018 and Q3 2019.

The Capital Dynamics Clean Energy funds remain on track with their fundraising and deployment of
capital. The UK and Europe fund is just under 50% funded and has an extensive investment pipeline of
exclusive wind and solar projects. A first deal was signed in August: Project Keane – a portfolio of

Vauban investment VSFP (Mestre Hospital)

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 9 of 31

P
age 133



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

operational wind farms in Northern Ireland. The US fund has committed 49% of the $1.4bn total and has
c$600m of high probability transactions in the next 6-12 months (taking it to fully committed).

The fundraising for NTR Renewable slowed down in Q2-Q3 2019, but there is expectation a new German
investor will commit €50m in Q4 2019 and there has been positive progress with other pools and LGPS
investors. Deployment has progressed with an imminent transaction expected post quarter end, taking
deployment to c40% of target fund size.

The Core infrastructure fund expects to be fully invested by year end. The Core infrastructure team has
successfully spun-off from Mirova to become “Vauban”, although it remains under the Natixis umbrella.

No new fund commitments were made in the quarter ending 30 September, but considerable work was
done to progress the selection of a manager to source coinvest and secondary transactions for Brunel
and to jointly select primaries with the PM team. This will be done through a bespoke vehicle, built
exclusively for Brunel, and will not only be used to deploy the remaining capital for Cycle 1, but also to
manage new commitments to the infrastructure portfolio for future cycles. This will be hugely beneficial
for all concerned.

Brunel therefore remains on track to build a nicely diversified Cycle 1 infrastructure portfolio for Clients,
consisting of eight to nine primary funds plus coinvests and secondaries through this bespoke vehicle,
adding four to five further primary funds to the four fund commitments Brunel has already made
(covering sustainable infrastructure across telecoms, transport, energy infrastructure and renewable
power generation) as well as 10 to 15 co-investment deals across geographies and sectors, all with an
emphasis on sustainability by mitigating and creating resilience to climate change and other
systemically important challenges.

Private Equity
Investors continue to turn to private equity (PE), which has proven its ability to provide protection in times
of market downturn. Fundraising remains robust in terms of capital secured. Private equity funds have
secured $417bn in the first three quarters in 2019, up from $345bn over the same period in 2018.

Performance over the long term is strong and the private equity model has shown its worth in
withstanding market cycles. While activity is not currently matching the record highs seen in recent years,
investors continue to allocate to the asset class in search of long-term value creation.

The latest statistics on secondary transactions reflect how the market has evolved, with the buying and

Cycle 1 Private Equity GP Names

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 10 of 31

P
age 134



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

selling of assets before the end of a PE fund’s agreed term running at record levels. In addition to
traditional fund buyers of secondary private equity stakes, pension funds and large family offices are
increasingly competing for transactions, driving up prices. Investors are increasingly drawn to the very
favourable characteristics of secondaries, as Brunel outlined in its Cycle 2 PE Portfolio Scoping Paper.

The Neuberger Berman (NB) Private Equity Impact Fund is making good progress investing and has now
committed to three primary funds and three co-investments. They are finding good prospects in the
Healthcare, financial services and education sectors which align well with the impact aspirations of the
fund. They have also now put a credit line in place which will aid managing capital calls for the fund
and smooth the drawdown process with clients.

The NB Strategic Co-Investment Partners Fund IV had its first close in early September at $1bn, with a
further $600m in advanced due diligence with rolling closes over subsequent quarters. The fund should
start to deploy in early November as Fund III finishes deploying.

The Capital Dynamics Global Secondaries Fund V has raised $401m so far and has closed 12
transactions, with a further two deals in execution, for a total amount of US$272m. The early transactions
are well diversified by geography, vintage year, deal type and complexity, and consist of a portfolio of
over 100 funds run by many highly sought-after managers across buyout, growth and venture.

The PM team are pleased with the way the PE Portfolio is shaping up with a likely composition of 43%
Primary, 20% Secondary, 37% Coinvest by the time all capital has been committed at the end of Q1
2020.

Secured Income
The lower level of transactional activity in the UK property market over the first half of 2019, down 33% on
last year’s levels, has impacted the pace of investor drawdowns for both long-lease property funds held
by Brunel’s clients in the secured income portfolio. Both M&G and ASI have a significant pipeline of
deals, and one large transaction is expected from each fund imminently.

Greencoat Renewable Income Fund (GRI) has now been selected by Brunel as the final fund for Client
commitments to secured income in this cycle. This Portfolio is now fully committed. GRI will acquire
primarily UK-based operational assets in the solar, bioenergy and wind sectors, and more opportunistic
environmental infrastructure sectors, with the objective of generating predictable income with inflation
protection over a long-term horizon. Greencoat is a specialist investor dedicated to low carbon energy
investing, with assets under management of £4bn. Fund returns will be driven by contracted, inflation-
linked (RPI or CPI), long-term income streams, including 15-20 year UK government renewable

Greencoat Capital
Illustrative Image of Similar Giant Greenhouse

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 11 of 31

P
age 135



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

subsidies/support mechanisms. 30% of the commitment is reserved for Solar II, a portfolio of 64 solar
assets.

Property
In the UK, annual commercial property returns are forecast to deliver negative total returns of around -2%
for 2019 (the first negative total return since 2008), with modest positive performance returning in 2020.
The retail sector will be hardest hit, with average capital values falling by over 15% and some shopping
centre assets anticipated to lose over 30% of their value in the next 12 months.

Over the next five years, annualised total returns for all UK commercial property range between +2.5%
and +4% and equivalent yields (now at 5.5%) are already moving out to reflect future stagnant and
falling rental returns from some sectors.

There was a mild rebound in investment activity in the third quarter, concentrated on the Alternatives
sector, in particular student housing and the private rented sector (PRS). The largest deal so far this year
has been Unite’s purchase of the Liberty Living student housing portfolio for £1.4bn at an initial yield of
5.3%.

Internationally, similar themes of retail weakness and continued strength in logistics, where rental growth
is now moderating, have led managers to focus on defensive locations in the US, Europe and Asia.
Transactional activity has slowed in most regions, though from a high level in mature Asian markets.
Investor attention is directed towards secondary cities in the US, major business centres in Europe and the
office sector in Australia.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 12 of 31

P
age 136



Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

World on Fire – Climate change and supply chain
September saw significant deforestation and fires in the Amazon. A recent report from the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), highlights the close links between unsustainable
land use and climate change. With CO2 emissions rising and biodiversity declining faster than at any
other time in human history, the report underlines the urgency in promoting sustainable land
management to halt biodiversity loss, enhance food security and meet the goals of the Paris
Agreement.

Brunel signed the Investor statement on deforestation and forest fires in the Amazon, which has to date
been endorsed by 244 investors representing approximately US $17.2 trillion in assets. The statement
urgently requests companies to redouble their efforts and demonstrate clear commitment to eliminating
deforestation within their operations and supply chains, including by:
1. Publicly disclosing and implementing a commodity-specific no deforestation policy with quantifiable,
time-bound commitments covering the entire supply chain and sourcing geographies
2. Assessing operations and supply chains for deforestation risk, and reduce this risk to the lowest possible
level, disclosing this information to the public
3. Establishing a transparent monitoring and verification system for supplier compliance with the
company’s no deforestation policy
4. Reporting annually on deforestation risk exposure and management, including progress towards the
company’s no deforestation policy

Hermes EOS have also supported the investor statement, and recently published an EOS Insights article,
Playing With Fire which looks at companies exposed to deforestation – directly or indirectly through their
supply chains – and the investor response.

Plastic and the Circular Economy – Supply chain
Brunel as a member of the PRI Plastic Working Group (PWG) supported a PRI-in-person roundtable,
where four companies in the plastic value chain discussed the opportunities and challenges of plastic.
The PWG recently published its first two reports, Plastics: the challenges and possible solutions, and risks
and opportunities along the plastics value chain. Further updates will be shared as work progresses.
Brunel last year supported a letter on development of pellet-loss-free plastic supply chains and endorsed
the Ellen MacArthur New plastics economy global commitment.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 13 of 31

P
age 137

https://www.ipcc.ch/report/srccl/
https://www.unpri.org/Uploads/h/w/p/investorstatementondeforestationandforestfiresintheamazon_1oct2019_825656.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uki/eos-insight/eos/playing-with-fire/
https://www.unpri.org/plastics/plastics-the-challenges-and-possible-solutions/4773.article
https://www.unpri.org/plastics/risks-and-opportunities-along-the-plastics-value-chain/4774.article?adredir=1
https://www.unpri.org/plastics/risks-and-opportunities-along-the-plastics-value-chain/4774.article?adredir=1
https://www.newplasticseconomy.org/assets/doc/Global-Commitment-Signatories-June-2019.pdf


Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

UK Regulation & Policy – Quality and Effectiveness of Audit
Sir Donald Brydon was appointed to conduct an independent review into the quality and effectiveness
of audit. On 27 June 2019, Sir Donald Brydon and Miranda Craig visited Brunel as part of their research for
the review. We discussed a range of issues and flagged concerns about quality of the audit process and
the confidence, or lack thereof, it provides in financial accounts. We emphasised the importance of
both quality and confidence to us as investors. We welcomed the proposals for shareholder
engagement by the audit committees and more nuanced and informative audit findings. However, we
also noted the role (and current competence) of auditors in assessing a company’s approach to
material emerging risks such as cyber and climate change. We look forward to reviewing the report,
which is expected at the end of 2019.

Climate change – Energy transition
The Transition Pathway Initiative, co-chaired by Faith Ward, recently released its latest assessment of the
world&apos;s top energy companies. Offering updated analysis of the sector and with coverage
expanded to 135 of the world’s highest emitting public coal mining, electricity, and oil and gas
companies, it also included a comprehensive assessment of the Carbon Performance of oil and gas
producers for the first time. Key findings (see charts overleaf) include:

• Just four energy companies are on Level 0 Management Quality (unaware of or not acknowledging
climate change as a business issue)
• Close to 60% of energy companies are on Level 3 – integrating climate change into operational
decision-making – or Level 4 – strategic assessment of climate change
• On average, the sector is just over halfway between Level 2 and 3
• Electricity utilities perform best, while oil and gas producers are in line with the energy-sector average
• Currently, coal mining is the worst performing sector in the TPI database. Within that sector we see a
divergence between the leaders (clustered on Levels 3 and 4), and the laggards (stuck on Levels 0 and
1), with the leaders tending to be diversified and large-cap. companies

Brunel’s use of TPI to inform its investment decisions and voting was featured in September’s Funds
Europe ESG Report – The time for climate action is now.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 14 of 31

P
age 138

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review
http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/tpi/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Management-quality-and-carbon-performance-of-energy-sectors-final-180919.pdf
http://www.funds-europe.com/esg-report-2019/inside-view-the-time-for-climate-action-is-now


Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 15 of 31

P
age 139



High Level Performance of Pension Fund

Fund Strategic BM Excess

3 Month 1.81 1.83 -0.02

Fiscal YTD 5.08 4.77 0.30

1 Year 5.14 5.92 -0.78

3 Years 7.31 7.81 -0.50

5 Years 8.87 8.85 0.02

10 Years 9.71 9.50 0.21

Since Inception 8.65

Performance of Fund Against Benchmark Rolling Quarters Total Fund Net of Mgr. Fees

Fund Benchmark Fund Cum. Benchmark Cum.

Q
4 2

017

Q
1 2

018

Q
2 2

018

Q
3 2

018

Q
4 2

018

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

Key Drivers of Negative & Positive Performance
Over the reporting period, the Fund exhibited positive absolute performance of 1.8%, performing in line with the benchmark.
• Positive performance of global equity markets over the quarter saw this sector contribute to absolute returns. Legacy global equity positions across
Investec, Wellington and JP Morgan contributed 0.5% to absolute outperformance. These positions also contributed 0.1% to relative performance. Notably,
the Wellington portfolio contributed 0.3% to absolute performance and 0.1% to relative performance
• The passive smart beta portfolios contributed 0.4% to absolute return due to their global equity exposure. The unhedged portfolio returned 4.9% on a total
basis, while the hedged portfolio underperformed the unhedged portfolio by 2.3% due to its long exposure to sterling. Both were in line with their respective
benchmarks
• UK equity markets provided modest returns over the quarter, with the FTSE All Share index returning 1.3%. This was reflected in the 13% allocation to the
Brunel UK passive portfolio, which contributed 0.2% to absolute return, performing in line with its benchmark. The 5.5% allocation to the Brunel UK active
portfolio marginally contributed to absolute performance over the quarter
• The legacy private equity, infrastructure and property funds contributed 0.5% to absolute performance over the quarter
• The diversified growth position in Barings helped to drive outperformance, contributing 0.1% to absolute performance

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 16 of 31

P
age 140



Asset Allocation of Pension Fund

Others, 4.8

Cash, 2.0

Hermes, 2.5

IFM, 3.1

JP Morgan, 3.2

Passive Smart Beta 
(Hedged), 4.5

CQS, 4.5

Passive Smart Beta, 5.1

Brunel UK Active 
Equity, 5.4

Barings, 5.8

Royal London, 7.3

Insight, 12.9

Passive UK Equities, 
12.5

CBRE, 10.2

Wellington, 8.5

Investec, 7.6

Asset Allocation Split

-2.4% -1.2% 0.0% 1.2% 2.4%

Aberdeen Standard
Barings

Brunel - PM Private Equity
Brunel - PM Secured Income

Brunel UK Active Equity
CBRE
CQS

Cash
Harbourvest

Hermes
IFM

Insight
Investec

JP Morgan
Passive Smart Beta

Passive Smart Beta (Hedged)
Passive UK Equities

Royal London
Schroders

Wellington

Allocation Against Strategic Benchmark

The Fund continues to maintain a significant overweight position to cash, which is compensated by a significant underweight position in Barings.

• The overweight allocation to cash provided a negative contribution to asset allocation over the quarter as cash underperformed the strategic
benchmark

• The underweight position in Barings provided a slight positive contribution to asset allocation as its benchmark mildly underperformed the strategic
benchmark. Stock selection was positive as Barings modestly outperformed its benchmark by 0.3% over the quarter

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 17 of 31

P
age 141



High Level Performance of Pension Fund – Risk Summary

Total Return Benchm. Return

Brunel UK Active Equity 9.59% 10.82%

Passive Smart Beta 11.22% 11.41%

Passive Smart Beta (Hedged) 5.98% 6.67%

Passive UK Equities 0.89% 0.95%

Brunel - PM Private Equity 42.65% 12.56%

Brunel - PM Secured Income 3.85% 1.31%

Manager Level Performance (Transitioned) – Since Inception

Ann. Return Standard
Deviation

Benchm.
Return

Benchm. Std.
Dev.

Aberdeen Standard 12.47% 12.42% 6.76% 9.97%
Allianz 10.64% 7.27% 12.16% 10.10%
Barings 4.09% 5.76% 4.66% 0.09%
CBRE 6.63% 3.85% 7.08% 1.94%
Harbourvest 18.99% 10.34% 6.76% 9.97%
Hermes 7.23% 5.01% 10.01% 0.10%
IFM 16.01% 7.93% 10.01% 0.10%
Insight 4.57% 13.79% 4.38% 14.15%
Internally Managed UK Equities 55.20% 34.15% 6.77% 10.08%
Investec 11.37% 10.73% 12.16% 10.10%
JP Morgan 8.47% 12.76% 7.85% 12.44%
Royal London 5.38% 5.32% 4.05% 5.80%
Schroders 9.93% 10.42% 3.01% 10.03%
Wellington 13.09% 10.54% 12.16% 10.10%
Dorset County Pension Fund 7.31% 5.69% 7.81% 5.41%

Manager Level Performance (Pre-Transition) – 3 Year

Over the three-year reporting period, the Fund delivered positive absolute performance on an annualised basis. However, it underperformed the
benchmark, with higher volatility than the benchmark. The key highlights of performance over the period were as follows:

• HarbourVest provided a positive absolute return of 19.0%, outperforming its benchmark by 12.2%
• Schroders UK small cap active fund returned 9.9%, outperforming its target benchmark by 6.9%
• IFM provided a positive absolute return of 16.0%, outperforming its benchmark by 6.0%
• As expected, Brunel’s passive products performed broadly in line with their benchmarks

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 18 of 31

P
age 142



Brunel Portfolios Overview

Portfolio Benchmark AUM
(GBPm)

Perf.
3 Month

Excess
3 Month

Perf.
1 Year

Excess
1 Year

Perf.
3 Year

Excess
3 Year

Perf.
5 Year

Excess
5 Year

Perf.
SI

Excess
SI

Inception
Date

Brunel UK Active Equity FTSE All Share 169 0.29% -0.98% 9.59% -1.23% 21 Nov 2018

Passive Smart Beta SciBeta Multifactor
Composite 159 4.90% -0.03% 10.88% -0.12% 11.22% -0.19% 25 Jul 2018

Passive Smart Beta
(Hedged)

SciBeta Multifactor
Hedged Composite 141 2.60% 0.00% 4.60% -0.55% 5.98% -0.69% 25 Jul 2018

Passive UK Equities FTSE All Share 391 1.26% -0.01% 2.76% 0.07% 0.89% -0.06% 11 Jul 2018

Brunel - PM Private Equity MSCI AC World Index 4 17.51% 14.12% 42.65% 30.09% 26 Mar 2019

Brunel - PM Secured
Income

Consumer Price
Index 3 1.15% 0.60% 3.85% 2.54% 15 Jan 2019

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 19 of 31

P
age 143



Passive Smart Beta

Description

Exposure to equity markets and a
combination of smart beta factors
to outperform market cap indices.

Invest passively in equities via
alternative indices.

High

Absolute: High Relative: V.Low

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £158,744,072

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 4.90 4.93 -0.03

 Fiscal YTD 11.51 11.43 0.09

 1 Year 10.88 11.00 -0.12

 3 Years 0.00

 5 Years 0.00

 10 Years 0.00

 Since Inception 11.22 11.41 -0.19

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
3 2

018

Q
4 2

018

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Passive smart beta is a factor-based portfolio that aims to exploit value, quality and low volatility in a multifactor approach. During the screening process,
momentum and size factors are also considered. The fund is constructed by individual regions. The weights of the regions are in line with MSCI World Index.

• The smart beta portfolio returned 4.9% over the quarter, which was in line with the benchmark. It should be noted that global equities exhibited positive
performance over the quarter, with the MSCI AC World index returning 3.4%

• The smart beta hedged portfolio underperformed the unhedged portfolio due to the long sterling exposure. The hedged portfolio underperformed the
unhedged product by 2.3%, due to the weakening of GBP relative to USD.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 20 of 31

P
age 144



Passive Smart Beta (Hedged)

Description

Exposure to equity markets and a
combination of smart beta factors
to outperform market cap indices.

Invest passively in equities via
alternative indices.

High

Absolute: High Relative: V.Low

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £141,424,884

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 2.60 2.59 0.00

 Fiscal YTD 5.64 5.69 -0.05

 1 Year 4.60 5.15 -0.55

 3 Years 0.00

 5 Years 0.00

 10 Years 0.00

 Since Inception 5.98 6.67 -0.69

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
3 2

018

Q
4 2

018

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

-12.0%

-10.0%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

Passive smart beta is a factor-based portfolio that aims to exploit value, quality and low volatility in a multifactor approach. During the screening process,
momentum and size factors are also considered. The fund is constructed by individual regions. The weights of the regions are in line with MSCI World Index.

• The smart beta portfolio returned 4.9% over the quarter, which was in line with the benchmark. It should be noted that global equities exhibited positive
performance over the quarter, with the MSCI AC World index returning 3.4%

• The smart beta hedged portfolio underperformed the unhedged portfolio due to the long sterling exposure. The hedged portfolio underperformed the
unhedged product by 2.3%, due to the weakening of GBP relative to USD.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 21 of 31

P
age 145



Passive Smart Beta – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

ALLSTATE CORP 6,976,970

HARTFORD FINANCIAL SVCS GRP 6,660,891

WALMART INC 6,581,395

DUKE ENERGY CORP 6,413,933

TRAVELERS COS INC/THE 6,349,296

SOUTHERN CO/THE 6,302,157

SYNOPSYS INC 6,196,956

DANAHER CORP 6,164,502

INGERSOLL-RAND PLC 6,137,466

AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER 6,062,372

CHUBB LTD 6,025,955

FIRSTENERGY CORP 5,992,868

CONSOLIDATED EDISON INC 5,966,092

EXXON MOBIL CORP 5,903,834

EXELON CORP 5,881,540

ENTERGY CORP 5,774,098

PHILLIPS 66 5,741,377

MEDTRONIC PLC 5,714,909

WALT DISNEY CO/THE 5,683,780

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL INC-A 5,672,589

Top 20 Holdings

0% 7% 14% 21% 28% 35% 42% 49% 56% 63% 70%

North America  62.98%

Western Europe  22.93%

East Asia & Pacific  13.26%

Middle East & North Africa    0.83%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22%

Financial  20.82%

Consumer Non-cyclical  19.64%

Industrial  11.31%

Consumer Cyclical  11.14%

Utilities  10.73%

Technology    9.15%

Communications    7.72%

Basic Materials    4.96%

Energy    4.18%

Cash    0.20%

Diversified    0.15%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 22 of 31

P
age 146



Passive Smart Beta – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 23 of 31

P
age 147



Passive UK Equities

Description

Provide exposure to FTSE All Share
using a low cost highly liquid
approach.

Invest passively in securities
underlying the FTSE All Share.
Provide long term growth

High

Absolute: High Relative: V.Low

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £391,016,938

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 1.26 1.27 -0.01

 Fiscal YTD 4.55 4.57 -0.02

 1 Year 2.76 2.68 0.07

 3 Years 0.00

 5 Years 0.00

 10 Years 0.00

 Since Inception 0.89 0.95 -0.06

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
3 2

018

Q
4 2

018

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

-12.0%

-10.0%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

Passive UK equities provided positive performance over the quarter. The FTSE All share returned 1.3% over the period. As expected, the Brunel UK passive
product performed in line with the benchmark, returning 1.3%.

• The UK outperformance was largely driven by the Telecommunications and Healthcare sectors. The Telecommunications and Healthcare sectors provided
a total return of 14.9% and 12.6%, respectively, over the quarter

• While investors favoured more defensive sectors over the quarter due to continued Brexit uncertainty, in contrast, the Technology sector returned -14.8%
over the quarter

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 24 of 31

P
age 148



Passive UK Equities – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 69,927,589

BP PLC 56,713,408

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-A SHS 56,671,143

ASTRAZENECA PLC 52,645,640

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-B SHS 49,590,849

GLAXOSMITHKLINE PLC 47,242,502

DIAGEO PLC 43,045,560

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO PLC 37,820,581

UNILEVER PLC 29,414,695

RIO TINTO PLC 25,556,078

VODAFONE GROUP PLC 23,984,665

RECKITT BENCKISER GROUP PLC 22,007,094

PRUDENTIAL PLC 21,162,369

LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC 21,045,128

RELX PLC 20,067,640

BHP GROUP PLC 19,886,207

COMPASS GROUP PLC 18,318,595

NATIONAL GRID PLC 16,953,673

GLENCORE PLC 14,858,826

BARCLAYS PLC 14,226,993

Top 20 Holdings

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Western Europe  97.03%

East Asia & Pacific    1.58%

Middle East & North Africa    0.35%

North America    0.34%

Europe & Central Asia    0.31%

Latin America & Caribbean    0.21%

Sub-Saharan Africa    0.18%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22% 24% 26% 28%

Consumer Non-cyclical  27.91%

Financial  25.21%

Energy  13.41%

Consumer Cyclical    9.18%

Basic Materials    7.48%

Industrial    5.98%

Communications    5.12%

Utilities    2.72%

Cash    1.38%

Technology    1.04%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 25 of 31

P
age 149



Passive UK Equities – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 26 of 31

P
age 150



Brunel UK Active Equity

Description

Provide exposure to UK Equities,
together with enhanced returns
from manager skill.

Skilled managers will create
opportunities to add long term
value through stock selection and
portfolio construction.

Managed level of liquidity. Less
exposure to more illiquid assets.

High absolute risk with moderate
relative risk, around 4% tracking
error.

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £168,775,545

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 0.29 1.27 -0.98

 Fiscal YTD 3.43 4.57 -1.14

 1 Year 0.00

 3 Years 0.00

 5 Years 0.00

 10 Years 0.00

 Since Inception 9.59 10.82 -1.23

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
4 2

018

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

-3.0%

0.0%

3.0%

6.0%

9.0%

12.0%

The FTSE All share index underperformed global developed markets during the quarter, posting a return of 1.3% over the quarter and 14.4% year to date.
During the quarter, a new prime minister, Brexit uncertainty, and weak growth indicators all led investors once again to favour more defensive sectors such
as Healthcare and Utilities, while economically sensitive sectors such as Financials and Materials underperformed.

Over the quarter, the portfolio has underperformed the FTSE All share by -0.98%, returning 0.29% versus the FTSE All share return of 1.27%. Manager relative
performance struggled over the quarter with all three managers underperforming the benchmark in a market environment dominated by market rotations
and macro factors. ASI, Baillie Gifford and Invesco underperformed by -0.34%, -1.56% and -0.86 respectively.

Since inception on 21 November 2018, the portfolio has returned 9.59%, an underperformance of -1.23% versus the FTSE All share over the same period.
Underperformance was largely driven by a significant underperformance from ASI versus the FTSE All share of -4.28% and, to lesser extent, Invesco (-0.78%),
which more than offset outperformance by Baillie Gifford (+1.74%).

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 27 of 31

P
age 151



Active UK Equities – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-B SHS 70,879,998

GLAXOSMITHKLINE PLC 61,808,475

BP PLC 58,774,411

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 51,813,875

UNILEVER PLC 50,823,609

RIO TINTO PLC 49,674,353

BHP GROUP PLC 48,031,849

RELX PLC 47,469,370

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO PLC 46,593,203

DIAGEO PLC 43,864,512

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-A SHS 37,612,954

PRUDENTIAL PLC 35,788,895

ASTRAZENECA PLC 32,680,315

LEGAL & GENERAL GROUP PLC 27,893,249

LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC 24,162,524

MEGGITT PLC 23,050,484

RIGHTMOVE PLC 22,083,950

STANDARD CHARTERED PLC 21,196,745

AUTO TRADER GROUP PLC 20,796,900

HIKMA PHARMACEUTICALS PLC 20,496,401

Top 20 Holdings

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Western Europe  94.81%

East Asia & Pacific    2.91%

Middle East & North Africa    1.39%

North America    0.58%

Europe & Central Asia    0.28%

Sub-Saharan Africa    0.03%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22% 24% 26% 28%

Consumer Non-cyclical  26.88%

Financial  20.08%

Energy  11.85%

Consumer Cyclical  11.31%

Basic Materials    9.71%

Industrial    7.37%

Communications    7.30%

Technology    2.11%

Utilities    1.24%

Cash    1.01%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 28 of 31

P
age 152



Active UK Equities – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 29 of 31

P
age 153



Disclaimer

This material is for information only and for the sole use of the recipient, it is not to be reproduced, copied or shared. The report was prepared
utilizing agreed scenarios, assumptions and formats.

Brunel accepts no liability for loss arising for the use of this material and any opinions expressed are current (at time of publication) only. This
report is not meant as a guide to investing or as a source of specific investment recommendations and does not constitute investment research.

Certain information included in this report may have been sourced from third parties. While Brunel believes that such third party information is
reliable, Brunel does not guarantee its accuracy, timeliness or completeness and it is subject to change without notice.

Nothing in this report should be interpreted to state or imply that past performance is an indicator of future performance. References to
benchmark or indices are provided for information only and do not imply that your portfolio will achieve similar results.

Brunel provides products and services to professional, institutional investors and its services are not directed at, or open to, retail clients.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Dorset County Pension Fund

Information Classification: Public

Page 30 of 31

P
age 154



Information Classification: Public Page 31 of 31

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Brunel Pension Partnership BOB

Page 1 of 7

Brunel Oversight Board Meeting 

Minutes 

Purpose: 
� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � 
 � � 	  � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �  �  � � �

 

Date and time: Thursday 25 July 2019, 10:30 – 12:45 

Location: � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � ! � � " # $ % & ' " $ ( ( " ) * $ % + " # , ) * ' - . / 0  

Dial-in details: Dial In: 0330 336 1949 | Participant Pin: 429632 

 

Pension Committee Representatives 

Bruce Shearn Avon  

John Chilver Buckinghamshire Apologies  

Derek Holley Cornwall  

Ray Bloxham Devon  

John Beesley Dorset Phone  

Robert Gould EAPF   

Ray Theodoulou Gloucestershire Chair  

Kevin Bulmer Oxfordshire Vice-Chair 

Mark Simmonds (MSim) Somerset Absent 

Tony Deane Wiltshire  
 
 
 
Member representative observers 

Andy Bowman Scheme member rep.  

Ian Brindley Scheme member rep.  
  

 
 

 

Fund Officers and Representatives 

Tony Bartlett Avon  

Julie Edwards Buckinghamshire  

Sean Johns Cornwall Apologies 

Mark Gayler Devon Apologies 

Aidan Dunn Dorset Apologies 

Craig Martin EAPF Apologies 

Marion Maloney (MMa) EAPF   

Mark Spilsbury Gloucestershire Apologies 

Sean Collins Oxfordshire  

Jenny Devine Wiltshire  

Nick Buckland Mercer - Client Side Executive  

Sophie McClenaghan  Mercer - Minutes  
 
 
 

Page 157



Brunel Pension Partnership BOB

Page 2 of 7

Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd 

Denise Le Gal Brunel, Chair  

Steve Tyson Brunel Shareholder NED  

Mike Clark NED and Chair of ARC  

Matthew Trebilcock Brunel, CRD Apologies 

Dawn Turner Brunel, CEO  

Mark Mansley (MM) Brunel, CIO  

Joe Webster Brunel, COO  

Laura Chappell Brunel, CCRO  

Chris Crozier Brunel, CRM  

Catherine Dix Brunel, CRM  

Alice Spikings Brunel, CRA  

David Anthony Brunel, HoF & CS  

Item Agenda  Paper provided Timing 

1 Confirm agenda 

Requests for Urgent or items for Information  

Any new declarations of conflicts of interest 

Agenda 

Verbal  

C of Interest 

 

10.30 – 

10.35 

5 mins 

 

 Apologies were received from John Chilver and Matthew Trebilcock. 

The Board welcomed Bruce Shearn.  

 
Conflicts of Interest 

• No new conflicts were raised. 

 

 

2 Review 30 April BOB minutes Minutes 10.35 – 

10.45 

10 mins 

 The April minutes were agreed and confirmed as final. 

 

 

3 CEO appointment process 

DLG to clarify the recruitment process. 

 

Paper 10.45 – 

11.00 

15 mins 

 DLG provided an update on the CEO recruitment process. The process 

will be similar to that used to appoint the recent NED but will also 

include RT (or a nominated deputy) and Brunel employees at an early 

stage. The Brunel Board is proposing to go to market early next week, 

with an application deadline of 9 September. 

 

The recruitment process will be as follows  

1. Initial application screen. 

2. Kevin Jones, DLG, Vicky Chessell will meet all suitable 

candidates to determine a longlist.  

3. The NEDs will be consulted before creating shortlist.  

4. The shortlist will include 4-6 candidates.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 158



Page 3 of 7

5. Formal first panel consisting of DLG, PwC, NED (ST) and RT.  

6. 30 minutes to write an answer to a question.  

7. 2nd formal panel consisting of RT, MM, JW where the candidate 

will present their strategy response.  

 

DLG has spoken with all shareholders and BOB representatives. The 

Board recognise that the current salary cap will restrict CEO recruitment 

for the skillset required. A change in the salary cap would be a Special 

Reserve Matter and therefore would require 100% shareholder 

approval.  

 

The Board is proposing an increase in the total compensation package 

cap, in addition the Board will introduce a DC scheme for the higher 

salary rather than eligibility to the LGPS.  

 

AB asked why increase is necessary given the local authority 

background of the business. DLG responded that Brunel was very lucky 

in recruiting DT. Although BPP has a local authority background, it is FCA 

regulated and the CEO is taking on significant risk. It was asked if this will 

result in increased salaries of the other executive positions. DLG assured 

the BOB that the existing executive’s remuneration would not change 

but this change in cap would future proof the business should it be 

required to recruit for these roles in the future. IB noted that this is what 

happened in the private listed space, companies pushed up pay when 

trying to be top quartile payer. He noted the other Pools are not directly 

comparable to Brunel. ST noted that even if the higher cap was 

approved, Brunel would be a bottom payer when compared to each 

of the below benchmarks ; 

1. Pools  

2. Asset management industry  

3. Senior local government positions  

It was noted that Brunel does not pay bonuses whereas other pools do. 

The benchmark exercise was undertaken by an external company, but 

for the pools publicly disclosed data was used.  

  

LC noted that City salaries reflect the risk and scale of a potential fine, 

i.e. the risk that there is a significant and material breach of FCA roles. 

JW added that another risk is that the new CEO doesn’t have sufficient 

experience to lead the company.  

 

DH would prefer to test the water at a lower salary cap before an 

increase. He noted the short timeline but acknowledged that LC was a 

suitable interim appointment. DH was also concerned that tier 2 

employees will look at the change in CEO pay and also expects a pay 

increase.  

 

KB noted that this salary increase was being recommended by the 

NEDs. He felt it was of utmost importance that the right person is in 

place as soon as possible. KB noted he would like to see that final 

candidate meets shareholders ahead of appointment, potentially a 

lunch, to provide the chance to raise any concerns. DLG agreed this 

would be possible.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brunel 

 

 

 

 

Page 159



Page 4 of 7

TD thanked DT for her work as CEO. At a recent Wiltshire committee 

meeting an increase in salary was discussed and the Committee 

independently concluded that the salary would need to be increased. 

A concern at PwC’s involvement was highlighted.  Wiltshire believes 

Brunel should not compromise and should appoint the right person.  

 

RB agreed with KB and TD. RB acknowledged Brunel is reaching a stage 

of asset management and business as usual so the appointment of CEO 

is all about the bottom line. The Funds don’t want mediocrity; each 

Fund wants the bottom line to be as good as it can be.  

 

MC commented that if Brunel went to market at the current salary cap, 

the firm’s reputation would be tarnished as this is an unrealistic budget.  

 

BS confirmed that Brunel needs to bring in the right people and 

therefore need to pay the market rate.  

 

RG noted that EA will need a full report to put the salary into context in 

order to get it approved. DLG confirmed this would be contained within 

the SRM.  

 

TD asked for assurance that underperformance from the CEO and 

Brunel as a whole will not be tolerated. MC as Chair of ARC gave that 

assurance.  

 

TB emphasised that the SRM will cover executive salary which currently 

includes 4 roles at Brunel.  The SRM includes the CEO however the CEO’s 

salary is not split out. TB asked that this is made clear in the SRM. TB also 

asked if the increase is funded from current budgets. DLG confirmed it 

is.  

 

JB was conscious of 1 change leading to lots of change over time. He 

felt the increase would lead to an imbalance between newly recruited 

and longer standing employees which will cause further issues in the 

future.  

 

After further discussion, the Oversight Board supported an increase in 

the total salary cap excluding pension.  

 

It was queried if the Board could guarantee no  increases in line with 

the revised cap for 1 year for other executives. It was discussed and 

concluded that the Board could not be constrained in this way given 

the uncertainty of events over the next 12 months. It would be the role 

of the Board to manage salary within the agreed cap and budget.  Any 

increase in budget would need to be referred back to shareholders as 

an SRM.  

 

The Brunel Board will go out to market tomorrow with the request for 

applications.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brunel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brunel 

4 Brunel Control Environment Presentation on the day 11.00 – 

Page 160



Page 5 of 7

Presentation from Laura Chappell on 

Brunel’s Control Environment and regulatory 

oversight. 

 

11.20 

20 mins 

  

LC spoke to a presentation and provided a view of what requirements 

the FCA place on Brunel as a regulated business. LC summarised the 

types of processes Brunel have in place to ensure FCA compliance.  

 

Brunel is open and transparent with the FCA and its underlying clients.  

Within the FCA handbook customers are assumed to be individual 

therefore Brunel is asking for more clarity on the pooling of customers.  

 

Brunel can only provide services to professional clients, not retail 

investors, and therefore will be required to annually review Funds’ 

knowledge for Brunel to continue to classify each Fund as a professional 

investor.  

 

Brunel has Directors insurance (professional indemnity) though this does 

not cover illegality and potentially would not cover an FCA breach.  

 

SM to share the slides presented by LC.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SM 

5 Client assurance framework 

Review and feedback of the Clients 

assurance framework including Manager 

Access Policy.  

 

Paper 11.20 – 

11.45 

25 mins 

 Due to time, SC asked for questions. RB noted there was no inclusion on 

climate change in the Oversight paper and requested this is included. 

SC agreed this could be included.  

 

 

CG 

6 ARC update  

To note - A semi-annual update from Mike 

Clark, NED and Chair of the Audit and Risk 

Committee (ARC) including the outcomes 

of the recent internal audit.  

Paper 11.45 – 

12.00 

15 mins 

 Due to time, MC asked for questions. No questions were received.  

  

 

7 Brunel Business Report  

To note - A standing item update from 

Brunel on its business activities. 

 

Paper 

Brunel 

12.00 – 

12.15 

15 mins 

  

Brunel has revised its disinvestment query response letter given 

questions that have come in. The letter has been shared with CG and 

Brunel will share with the oversight board,   

 

 

Brunel 

Page 161



Page 6 of 7

  

DH raised some queries  

• P5: will the split of the UK and International property funds 

reduce fee savings? MM confirmed that Brunel do not expect 

there to be a material impact on savings.  

• P5: has the Wiltshire AMC/TER issue now been resolved? MM 

confirmed that it has and all funds are now represented on the 

same basis. The only changes to the business case going will be 

to reflect actual transitions.  

• P14: has budget ownership now be delegated to budget 

holders? Yes ownership has now shifted to Directorate held. 

• P26: DH asked Brunel to expand on the on boarding risk of the 

property portfolios and why on boarding is taking so long. MM 

confirmed Brunel is asking funds to get data loaded so Brunel 

can begin management and realise the fee savings.  

• P28: client allocations to DGF has fallen, will this result in fall in fee 

savings? Brunel does not expect the fee saving impact to be 

material. DH asked why has the appetite declined. MM noted 

that some clients have made strategic decisions away from DGF 

and some clients have felt that the Brunel product does not fit 

their specific need.   

RT then provided some questions 

• RT asked for more clarity on the timing adjustments on P16. 

Shareholders approved budget for additional investment 

support, but some of the work shifted into the next year. RT 

noted the high use of consultants and asked if there is a policy 

on the use of them. Brunel set a budget and determines how 

long the resource will be required. If short term, then consultants 

will be brought in to provide specialist roles in the short term.  

• RT asked if the budget is being managed in line with 

expectations. JW noted that during the development phase, 

there are a lot of moving parts but Brunel is pleased that so far 

the process has been within tolerance of expectations.  

• Transition costs remain a large risk but Brunel are doing 

everything it can to minimise transition costs. As more transitions 

are completed, the risk reduces. Transitions are due to take 

place till 2021 but by mid 2020, two significant transitions will 

have been completed (Emerging Markets and Global High 

Alpha) which will account for a significant proportion of the 

transition costs. Emerging Markets is likely to be the most 

expensive transition in basis point terms.  

• RT asked if ESG will impact investment returns. MM responded 

that Brunel has done a lot of work to integrate RI and believe 

that reducing ESG risk will not affect returns and should have a 

positive impact. The Brunel Climate change policy will be 

provided in the autumn.  

• The ESG table on the Oversight board report shows a 

combination of ESG rating and size. The score is how good a 

company is and the net attribution (i.e. the rating scaled by the 

position size) determines the order of the table. CC noted the 

June quarterly report is due out in August.  

Page 162



Page 7 of 7

 

8 Shareholder NED update  

To note - A standing item update on the 

activities and perspective on the 

Partnership and its activities. 

 

Paper 

ST 

12.15 – 

12.30 

15 mins 

 Due to time, ST asked for questions. 

It was asked how Brunel judges investment managers on future 

investment performance. MM explained that Brunel aim to look at 

forward looking indicators i.e. how do managers generate ideas, how 

managers learn from mistakes, how do managers integrate risk, culture 

etc.  

 

TD expressed concerns around PwC’s involvement and questioned 

whether the statement that the culture DT created is preserved should 

be included. DLG noted that the continuation of culture is important to 

existing employees for continuity. DLG confirmed the firm and its culture 

will continue to evolve. 

 

 

9 Any other Urgent or items for Information 

Future meeting dates 

• 26th September 

• 5th November to 21st November 

Chair 

 

12.30 – 

12.45 

15 mins 

 The 5th November meeting has now been moved to 21st November.  

RT thanked DT in advance for all the work she has done at Brunel.  

 

 

10 Meeting close  Chair  13.00 

 

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Annual Governance Compliance Report
	8 Pensions Administration
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix 1 DCPF Administration Strategy 2019 DRAFT
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix 2 DCPF Vaulation View from Actuary
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix 3 Equitable Life background
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix 4 Pension Administration KPI's

	9 Independent Adviser's Report
	10 Fund Administrator's Report
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix 1 Listed Equities Report
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix 2 RLAM Q3 2019
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix 3 - CQS Review for Dorset Q3 2019 v2
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix 4 - CBRE Q3 2019
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix 5 - Insight Q3 2019

	11 Investment Pooling Progress Report
	Agenda Item 11 - Appendix 1 - 2019 Brunel Performance Report
	Agenda Item 11 - Appendix 2 - 25 July Bob mins




